
 
Agenda compiled by: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
 

 
Phil Garnett (0113 
39 51632) 

 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

A 

 

 
 
 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on 

Friday, 28th September, 2012 
at 2.00 pm 

 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
 

P Grahame 
N Taggart 
T Hanley 
G Hussain 
T Murray 
E Taylor 
J Illingworth 
 

J Bentley 
 

C Fox 
R Wood 
 

J Elliott 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded).  
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting) 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
 
 

 



 

C 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration  
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
AND OTHER INTERESTS’ 
 
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-18 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct.  Also to declare 
any other significant interests which the Member 
wishes to declare in the public interest, in 
accordance with paragraphs 19-20 of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES 
 
To receive any apologies for the meeting. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
To receive the minutes of the meeting of the 
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee held 
on  4th July 2012  
 

1 - 4 

7   
 

  LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN'S 
ANNUAL LETTER 
 

To receive a report of the Chief Officer Customer 
Services which summarises the council’s 
complaints and LGO cases for the period 1 April 
2011 to 31 March 2012 and to discuss the LGO’s 
Annual Review Letter to the council, 

 

5 - 20 

8   
 

  DECISION MAKING FRAMEWORK; ANNUAL 
ASSURANCE REPORT 
 
To receive a report of the Director of Resources 
presenting the Committee with the annual decision 
making framework report. 
 

21 - 
32 



 

D 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

9   
 

  INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12 
 

To receive a report of the Director of Resources 
which brings to the attention of the Committee the 
basis of the internal audit assurance for 2011/12. 
 
 
 
 
 

33 - 
66 

10   
 

  SHARED SERVICE PARTNERSHIP WITH 
CALDERDALE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH 
COUNCIL TO MEET ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
TECHNOLOGY REQUIREMENTS 
 
To receive a Report of the Director of Adult 
Services which provides the Committee with 
details of the Partnership Arrangements with 
Calderdale Metropolitan Borough Council. 
 

67 - 
78 

11   
 

  REPORT TO THOSE CHARGED WITH 
GOVERNANCE FROM KPMG 
 
To receive a report of the Director of Resources to 
consider the release of the unaudited 2011/12 
Statement of Accounts for public inspection on the 
4th July 2012. 
 
 

79 - 
114 

12   
 

  ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
 
To receive a report of the Director of Resources 
presenting the Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS) to the committee for approval. 
 

115 - 
128 

13   
 

  WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To receive a report of the Director of Resources 
notifying and inviting comment  from the 
Committee on the work programme. 
 

129 - 
132 

 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Friday, 28th September, 2012 

 

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 
 

Wednesday, 4th July, 2012 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor T Murray in the Chair 

 Councillors P Grahame, J Elliott, T Hanley, 
C Fox, G Hussain, T Murray, R Wood, 
E Taylor and J Bentley 
 

  
 

Apologies Councillors N Taggart and J Illingworth 
 

 
 
 

1 Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents  
 

There were no appeals against the refusal of inspection of documents. 
 

2 Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 

There were no resolutions to exclude the public. 
 

3 Late Items  
 

There were no late items submitted to the agenda for consideration. 
 

4 DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY AND OTHER 
INTERESTS  

 
Councillor Fox  and Councillor Hanley declared a significant interest in 
Agenda Item 9. The Statement of Accounts (Minute 9 refers)  as Members of 
the West Yorkshire Pension Fund Investment Panel. 
 

5 Apologies  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Taggart and Councillor 
Illingworth. 
 

6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 23rd April 2012 were confirmed as a 
correct record. 
 

7 Chair's Remarks  
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Friday, 28th September, 2012 

 

The Chair  welcomed all to the first meeting of the 2012/13 municipal year 
particularly new Members to the Committee and congratulated Cllr Elliot on 
recently being awarded an MBE in the Queen’s birthday honours list. 
 

8 KPMG - INTERIM Audit Report  
 

Representatives of KPMG (Mike McDonagh, Steve Clark and Heather 
Garrett) presented a report of the Director of Resources the report identified 
the findings from KPMG ‘s interim audit work in relation to the 2011/12 
financial statements and the initial work undertaken to support their 2011/12 
value for money conclusion. 
 
Members discussed the report asking specific questions about how KPMG 
conduct their audit of the Council and the length of time needed to undertake 
work around the organisation’s control environment. Members also sought 
specific assurances on the work completed on budgetary control. Members 
inquired about the cost of the audit by KPMG to the Council. 
 
Members requested that KPMG identify within the Interim Audit report trends 
in the assessment outcomes in 2011/12 to previous years. 
 
RESOLVED –The Committee resolved to note the positive assurances 
provided by KPMG on the systems and controls which underpin the Council’s 
financial statements. 
 
 

9 The Statement of Accounts 2011/12  
 

The Principal Financial Manager introduced a report of the Director of 
Resources. The report presented the 2011/12 Statement of Accounts for 
Leeds City Council prior to them being made available for public inspection. 
The report provided a summary analysis of the key financial issues; an update 
on the future accounting issues impacting on the financial statements and an 
update on compliance with external audit recommendations from the audits of 
the 2010/11 accounts.  
 
 
Members specifically considered the pension fund deficit, its impact on council 
finances and the actuarial assessment of the ongoing strength of the West 
Yorkshire Pension fund. 
 
Members also recognised the scale and complexity of the accounting 
statements and as an example requested a more detailed explanation of the 
Housing Revenue Account at a separate seminar session for the Committee 
to be arranged in due course with the Principal Financial Manager. 
 
The debt situation of the Council was also considered by Members and 
explanations were sought about the management of short and long term 
borrowing by the Councils Treasury Management Team 
 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Friday, 28th September, 2012 

 

 
RESOLVED – The Committee resolved to: 
 
(a) note the 2011/12 Statement of Accounts as certified by the responsible 
financial officer; and 

(b) agree to release the accounts for public inspection. 
 

10 Role of the People Plan in Corporate Governance  
 

The Head of HR presented a report of the Chief Officer for Human Resources. 
The report outlined the role of the Council’s People Plan and how it aligns with 
the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance in respect of: the appraisal 
process, employee engagement, workforce planning and control of the 
Council’s budget. 
 
Members wished for the important work undertaken by the Central and 
Corporate Scrutiny Board to be more accurately referenced by officers as the 
Board’s work had been fundamental to the improvements made. 
 
Members stressed  the importance of managing the work force in an effective 
and efficient way, in light of the reduction in staff over recent and coming 
years. 
 
RESOLVED – The Committee resolved to note the existing monitoring and 
reporting arrangements for appraisal processes, employee engagement, 
workforce planning and control of the Council’s workforce budget. 
 

11 Council Housing Assurance Framework 2011-12  
 

The Housing Policy and Monitoring Manager presented a report of the Chief 
Statutory Housing Officer. The report provided assurance that the 
management of council housing in the city is being appropriately monitored by 
the Housing Partnerships team based within Housing Services. 
 
Members discussed the report asking specific questions around  the rating 
system given by Internal Audit for the 2011/12 commissioned audits.  
 
RESOLVED  - The Committee resolved to note the assurances provided that 
the management of council housing  in the city is being appropriately 
monitored by the Housing Partnerships team based within Housing Services. 
 
 

12 Annual Assurance Report on Risk & Performance Management  
 

The Principal Risk Management Officer and the Executive Officer 
(Performance Management) presented a report of the Director of Resources 
and the Assistant Chief Executive (Customer Access and Performance). The 
report provided the Committee with assurances on the Council’s risk and 
performance management arrangements. 
 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Friday, 28th September, 2012 

 

Members highlighted the importance of ensuring that risk and performance 
work is completed with the Council’s partners to ensure arrangements in 
place are satisfactory and the Council is exposed to as little risk as possible. 
 
Members were particularly keen to ensure that the arrangements in place are 
able to quickly take account of changing circumstances and guidance issued 
by Government.  
 
By way of illustration the Chair referred to a recent report of the Office of the 
Children’s Commissioner on improving the safety of children in residential 
care and sought assurances that safeguarding arrangements would be 
reviewed in light of the document. 
 
RESOLVED -  The Committee resolved to note the Council’s risk and 
performance management arrangements and note the assurances given. 
 

13 Work Programme  
 

The Director of Resources submitted a report notifying members of the work 
programme. 
 
The Committee reviewed its forthcoming work programme. 
 
RESOLVED – The Committee resolved to note the work programme. 
 
 

Page 4



 

 

 

Report of the Chief Officer, Customer Access 

Report to the Corporate Governance & Audit Committee 

Date: 28 September 2012 

Subject: Report on the Local Government Ombudsman’s Annual Review Letter 
2011/12 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

 

Summary of main issues  

1. This report provides comment and feedback for the Corporate Governance and 
Audit Committee’s Annual Governance Statement on the Local Government 
Ombudsman’s (LGO) Annual review letter for Leeds, dated 22 June 2012.  

2. The letter confirms the number of cases that the LGO has completed investigation 
during 2011/12 was 107 enquiries and complaints.  For the first time in a number of 
years the LGO reported publicly on four cases where fault was found with the 
council.  Of the remaining 103 cases, the LGO found no evidence of fault in 60 
cases.  The average number of days taken by the council to respond to an 
investigation is 26.5 calendar days, continuing the council’s record of performing 
better than the 28 calendar day standard set by the LGO.   

3. The LGO has written a brief letter to the council which accompanies the summary.  
The letter lists some future changes to the scope of the LGO to no longer 
investigate housing, or schools in pilot areas, and outlines recent LGO reports and 
case studies.  It also highlights one case of a complaint where the council 
mishandled a tenant’s rent, and missed a number of opportunities to rectify the 
situation. 

4. Using the LGO Annual Review Letter and summary and an overview of the 
complaints to the council during 2011/12, this report sets out the council’s 
arrangements for responding to complaints made by the public, the key objectives 
of which are to make it easy for people to complain, to try to resolve complaints at 
an early stage and to learn lessons from the issues raised through complaints.  In 

 Report author:  Andrew White 

Tel:  2660014 

Agenda Item 7

Page 5



 

 

 

particular, the report shows the comparatively small number of complaints which 
are not resolved during the early stages of our complaints process, and then 
proceed to the LGO.  The report also shows the comparatively small number and 
proportion of LGO investigations which find fault on the part of the council, and the 
low number and value of financial settlements.  This provides assurance that the 
council’s processes for handling complaints are, on the whole, working well. 

 

Recommendations 

1 Members are asked to consider the issues raised in the LGO’s Annual Review 
Letter and the supporting contextual information provided in the appendices. 

2 Members are asked to note the contents of the report and the assurance it provides 
as part of the council’s Annual Governance Statement. 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 To summarise the council’s complaints and LGO cases for the period 1 April 2011 to 
31 March 2012. 

1.2 To discuss the LGO’s Annual Review Letter to the council, a copy of which can be 
found in Appendix 2. 

1.3 To assess the overall effectiveness of the council’s approach to complaints. 

 

2 Background information 

2.1 The LGO writes an individual Annual Review Letter to every council each year 
and has done so since 2003/04.  The current letter continues the trend of recent 
years in that it does not contain any critical comment on the council’s 
performance, although it draws attention to the council’s handling of one housing 
complaint, discussed in sections 3.20 - 3.21.  The letter’s accompanying overview 
of cases also indicates that four public reports about the council were issued 
during 2011/12, discussed in sections 3.12 - 3.19.  The LGO also issued a press 
release drawing local press attention to the Annual Letter for their local authority, 
discussed in section 3.19. 

2.2 The council has a complaints policy and procedure which has been in place for a 
number of years, co-ordinated by directorate customer relations officers.  The 
arrangements have three aims: i) to make it easy for people to complain to the 
council; ii) for the council to resolve complaints at the earliest stage possible; and 
iii) for the council to learn lessons from complaints to prevent them from recurring.  
The council operates a two stage complaints process.  At the first stage 
complaints are dealt with by an officer or manager from the service complained 
about, who investigates the issues raised, looks to resolve them and responds to 
the customer within the relevant timescale.  

2.3 Should the customer remain dissatisfied after this stage, they can take their 
complaint to the second stage of the complaints process.  At the second stage, a 
more senior officer will investigate and respond to the customer’s concerns.  The 
officer will look at how the original complaint was dealt with and also respond to 
any further issues that the customer may have raised. Adult Social Care and 

Page 6



 

 

 

Children’s Social Care have separate statutory procedures, and East North East 
and West North West Homes ALMOs have a third stage. 

2.4 A customer who progresses to the final stage of our complaints policy is advised 
in our response of their right to take their complaint to the LGO’s office should 
they remain dissatisfied with the outcome.  The LGO advises customers to go 
through all stages of an authority’s complaints procedure before investigating a 
complaint (see persistent complaints in section 3.7). 

2.5 When investigating a complaint, if there is fault, the earlier it is identified and 
addressed, the more cost effective the process is.  LGO cases have resource 
implications as we should have resolved the issue earlier, but also have financial 
implications as the LGO has the authority to impose financial settlements.  All 
cases of local settlement are reported to the Customer Strategy Board to ensure 
that lessons are learnt across the council. 

 

3 Main issues 

3.1 This report covers the following issues relating to the LGO Annual Review Letter 
and summary: 

• Overview of complaints to the council; 

• Patterns and trends of LGO enquiries and complaints; 

• Summary of the four LGO formal reports;  

• Overview of the case highlighted by the LGO; and 

• Assessment of the effectiveness of the council’s overall approach to 
complaints. 
 

Overview of complaints to the council 

3.2 LGO complaints are a very small proportion of complaints which are made to the 
council each year, summarised in Appendix 1.  In 2011/12 the council received 
6,073 stage one complaints with 415 (6.9% of all complaints) progressed to the 
second stage of our complaints process.  Of those, 292 people (4.9% of all 
complaints) complained to the LGO, of which 107 (1.7%) were investigated and 
four (0.1% of all complaints) found fault in a formal report. 

3.3 In July 2012 an annual report on 2011/12 compliments, complaints and LGO 
cases was presented to the council’s Customer Strategy Board, details of which 
are summarised in Appendix 1.  As part of the annual report process, all directors 
are required to provide feedback on any trends in complaints identified over the 
year and what actions were taken to address them, with particular attention given 
to cases where the council has been instructed to make a payment.  This process 
is important in delivering one of our objectives in relation to learning from 
complaints. 

 

Patterns and trends of LGO enquiries and complaints 

3.4 The summary, including an overview of other enquiries which were not 
investigated, is provided as Appendix 3.  Members should note that the number 

Page 7



 

 

 

of investigations carried out during 2011/12 (140 = 19 resubmitted and 121 new) 
is different from the number of the decisions made (164), owing to the number of 
investigations which start in one council year and end in a different council year.  
The number of decisions also includes complaints that the LGO have not 
investigated because the subject is outside of the LGO’s jurisdiction. 

3.5 During 2011/12, the LGO investigated 107 enquiries and complaints, reporting on 
four cases where fault was found with the council, see sections 3.12 – 3.19 below.  
Of the remaining 103 cases, the LGO found no evidence of fault in 60 cases; the 
injustice was remedied during the investigation in 30 cases, and found minor 
injustice in 13 cases.  The average number of days taken by the council to 
respond to an investigation is 26.5 calendar days, continuing the council’s record 
of performing better than the 28 calendar day standard set by the LGO.  The 
number of decisions in 2011/12 (164) changed only slightly on the previous year 
(165).  There has however been a reduction (from 76 to 49) in the number of 
cases where the LGO has provided advice or clarification, but not investigated, 
and a fall in the number of cases where the complaint is resubmitted to the LGO. 

3.6 The LGO received around the same number of enquiries and complaints about 
the council in 2011/12 (292) as it did the previous year (299).  This figure includes 
premature complaints, which has doubled from 52 to 103.  There is no apparent 
reason for the increase in premature complaints.  The council will, together with 
the LGO, monitor this trend in the current financial year. 

3.7 In relation to local settlement themes, a number of recent cases have highlighted 
the importance of accurate record keeping, particularly to evidence what officers 
consider when they make key decisions and that they have given appropriate and 
due regard to material considerations.  This has been highlighted about several 
cases received during 2011/12 including Planning, Council Tax and Children’s 
and Young People’s services. 

3.8 The LGO also asked the council this year to consider its processes about 
informing customers about a right of appeal.  In one case the LGO advised the 
council of the danger of ‘getting too enmeshed in the structure of a complaints 
procedure where resolution can only be achieved elsewhere’.  In two other cases 
involving separate council services, the council failed to notify a customer of their 
appeal rights, in one case because the customer’s correspondence was treated 
as informal correspondence.  In all three cases the council accepted that the 
failure not to emphasise a right of appeal was its fault. 

3.9 The nature of complaints by service area is broadly similar to previous years, with 
around a third (31%, the same as last year) of all complaints being about Housing, 
although a slightly lower proportion of these become investigations (24%, 
compared to 23% last year).  The next highest service area is Education and 
Children’s Services, with 21% complaints (compared to 17% last year), and 27% 
investigations (compared to 26% last year). 

3.10 The number and value of LGO cases resulting in a financial local settlement has 
also reduced, and although not detailed in the report is summarised below: 

08/09 = 65 cases £67,867 

09/10 = 44 cases £16,575 

10/11 = 47 cases £25,481 

Page 8



 

 

 

11/12 = 35 cases £16,064 

The reduction in financial local settlements is again another indicator of a 
complaints process which is working well. 

 

Summary of the four LGO public reports 

3.11 The LGO summary notes that the council received four public reports during 
2011/12, the first such reports the council has received since 2007.  A public 
report is issued when the LGO has carried out an investigation into a complaint 
and found sufficient maladministration causing injustice to consider that their 
findings should be made public.  Public reports must be made available for a 
period of three weeks at two public access offices within the council and also on 
the council’s website.  A notice is put in two local papers to advise where the 
reports can be viewed. 

3.12 The reports detail four cases where the LGO had written a report, finding the 
council (and in one case other agencies) at fault of maladministration causing 
injustice.  

3.13 Cases 1 and 2 concerned the needs of a severely disabled child, where for a 
significant proportion of the school week, the council failed to provide adequate 
care and education.  The LGO also found the council at fault for failing to assess 
the child’s needs and those of her family, and for failing to provide adequate 
respite care.  

3.14 Case 3 involved the council’s duties as a corporate parent to safeguard and 
promote the welfare and educational attainment for the complainant’s foster son, 
who is a looked after child.  The failures continued over a long period despite the 
complainant making frequent and persistent representations, and as a result 
doing more than would be expected of a foster parent. 

3.15 The LGO issued a public report on cases 1, 2 and 3 on 1 July 2011.  The director 
of children’s services subsequently presented a report on all 3 cases to the 
council’s Executive Board on 7 September 2011.  In presenting the report, the 
chair and the board conveyed their unreserved apologies for the service which the 
children involved and their families had received. In addition, tribute was paid to 
the families for their resilience and determination throughout the process. The 
Director of Children’s Services also took the opportunity to outline the actions 
which had been and continued to be taken to ensure that such instances of 
maladministration did not occur again. 

3.16 Case 4 involved Adult Social Care and Leeds Joint Care Management Team 
about actions taken regarding the complainant’s mother who had been discharged 
into residential care.  The LGO found maladministration in preventing the 
complainant from seeing her mother between 19 December 2008 and 02 
February 2009, and for failing to review the situation after any of the nine contacts 
from the complainant. 

3.17 The council received the public report for case 4 on 29 November 2011, following 
which the directorate submitted a report to the council’s Executive Board on 4 
January 2012.  In presenting the report, the board and the Chief Executive 
conveyed their full and unreserved apologies to the family concerned for the 
service which they had received.  In addition, the board acknowledged the swift 

Page 9



 

 

 

and positive actions taken by both the council and Leeds Community Healthcare 
NHS Trust following receipt of the complaint.  Tributes were also paid to the 
invaluable work which continued to be undertaken throughout the city within the 
area of Adult Social Care.  The board also noted that this case dated back as far 
as 2008 and that since then the council has provided a significant training 
programme to workers in the areas of safeguarding vulnerable adults and the 
Mental Capacity Act. 

3.18 These cases have involved the input of the Director of Adult Social Care and the 
Director of Children’s Services, discussion at Executive Board, and has involved a 
thorough lessons learned exercise to prevent future problems from happening.  

 

Overview of the case highlighted by the LGO in the annual letter 

3.19 The LGO’s letter made reference to a specific case which the LGO wanted to 
draw the council’s attention.  The LGO did not specify why this particular case had 
been singled out, or that they were expecting any further action to be taken in this 
case.  Members may recall that The Yorkshire Evening Post printed this story on 
Saturday 14 July 2012.  New arrangements have been put in place to ensure that 
the council’s Communications Team are appropriately briefed on receipt of the 
Annual Review Letter. 

3.20 In November 2011 the LGO made enquiries of the council regarding a case where 
the council had mishandled a family’s rent arrangements, and over several 
months missed many opportunities to correct the problem.  The council accepted 
that they had failed to properly investigate the rent arrears which led to the council 
issuing the tenant with a notice of seeking possession.  In recognition of the 
distress caused, the council wrote to the LGO to offer to pay the tenant £500 plus 
a further £95 in decoration vouchers.  The LGO accepted the council’s 
recommended remedy and closed the case on 20 February 2012. 

3.21 A thorough lessons learned exercise has been undertaken to prevent future 
problems from happening and has identified a number of actions to be 
implemented.  This includes a commitment to review internal procedures and brief 
staff on any changes in process.  The service also recognised the importance of 
accurate record keeping on ICT systems and has taken steps to improve visibility 
across teams and services.  

 

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 As this report is providing the committee with information on past performance 
with regards to LGO cases, no consultation or engagement has been sought. 
 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 The LGO has not highlighted any issues regarding Equality, Diversity, Cohesion 
or integration in the Annual Letter for 2011/12. 

 

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

Page 10



 

 

 

4.3.1 The LGO has not raised any issues that would impact on council priorities or city 
priorities. 
 

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 Complaints are free feedback from our customers on what we could or should do 
better.  Any officer in the council who has service specialist knowledge can and 
will be called upon to investigate and respond to customer complaints as part of 
their daily duties.  In doing so, if they identify and implement service 
improvements, it will ensure that we provide a better service in the future, and as 
section 2.5 stated, the earlier the problem is addressed, the more cost effective is 
the complaints process.  

 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 As this report is providing an update on past performance relating to LGO cases 
dealt with during 2011/12, it does not have any legal implications.  None of the 
information enclosed is deemed to be sensitive or requesting decision and 
therefore raises no issues for access to information or call in. 
 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 As this report is providing an update on past performance relating to LGO cases 
dealt with during 2011/12, there are no significant risks identified by this report. 
 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 In previous years the Annual Review Letter has provided the council with valuable 
feedback as to the LGO’s view on our performance during the previous year. The 
letter does not comment on our performance, but highlights one case where fault 
was found against the council and a local settlement agreed.  The letter also 
states that the LGO knows that ‘the council has a good process for learning from 
complaints to avoid problems recurring.’  

5.2 This report has described the general arrangements in place for responding to 
complaints made by the public.  It has also described how in practice the council 
seeks to make it easy for people to complain to the council, to resolve customer 
complaints at an early stage and to learn lessons from the issues raised through 
complaints.  

5.3 The report has identified the three key objectives in relation to complaints 
handling are to make it easy for people to complain, to resolve complaints at an 
early stage and to ensure that lessons are learnt from complaints.  The 
information detailed in this report enables the council to give assurance that the 
current system is fit for purpose in this respect, and this provides assurance that 
complaints are operating as intended. 

 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Members are asked to consider the issues raised in LGO Annual Review Letter 
and the further contextual information provided. 

Page 11



 

 

 

6.2 Members are asked to note the contents of the report and the assurance it 
provides as part of the council’s Annual Governance Statement. 

 

7 Background documents 

Page 12



 

 

Appendix 1 Summary of complaints to Leeds City Council 2011-12 
 
Volume of complaints 
The volume of complaints has fallen to its lowest level over the past five years.  The number of 
complaints at both stages 1 & 2 of the complaints procedure fell considerably from previous years.  
Stage 1 complaints fell by 23% from 7,870 to 6,073 across the council (including ALMOs).  Stage 2 
complaints also fell by a similar rate over the previous year, and while the number of Local 
Government Ombudsman (LGO) decisions remained constant at 164, the number where fault 
found has reduced from 47 last year to 38 this year.  
 
Table 1 - Overview of Performance 

 
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Complaints - Stage 1 6,466 7,632 7,496 7,870 6,073 

Complaints - Stage 2 314 523 529 534 415 

LGO cases received 183 170 172 165 164 

Complaints response within standard 63% 72% 79% 86% 77% 

 
Effectiveness of complaint handling 
Useful measures of the effectiveness of our complaint handling are:  

• percentage of complaints that are escalated to stage 2 (7% 2011/12, the same as 2010/11); 

• amount of financial settlement agreed by the LGO (£16,064 2011/12, down on £25,481 
2010/11; and 

• % of cases where fault found by the LGO (23% 2011/12, the same as 2010/11). 
 

These indicators point to how effectively we handle complaints at the earliest opportunity, 
particularly where we do not need to have the LGO intervene.  While the proportion of complaints 
escalated to stage 2 has remained constant, the overall volume has reduced, and the LGO has 
found fault in 23% of cases received. 

 
This continues to reflect an improvement as the number of cases investigated fell, as did the 
number of LGO cases where fault found, from 47 in 2010/11 to 38 in 2011/12. 

 
Responsiveness to customers 
Overall, the % responses within standard has fallen to 77% against a target of 95%.  This is 
somewhat disappointing, and possibly reflects a tightening of resources.  The ALMOs and 
Customer Access & Performance have performed very well and met the target of 15 working days 
to respond to customer complaints at stage 1.  Other areas are close (within 10%) to meeting the 
corporate target: Belle Isle TMO, Children’s Services, City Development, and Resources.  
However, significant performance improvements are needed in the following areas: 

• Adult Social Care (79%) 

• Children’s Social care (55%) 

• Former Corporate Governance services (77%) 

• Environment & Neighbourhoods (53%) 
 
Responses to the LGO remain within the agreed timescales. 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



 

/.... 

22 June 2012 
 
 
 
Mr T Riordan 
Chief Executive 
Leeds City Council 
Ground Floor West Gate 
6 Grace Street 
LEEDS      LS1 2RP 
 
 
 
 
Dear Mr Riordan 
 
Annual Review Letter 

 
I am writing with our annual summary of statistics on the complaints made to me about your 
authority for the year ended 31 March 2012. I hope the information set out in the enclosed tables 
will be useful to you. 
 
The statistics include the number of enquiries and complaints received by our Advice Team, the 
number forwarded by the Advice Team to my office, and decisions made on complaints about your 
authority. The decision descriptions have been changed to more closely follow the wording in our 
legislation and to give greater precision. Our guidance on statistics provides further explanation 
(see our website).  
 
The statistics also show the time taken by your authority to respond to written enquiries. 
 
I want to draw the Council's attention to one particular case.  The Council offered a house to a 
woman with a disabled husband and three children.  She accepted the offer and gave notice to her 
private landlord expecting to move into the new property by Christmas 2010.   
 
There were various delays caused by events outside the Council's control.  It arranged to do work 
that was needed at the end of March 2011. It finally removed the steel shutters and gave the 
woman the keys on 14 April.  She moved in on 21 April. 
 
Even before she moved in the Council wrote saying she was in arrears with rent for the property.  It 
said she owed rent from 21 March to 13 April (she paid the rent from 14 April) and continued to 
demand payment for the next six months, ignoring letters from her and her Outreach Support 
worker. This was particularly worrying for the woman as she had an introductory tenancy and 
feared that she would lose her home because of the claimed arrears. 
 
On 4 November the Council issued a notice seeking possession but cancelled the court hearing 
when my investigation began.  It then agreed to amend the rent account to remove the claimed 
arrears and told the woman on 17 January. 
 

Page 15



 
 
Page 2 
Mr T Riordan 
 

 

Officers accepted that the Council had been wrong to claim the rent was in arrears and had missed 
many chances to put things right.  They agreed to pay the woman £500 in recognition of her time, 
trouble and distress in pursuing the complaint and another about repairs. 
 
I know the Council has a good process for learning from complaints to avoid problems recurring.  I 
hope it has been applied to this complaint.  
 
Changes to our role 
 
I am also pleased to have this opportunity to update you on changes to our role. Since April 2010 
we have been exercising jurisdiction over the internal management of schools on a pilot basis in 14 
local authority areas. This was repealed in the Education Act 2011 and the power restored to the 
Secretary of State for Education. During the short period of the pilot we believe we have had a 
positive impact on the way in which schools handle complaints. This was endorsed by independent 
research commissioned by the Department for Education which is available on their website.  
 
Our jurisdiction will end in July 2012 and all complaints about internal school matters will be 
completed by 31 January 2013.  
 
From April 2013, as a result of the Localism Act 2011, local authority tenants will take complaints 
about their landlord to the Independent Housing Ombudsman (IHO). We are working with the IHO 
to ensure a smooth transition that will include information for local authority officers and members. 
 
Supporting good local public administration  
 
We launched a new series of Focus reports during 2011/12 to develop our role in supporting good 
local public administration and service improvement. They draw on the learning arising from our 
casework in specific service areas. Subjects have included school admissions, children out of 
school, homelessness and use of bankruptcy powers. The reports describe good practice and 
highlight what can go wrong and the injustice caused. They also make recommendations on 
priority areas for improvement.  
 
We were pleased that a survey of local government revenue officers provided positive feedback on 
the bankruptcy focus report. Some 85% said they found it useful.  
 
In July 2011, we also published a report with the Centre for Public Scrutiny about how complaints 
can feed into local authority scrutiny and business planning arrangements.  
 
We support local complaint resolution as the most speedy route to remedy. Our training 
programme on effective complaint handling is an important part of our work in this area. In 2011/12 
we delivered 76 courses to councils, reaching 1,230 individual learners.  
 
We have developed our course evaluation to measure the impact of our training more effectively. It 
has shown that 87% of learners gained new skills and knowledge to help them improve complaint-
handling practice, 83% made changes to complaint-handling practice after training, and 73% said 
the improvements they made resulted in greater efficiency. 
 
Further details of publications and training opportunities are on our website. 
 

Page 16



 
 
Page 3 
Mr T Riordan 
 

 

Publishing decisions 
 
Following consultation with councils, we are planning to launch an open publication scheme during 
the next year where we will be publishing on our website the final decision statements on all 
complaints. Making more information publicly available will increase our openness and 
transparency, and enhance our accountability.  
 
Our aim is to provide a comprehensive picture of complaint decisions and reasons for councils and 
the public. This will help inform citizens about local services and create a new source of 
information on maladministration, service failure and injustice.  
 
We will publish a copy of this annual review with those of all other English local authorities on our 
website on 12 July 2012. This will be the same day as publication of our Annual Report 2011/12 
where you will find further information about our work. 
 
We always welcome feedback from councils and would be pleased to receive your views. If it 
would be helpful, I should be pleased to arrange a meeting for myself or a senior manager to 
discuss our work in more detail.  
 
Yours sincerely 

 
Anne Seex 
Local Government Ombudsman 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



!
"
#
$
%&
$
'
()
"
*+
(,
&*
-
.
"
*(
&/
&!
-
-
0
1
&2
+(
,
&2

3"
*&
()
-
&.
-
*+
"
0
&/
&4
5
64
7
68
4
5
5
!(
"
&9
5
64
9
68
4
5
8
!

:
0
'
%(
&2
$
*-
&

;
-
*<
+#
-
1

=
-
>
-
3+
(1
&?
&@
$
A

2
"
*.
"
*$
(-
&?
&

B
()
-
*&
;
-
*<
+#
-
1

C
0
'
#
$
(+
"
>
&?
&

2
)
+%
0
*-
>
1
&

;
-
*<
+#
-
1

C
>
<
+*
"
>
D
-
>
($
%&

;
-
*<
+#
-
1
&?
&

E
'
F
%+
#
&

E
*"
(-
#
(+
"
>
&?
&

G
-
H
'
%$
(+
"
>

I
+H
)
J
$
,
1
&?
&

@
*$
>
1
.
"
*(

I
"
'
1
+>
H

E
%$
>
>
+>
H
&?
&

K
-
<
-
%"
.
D
-
>
(

@
"
($
%

:
0
<
+#
-
&H
+<
-
>

L
8

7
5
8

9
9

5
M

5
7
M

E
*-
D
$
('
*-
&

#
"
D
.
%$
+>
(1

N
5
8

5
5
5

8
8

8
9
O

5
4

5
4
9

P
"
*J
$
*0
-
0
&(
"
&

Q>
<
-
1
(+
H
$
(+
<
-
&(
-
$
D
&

R*
-
1
'
F
D
+(
(-
0
S

4
8

4
5

T
4

N
8

5
M

P
"
*J
$
*0
-
0
&(
"
&

Q>
<
-
1
(+
H
$
(+
<
-
&(
-
$
D
&

R>
-
J
S

O
O

7
9
O

5
L

O
8
T

5
N

5
8
5

@
"
($
%

8
4

8
9

M
T
5

7
T

5
8

M
4

9
5

8
M
8

C
>
U
'
+*
+-
1
&$
>
0
&

#
"
D
.
%$
+>
(1
&*
-
#
-
+<
-
0

!
V
B
&$
0
<
+#
-
&(
-
$
D

Q>
<
-
1
(+
H
$
(+
<
-
&(
-
$
D
&/
&K
-
#
+1
+"
>
1

W
"
(&
+>
<
-
1
(+
H
$
(-
0

Q>
<
-
1
(+
H
$
(-
0

G
-
.
"
*(

@
"
($
%

W
"
&.
"
J
-
*&
("
&

+>
<
-
1
(+
H
$
(-

W
"
&*
-
$
1
"
>
&(
"
&'
1
-
&

-
A
#
-
.
(+
"
>
$
%&
.
"
J
-
*&
("
&

+>
<
-
1
(+
H
$
(-

Q>
X'
1
(+
#
-
&*
-
D
-
0
+-
0
&

0
'
*+
>
H
&-
>
U
'
+*
+-
1

W
"
(&
-
>
"
'
H
)
&

-
<
+0
-
>
#
-
&"
3&
3$
'
%(

W
"
&"
*&
D
+>
"
*&

+>
X'
1
(+
#
-
&?
&B
()
-
*

&O
&L

&T
4

&9
4

&5
9

&5
T
7

Q>
<
-
1
(+
H
$
(+
"
>
&>
"
(&

X'
1
(+
3+
-
0
&?
&B
()
-
*

&7
L

&7

&9
L

&8
T
YL

W
"
&"
3&
3+
*1
(&
-
>
U
'
+*
+-
1

:
<
H
&>
"
&"
3&
0
$
,
1
&(
"
&*
-
1
.
"
>
0

G
-
1
.
"
>
1
-
&(
+D
-
1
&

("
&3
+*
1
(&
-
>
U
'
+*
+-
1

"
#
$
%
!&
!'
(!
&

)
%
%
*
+
!,
-.
/
!,

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of  Director of Resources 

Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 

Date: 28th September 2012 

Subject: Decision Making Framework; Annual Assurance Report 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. This is the annual report to the committee concerning the Council’s decision making 
arrangements, the report does not cover Planning matters as these have been the 
subject of a previous report to the committee  from the Chief Planning Officer, nor does 
it consider the arrangements for Licensing decisions taken by officers.. 

2. From the review, assessment and ongoing monitoring carried out and supported by the 
work undertaken by Internal Audit, the Head of Governance Services has reached the 
opinion that, overall, decision making systems are operating soundly and that there are 
no fundamental control weaknesses or, where shortfalls in compliances have been 
identified, the Head of Governance Services has been assured by Directors that robust 
action plans are in place for these to be rectified 

3. The report also provides details of amendments made to the decision making 
framework at the Annual Council Meeting on 21st May 2012, steps taken to embed 
these changes, and additional changes to the Council’s decision making arrangements 
arising from the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (England) Regulations 
2012 . 

Recommendations 

4. Members are requested to consider and note the positive assurances provided in this 
report. 

 Report author:  Kate Sadler 

Tel:  0113 39 51711 

Agenda Item 8

Page 21



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This is the annual report to the committee concerning the Council’s Decision 
Making Arrangements, the report does not cover Planning matters as these have 
been the subject of a previous report to the committee  from the Chief Planning 
Officer, nor does it consider the arrangements for Licensing decisions taken by 
officers. 

1.2 The report also provides details of amendments made to the decision making 
framework at the Annual Council Meeting on 21st May 2012, steps taken to embed 
these changes, and additional changes to the Council’s decision making 
arrangements arising from the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(England) Regulations 2012. 

1.3 This report provides one of the sources of assurance which the Committee is able 
to take into account when considering the approval of the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

2 Background information 

Decision Making Framework 

2.1 The Council’s decision making framework comprises of the systems and 
processes through which decision making is directed and controlled.  Whilst a 
number of these systems and processes are put in place in direct response to 
primary and secondary legislation, others reflect the implementation of locally 
adopted definitions and choices made to ensure maximum transparency and 
accountability within Council practice and procedure. 

2.2 The principal systems and processes are set out in the Council’s Constitution as 
follows; 

Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution 

2.2.1 Article 1 (describing the powers and purpose of the Council and the purpose of 
the constitution), Article 3 describing the rights of Citizens (for example rights to 
attend meetings, rights in respect of the forward plan, access to information 
regarding decisions), Article 4 – the budget and policy framework of the Authority, 
Article 6 the role of function of Scrutiny Boards, Article 7 the role, form and 
composition of the Executive, Articles 8-10 describing the role, function and 
membership requirements of committees and Article 13 (which describes 
requirements relating to decision making); 

Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions 

2.2.2 The responsibility for Council, Local Choice and Executive functions and how 
these have been delegated to committees and officers.  (Each Director 
documents how these functions are discharged within their directorate by making 
and maintaining a sub delegation scheme.) 

 

 

Page 22



 

 

Part 4 – Procedure Rules 

2.2.3 Rules in relation to the decision making processes, amongst others, and include 
those relating to; 

• Full Council  

• The Executive 

• Scrutiny 

• Area Committees 

• Access to Information 

• Budget and Policy Framework 

Part 5 - Codes and Protocols 

2.2.4 Codes of conduct for members and officers (specifically arrangements for 
members and officers to register and declare relevant interests) and protocols 
describing the respective roles of members and officers in decision making. 

2.3 In addition to these documented processes there are a number of Statutory 
Officers appointed to ensure that the Council acts within its powers and budgets.  
Of particular relevance to decision making are:- 

The Head of Paid Service 

2.3.1 In Leeds the Chief Executive, responsible for ensuring that the Council appoints 
and directs a staff compliment sufficient to ensure that it can fulfil its functions. 

The Monitoring Officer 

2.3.2 In Leeds the City Solicitor, responsible for ensuring that the Council acts at all 
times within its legal authority. 

The Chief Finance Officer 

2.3.3 Also known as the Section 151 Officer, in Leeds the Deputy Chief Executive and 
Director of Resources, responsible for ensuring that the Council acts at all times 
within its financial capacity. 

Monitoring 

2.4 A number of systems are in place to monitor compliance with and to assess the 
effectiveness of the decision making framework. 

2.4.1 In particular the Head of Governance Services monitors arrangements in respect 
of:- 

• Delegation and sub delegation arrangements; 

• Forward Plan; 

• The use of Special Urgency Provisions; 

• Call In; and 

• Publication of agendas, delegated decisions and committee minutes. 
 

Page 23



 

 

3 Main issues 

3.1 The Head of Governance Services has responsibility to ensure that the Council’s 
decision making arrangements are up to date, fit for purpose, effectively 
communicated, routinely complied with and monitored.   

3.2 This report provides assurance to the committee on the decision making 
framework set out and summarised in section two above. 

Amendments to the Decision Making Framework 

3.3 During the course of any municipal year it is necessary to review and amend the 
Constitution in order to implement changing legislation and to ensure that it 
remains an accurate reflection of practice and procedure within the Council.  
These changes take place in accordance with Article 15 of the Constitution.  Any 
amendments made by the Monitoring Officer in the 2011/12 Municipal Year were 
recorded as Significant Operational Decisions and published on the Council’s web 
site, amendments made by the Leader of Council or Executive Board were 
reported to the next available meeting of the Council, and decisions to be taken by 
Full Council were first considered by the General Purposes Committee in order 
that recommendations could be made. 

3.4 In addition an annual review of the Constitution takes place in order to ensure that 
the Constitution is up to date and fit for purpose.  The review which took place in 
the 2011/12 Municipal Year, was supported by an intention by the Director of 
Resources to reduce unnecessary bureaucracy within the authority.  Amendments 
were proposed, and Members consulted extensively, which sought to ensure 
greater opportunity for Members to engage with the decision making process, to 
speed the implementation of decisions made by Members in Area Committee, and 
to simplify the processes around decision making for officers. 

Categories of Decisions 

3.5 The Council is required by law to determine thresholds; in relation to the financial 
implications and in relation to impact upon the communities living and working in 
its area, above which a decision will be classified as a Key Decision.  These 
thresholds have been amended to incorporate the existing £250,000 financial 
threshold, and to widen the impact threshold to include decisions which have a 
significant effect upon communities living and working in an area including one 
ward. 

3.6 Having reduced the impact threshold for Key Decisions, Council approved the 
removal of the ‘Major’ category of decisions from the decision making framework, 
as those with a significant community impact are now included in the definition of 
a Key Decision. 

3.7 The statutory position is that all other decisions are administrative.  However there 
remains a view in Leeds that there are some decisions which have to be 
exempted from the definition of a Key decision for practical reasons but which 
nevertheless should be subject to a requirement to record, and similarly that there 
are decisions which need to be recorded to increase transparency and confidence 
in the Council’s decision making.  In Leeds these decisions are defined as 
Significant Operation Decisions. 

Page 24



 

 

New Regulations 

3.8 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (England) Regulations 2012 were 
made on 10th August 2012 and came into effect on 10th September 2012.  These 
regulations will necessitate a number of amendments to the Council’s existing 
decision making framework.   

3.9 The regulations alter the existing decision making framework by requiring the 
extension of some existing provisions either in terms of the length of notice given, 
or in terms of the categories of decisions to which provisions apply.  However, 
they also remove some existing requirements.   

3.10 As a result of the new regulations the Council will no longer be required to 
maintain a Forward Plan.  However, following consultation with General Purposes 
Committee, it is considered that the Forward Plan provides a helpful mechanism 
by which to gather together details of all proposed Key decisions and it is 
therefore intended that the plan will continue to be published. 

3.11 The new regulations require that 28 days notice of any Key decision is given prior 
to that decision being made.  It is this notice which will now provide the content for 
the Forward Plan.  As the regulations no longer prescribe a date by which the 
Forward Plan will be published each month it will be possible to amend it as and 
when necessary to ensure that all Key Decisions are included.  Whilst it is 
intended that the Forward Plan will still be published on a rolling basis with each 
plan to cover a four month period, it will now be possible to amend each plan in 
‘real time’.   

3.12 The Head of Governance Services is of the view that this will minimise the risk of 
any Key decision having to be taken which is not on the Forward Plan other than 
in cases of genuine urgency, when the General Exception and Special Urgency 
provisions will still apply. 

3.13 There is a new requirement to give notice of the reasons for using either the 
General Exception or Special Urgency provisions.  Whilst this has been part of the 
adopted practices in Leeds for some time, the Council has not previously made 
provision for such notice in relation to Key decisions to be taken by Executive 
Board.  This requirement will be met by ensuring that each relevant report 
contains the reasons for making the decision without the required period of notice.   

3.14 The Senior Governance Officer responsible for clerking Executive Board will take 
the lead on implementing these new arrangements and will also highlight on the 
agenda for each Executive Board meeting which, if any, of the decisions to be 
made are subject to the General Exception or Special Urgency provisions. 

3.15 In place of the requirement upon the Leader to submit quarterly reports to the 
authority in relation to decisions taken under the Special Urgency provisions, is a 
requirement that the Leader should submit at least one such report annually.  It is 
considered that this Annual Report to Corporate Governance and Audit 
Committee is an appropriate mechanism for that information to be reported on the 
Leader of Council’s behalf1. 

                                            
1
 For 2011/12 this is contained within paragraph 3.38 of this report 

Page 25



 

 

3.16 The regulations appear to require the formal recording and publication of all 
Executive Decisions.  This would include those decisions currently categorised as 
Administrative and not subject to any formal control.  The Head of Governance 
Services is seeking clarification from DCLG in this regard, as the resource 
implications to publish all administrative decisions would be considerable. 

Embedding the Decision Making Framework  

3.17 Following the amendments to the decision making framework, made at the Annual 
Council Meeting on 21st May 2012, the Head of Governance Services arranged a 
news item on the Council’s portal.  This information (which linked to the details of 
the new arrangements) was therefore available to all officers with computer 
access across the authority for a period in excess of 1 month. 

3.18 In addition to this the Head of Governance Services arranged to brief Directorate 
Management Teams across the Council.  A briefing on the changes was 
presented at individual DMT meetings during the month of June. 

3.19 The Head of Governance Services also offers a training package in relation to the 
decision making framework through the Council’s corporate learning offer, the 
most recent version of which has been attended by approximately 400 officers, 
many of which have been prioritised for training due to their significant role in the 
Council’s decision making and wider governance arrangements.   

3.20 Directors are encouraged to identify, through the appraisal and induction 
processes any officer in need of the training and to support their application to 
attend.   

3.21 Given the changes to the decision making framework which came into effect in 
May 2012, training has been supplemented over the summer months with an 
update briefing for those officers who have previously attended the full training 
seminar or who are working in this area.   

3.22 The Head of Governance Services intends to provide a full briefing note to each 
Directorate to be made available to all Officers involved in the decision making 
process in order to advise them of changes consequential upon the new 
regulations. 

3.23 In addition to this the Head of Governance Services is seeking to provide a full 
day training package which will incorporate aspects of decision making together 
with finance and procurement, thus enabling officers to explore the processes and 
procedures in place in the context of decisions that are made on a regular basis 
across the authority.  Directors and their colleagues have also indicated that such 
provision will be useful to them in furthering their knowledge and their ability to 
embed the various requirements into their decision making practice. 

3.24 Governance Services Staff continue to provide support in relation to the decision 
making framework through the recording and publication of decisions, the 
monitoring of decisions (including use of provisions such as General Exception 
and Special Urgency), and advice on exempt and confidential information and 
guidance to Members on declaration and registration of interests. 

 

Page 26



 

 

Performance Monitoring 

3.25 To provide a test of the extent to which the council’s arrangements are routinely 
complied with a suite of performance indicators have been established.  These 
are explored further below.  In order to ensure continuity of reporting to the 
Committee these statistics cover the period from June 2011 to August 2012. 

Publication of Agendas 

3.26 The Council is required to publish agendas and reports for committees five clear 
working days in advance of a meeting.  This requirement is contained within 
Section 100B of the Local Government Act 1972 for Council Committees and in 
the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012 for Executive committees.  Both pieces of legislation also 
contain exception provisions for meetings to be called at short notice.    

3.27 The Head of Governance Service has established a target for 99% of agendas to 
be issued and published within the five day statutory deadline2; this being a 
reasonable measure of timely transparency and an indication of the extent to 
which exception provisions are utilised to call meetings at short notice.   

3.28 Of 384 meetings which took place within the reporting period covered by this 
report, 13 agendas were not issued within the 5 clear day deadline.  2 of these 
were meetings which were called at short notice, and their agendas were issued 
in compliance with the relevant rules.  Of the remainder 5 agendas were issued 
on time and statutory notice was therefore given, but, for a variety of reasons, 
electronic publication to the Council’s website was delayed.  In such 
circumstances the Head of Governance Services took steps to ensure the 
publication took place as soon as possible thereafter 

3.29 Overall this gives a performance of 97% of agendas published within the required 
notice period.  This is slight improvement on the 3 previous years which show 
performance indicators as follows:- 

2009 96% 
2010 95% 
2011 96% 
2012 97% 

Publication of Minutes 

3.30 There is no statutory framework stipulating the time period for the publication of 
committee minutes.  To enable the decisions of the Council to be accessible and 
transparent the Head of Governance Service has established a local target; this 
being for 100% of draft minutes to be published on the Council’s internet site 
within ten working days. 

3.31 In addition, to enable speed of implementation and facilitate Call In, all Executive 
Board minutes are published within 48 hours of the Executive Board meeting. 

                                            
2
 Licensing Sub Committee’s are not bound by these statutory requirements but, for completeness, are 
included in the monitoring information. 

Page 27



 

 

3.32 Of 384 committee meetings which have taken place within the period covered by 
this report, 15 sets of draft minutes were published outside the deadline.  This 
gives a performance indicator of 96% draft minutes published within the required 
period. 

3.33 This continues the standard set in the 3 previous years which show performance 
indicators as follows:- 

2009 83% 
2010 96% 
2011 96% 
2012 96% 

Key Decisions on the Forward Plan 

3.34 As previously outlined in this report Regulations exist which set out the statutory 
framework for how Key decisions are taken.  A significant element of this are 
requirements concerning the pre-notification of an intention to take a Key 
decision. - the purpose being to seek to ensure transparency and allow 
representations from stakeholders etc.   

3.35 To measure effectiveness the Council Business Plan contains a target for 89% of 
Key decisions to have appeared in the Forward Plan. 

3.36 During the period covered by this report of 269 Key decisions taken 18 were not 
on the Forward Plan.  This gives a performance indicator of 93% Key decisions on 
the Forward Plan.  Of these, 17 were decisions taken by Officers and 1 a decision 
of the Executive Board. 

3.37 This is an improvement on the 3 previous years which show performance 
indicators as follows:- 

2009 84 % 
2010 89% 
2011 84% 
2012 93% 

3.38 Each of these 18 decisions was taken in accordance with the general exception 
provisions contained in Regulations.  The Head of Governance Services is able to 
confirm that the Special Urgency Provisions, enabling an Executive Decision to be 
taken at less than 5 days notice, have not been used during this period. 

3.39 During the year Internal Audit identified two particular issues :- 

• Some decisions were included on the Forward plan but not taken on the date 
expected.  Failure to ‘slip’ these decisions onto the next Forward Plan 
resulted in their not being on the Forward Plan for the period in which the 
decision was eventually taken.  New systems and procedures have now been 
introduced which ensure that all decisions not yet taken are automatically 
slipped to the next Forward Plan period.   

 

Page 28



 

 

• There continue to be some decisions which fall within the definition of a Key 
Decision but which are not placed on the Forward Plan at any stage.  Internal 
Audit has recommended to Directors that budget holders identify any one off 
spends or aggregate spends which might trigger a requirement for a decision 
or group of decisions to be treated as Key. 

Eligible Decisions Open for Call In 

3.40 The Council has established arrangements for significant Executive decisions3 to 
be available for Call In.  This allows for Overview and Scrutiny Committees to 
request a decision, that has been taken, but not yet implemented, to be 
considered by the relevant Scrutiny Committee.  This mechanism is an important 
element of democratic accountability arrangements in place at Leeds.  Crucial to 
this is ensuring that the vast majority of these eligible decisions are available for 
Call In and are not exempted by the decision maker4.  The target established in 
the Council Business Plan is that 95% of eligible decisions should be open for Call 
In. 

3.41 Of 718 eligible decisions taken only 28 were not open for call in.  This gives a 
performance of 96% Key decisions being available for Call In. 

3.42 This is a decline on the 3 previous years which show performance indicators as 
follows:- 

2009 98% 
2010 99% 
2011 98% 
2012 96% 

3.43 Of the decisions which were not open for call in 19 were made by officers and 9 
by Executive Board.  In the reporting period all those decisions exempted from 
Call In were exempted on the grounds of urgency. 

Delegation of Functions 

3.44 The Constitution documents the delegation of Council and Executive functions to 
Officers.  In turn a framework has been established whereby those functions are 
sub delegated (normally by Directors) to other officers of the Council.  Delegated 
decisions are cross checked by Governance Services to ensure that decision 
takers have the necessary sub delegation to make those decisions.  These 
arrangements provide for transparency in terms of officer accountabilities.  In 
summary for 2012;- 

3.44.1 The practice of concurrent delegation of functions within the Constitution has 
ceased.  In contrast to 14 officers in the 2011/12 municipal year, there are now 
only 9 officers5 who receive delegations directly through the Constitution.   

                                            
3
 All decisions of Executive Board, all executive decisions of Area Committees (until 21

st
 May 2012) and all 

Key and Major decisions of officers are eligible for Call In. 
4
 Decisions can be exempted on the grounds of urgency (i.e. that any delay would seriously prejudice the 
Council’s or the public’s interests) or where the decision has been the subject of a previous Call In. 
5
 The Chief Executive, Assistant Chief Executive (Customer Access and Performance), Director of Adult Social Care, 
Director of Children’s Services, Director of City Development, Chief Planning Officer (those functions which would conflict 

Page 29



 

 

3.44.2 Each of the 9 officers who have functions delegated to them through the 
Constitution is required to make a new sub delegation scheme each municipal 
year to reflect the Executive Arrangements determined by the Leader (and those 
determined by Full Council concerning Council Functions).  

3.44.3 The Head of Governance Services has maintained a record of sub delegation 
schemes as they are made and amended by Directors and can confirm that each 
Director (or Chief Officer) with functions delegated to them through the 
Constitution made and reviewed their own sub delegation scheme in the 11/12 
Municipal Year.  In addition each of the 9 officers with delegations under the 12/13 
constitution had made a new sub delegation scheme by the end of May 2012. 

3.44.4 The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods and the Director of City 
Development have, in July, amended their schemes to reflect amendments made 
to their Delegations in year.  The City Solicitor has made amendments to her 
scheme to reflect custom and practice within her service.   

3.44.5 These amendments, which are publicised as Significant Operational Decisions, 
reflect the requirement that each scheme should contain an accurate 
representation of the way in which functions are carried out and the officers with 
authority to make decisions under the scheme.  In this way they ensure 
transparency of decision making within the Council in relation to both Council and 
Executive functions. 

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.6 The Council’s Performance Management Team monitor performance indicators in 
respect of consultation and engagement. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 The Council’s Performance Management Team monitor performance indicators in 
respect of equalities. 

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 The monitoring of City Priorities in relation to consultation and equalities are 
monitored and reported by the Council’s Performance Management Team. 

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 Given the assurances made by the Head of Governance Services as a result of 
the implementation and monitoring of the Council’s decision making framework it 
is considered that the systems and processes in place represent an appropriate 
use of resources and good value for money. 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                 
with the Director of City Development’s asset management functions only), Director of Environment and 
Neighbourhoods, Director of Resources and City Solicitor. 

Page 30



 

 

 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 The introduction of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (England) 
Regulations 2012 alters the legal requirements in relation to access to information 
and decision making.  The Head of Governance Services has responded to these 
new regulations by introducing amended processes which meet the requirements 
that the Regulations set out. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 The Head of Governance Services gives assurance that the systems and 
processes that form part of the Council’s decision making framework are 
functioning well and that there are no risks identified by this report. 

4.6.2 The Head of Governance Services will seek to ensure that new systems and 
processes introduced to meet the requirements of the new regulations are the 
subject of substantial guidance to officers, thus minimising any risk inherent in 
introducing amendments to familiar processes. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 From the review, assessment and ongoing monitoring carried out and supported 
by the work undertaken by Internal Audit the Head of Governance Services has 
reached the opinion that, overall, decision making systems are operating soundly 
and that there are no fundamental control weaknesses. 

5.2 Where shortfalls in compliances have been identified, the Head of Governance 
Services has received assurance from Directors that robust action plans are in 
place for these to be rectified. 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Members are requested to consider and note the positive assurances provided in 
this report. 

7 Background documents6  

7.1 None  

                                            
6
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of the Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 

Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 

Date: 28th September 2012 

Subject: Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. On behalf of the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee (‘the Committee’) and 
the Director or Resources and Deputy Chief Executive, Internal Audit acts as an 
assurance function providing an independent and objective opinion to the 
organisation on the entire control environment by evaluating its effectiveness in 
achieving the organisation’s objectives. It objectively examines, evaluates and 
reports on the adequacy of the control environment as a contribution to the proper, 
economic, efficient and effective use of resources.   

 
2. The terms of reference of the Committee require that it considers the Council’s 

arrangements relating to internal audit.  This specifically includes considering the 
annual report and the opinion on the control environment contained in that report 
and monitoring the performance of internal audit. 

 
3. The overall conclusion is that Leeds City Council has a sound Corporate 

Governance framework from which those charged with Governance can gain 
assurance.  Internal Audit has made a number of recommendations to further 
improve the systems of control but at the time of writing this report there are no 
outstanding significant issues arising from the work undertaken by Internal Audit.  
Audit coverage during the year has provided sufficient evidence to conclude that the 
key financial control systems are sound and that these controls continue to work 
well in practice. 

 

 Report author:  Neil Hunter 

Tel:  74214 

Agenda Item 9

Page 33



 

 

4. The proposed Internal Audit Operational Plan for 2012/13 is also included as part of 
this report. 

 

Recommendations 

5. The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to receive the Internal 
Audit Annual Report 2011/2012 report and note the assurances given. 

6. The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to note the Internal Audit 
Operational Plan for 2012/13. 

 

Page 34



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report brings to the attention of the Committee the basis of the internal audit 
assurance for 2011/12. 

 
1.2 The proposed Internal Audit Operational Plan for 2012/13 is also included as part of 

this report and has been challenged and agreed by the Director of Resources and 
Deputy Chief Executive. 

 
1.3 By reviewing, challenging and monitoring such reports the Committee itself is 

demonstrating sound governance arrangements and enabling it to take appropriate 
action if needed.  It should be noted that Internal Audit will also issue interim reports 
to the Committee if any significant matters arise which would warrant immediate 
attention. 

 
2 Background information 

2.1 The Committee has responsibility for reviewing the adequacy of the Council’s 
Corporate Governance arrangements. Reports issued by Internal Audit are a key 
source of assurance providing the Committee with some evidence that the internal 
control environment is operating as intended.   

 
3 Main issues 

3.1 The Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK 2006 states 
that the Head of Audit must provide a written report to those charged with 
governance timed to support the Statement on Internal Control (now the Annual 
Governance Statement).  This report must include an opinion on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s control environment, presenting a 
summary of how that opinion is derived including reliance placed on work by other 
assurance bodies.  For 2011/12, the opinion is: 

 
The internal control environment, including the key financial systems, is 
well established and continues to operate well in practice.  

 
At the time of writing this report there are no outstanding significant 
issues arising from the work undertaken by Internal Audit. 

 
However, no system of control can provide absolute assurance against 
material misstatement or loss, nor can Internal Audit give that 
assurance. 

 
3.2 The annual opinion is based on the findings and assurance provided by the schedule 

of reviews undertaken throughout the year.  The report therefore contains a summary 
of completed jobs along with their individual opinions.  

 
3.3 There are no issues identified by Internal Audit in the Annual Report 2011/12 that 

would necessitate direct intervention by the Corporate Governance & Audit 
Committee. 

Page 35



 

 

3.4 KPMG reviewed internal audit’s work on key financial systems in 2011/12 and  
confirmed that it fully met their requirements in terms of timeliness, quality and 
supporting evidence.  KPMG reported that: 

 
“Internal Audit has covered all areas of work that we wished to rely upon to  
a good standard and we are again able to place full reliance on their work.” 

 
3.5 The report also includes the 2012/13 Audit Plan. The Plan reflects the environment in 

which public sector audit operates, recognising that this has changed considerably 
over the past few years with more focus on assurance and, more recently, business 
analysis and spending money wisely. The current level of resources available with 
existing staff levels for productive audit work is 7733 days. This figure assumed that it 
would be possible to recruit 5 trainee professional auditors to start in quarter 2 and 
also achieve the challenging income target set in the budget for both business 
analysis work by the Business Process Re-engineering Team and Internal Audit 
services. The level of resources required to be seconded or otherwise recharged to 
directorates for Business Analysis work is 1626 days and the number of days Internal 
Audit will require to deliver the Experian data matching project and achieve its 
income target is a further 1240 days.  Therefore the estimated level of resources that 
are available to specifically provide the Head of Audit with the evidence for his 
opinion on the control environment is 4867 days. 

 
3.6 The team has consulted with each directorate asking representatives where they 

would like internal audit to contribute.  This covered areas such as fraud awareness, 
compliance, system review and spending money wisely ideas. Incorporating the 
results of this consultation process, key areas of the Plan have been expanded – in 
the areas of Risk Based Audits, Spending Money Wisely, Compliance and 
Procurement Contract monitoring.  It is proposed that internal audit continues to 
prepare 3 monthly plans to ensure it is as current and relevant as possible 
throughout the year. 

 
3.7 Progress against the plan will be monitored throughout the year and key issues 

reported to the Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive, the Chief Officer 
(Financial Management) and the Chief Officer (Audit & Risk.)  The Head of Audit will 
report key issues arising from this work to the Committee in the Quarterly Internal 
Audit reports. 

 
3.8 Internal Audit will continue to undertake a follow up audit on audit reports with limited 

or no assurance opinions or where the impact has been determined as either ‘Major’ 
or ‘Moderate’ to ensure the revised controls are operating well in practice.  

 
4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 This report did not highlight any consultation and engagement considerations. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 This report does not highlight any issues regarding equality, diversity, cohesion and 
integration. 

Page 36



 

 

 
4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee require 
the Committee to review the adequacy of the Council’s corporate governance 
arrangements.  This report forms part of the suite of assurances that provides this 
evidence to the Committee. 

4.4 Resources and Value for Money  

4.4.1 In relation to use of resources and value for money, the Internal Audit work plan 
includes a number of value for money reviews and a number of initiatives in line 
with the council’s value of spending money wisely. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 None. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1   The Internal Audit plan is subject to constant review throughout the financial year to 
ensure that audit resources are prioritised and directed towards the areas of highest 
risk.  This process incorporates a review of information from a number of sources, 
one of these being the corporate risk register.  

5 Conclusions 

5.1 There are no issues identified by Internal Audit in the Annual Report 2011/12 that 
would necessitate direct intervention by the Corporate Governance & Audit 
Committee. 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to receive the Internal 
Audit Annual Report 2011/2012 report and note the assurances given. 

6.2 The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to note the Internal Audit 
Operational Plan for 2012/13. 

7 Background documents  

7.1 None. 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012    

 

LEEDS CITY LEEDS CITY LEEDS CITY LEEDS CITY 
COUNCILCOUNCILCOUNCILCOUNCIL    

    
    

INTERNAL AUDIT INTERNAL AUDIT INTERNAL AUDIT INTERNAL AUDIT     
ANNUAL REPORT AND ANNUAL REPORT AND ANNUAL REPORT AND ANNUAL REPORT AND 

OPINIONOPINIONOPINIONOPINION    
    
    
    

2020202011111111/1/1/1/12222    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Appendix 1 

Page 39



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 1 -   

CONTENTSCONTENTSCONTENTSCONTENTS    
    
SectionSectionSectionSection  

    
    
1.1.1.1. INTRODUCTIONINTRODUCTIONINTRODUCTIONINTRODUCTION    
    
    

    
    
2.2.2.2.     REVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROLREVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROLREVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROLREVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROL    AND AND AND AND 

OPINIONOPINIONOPINIONOPINION        
    
    

    
3.3.3.3. AUDIT PERFORMANCE AUDIT PERFORMANCE AUDIT PERFORMANCE AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND ADDED AND ADDED AND ADDED AND ADDED 

VALUE 201VALUE 201VALUE 201VALUE 2011111/1/1/1/12222    
    
            

 

    
4.4.4.4.    AUDIT PAUDIT PAUDIT PAUDIT PLAN 20LAN 20LAN 20LAN 2011112222////11113333        
 

           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 1 
    

INTRODUCTIONINTRODUCTIONINTRODUCTIONINTRODUCTION 

Page 40



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 2 -   

 

 

1.1 The Annual Reporting Process 
 
Management is responsible for the system of internal control and must set in 
place policies and procedures to help ensure that the system is functioning 
correctly. On behalf of the Corporate Governance & Audit Committee (CG&AC) 
and the Director of Resources, Internal Audit acts as an assurance function 
providing an independent and objective opinion on the organisation’s entire 
control environment by evaluating its effectiveness in achieving objectives.  It 
objectively examines, evaluates and reports on the adequacy of the control 
environment as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective use 
of resources.  
 
This report is the culmination of the work during the course of the year and seeks 
to provide an opinion on the adequacy of the control environment and report the 
incidence of any significant control failings or weaknesses.  The report also gives 
an overview of audit performance during the year and outlines the proposed risk 
based Internal Audit Plan for 2012/13. 
 

1.2 Requirement for Internal Audit 
 
The organisation has a duty to maintain an adequate and effective system of 
internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control. This 
role is complemented by initiatives aimed at promoting effective corporate 
governance.  
 
In 2006, CIPFA published a revised Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government in the UK. The guidance accompanying the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2003 referred to this code as representing “proper internal audit 
practices”.  The Code defines the way in which the internal audit service should 
be established and undertaken, encompassing organisational and structural 
aspects.  
 
The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 that came into force on the 
31st March 2011 and revoked the Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 
2003 maintain the requirement for relevant bodies to have a sound system of 
internal control and conduct a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of 
the system of internal control.  
 
The 2011 regulations require bodies to conduct, at least once a year, a review of 
the effectiveness of their internal audit to consider this as part of the 
consideration of the system of internal control by a committee of the body, or by 
the body as a whole.  

Page 41



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 3 -   

Section 2 
 
 

REVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROLREVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROLREVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROLREVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROL    AND AND AND AND 
OPINIONOPINIONOPINIONOPINION 

 

 

2.1 Opinion 2011/2012 
 
The Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK 2006 
states that the Head of Audit must provide a written report to those charged with 
governance timed to support the Statement on Internal Control (now the Annual 
Governance Statement).  This report must include an opinion on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s control environment, presenting 
a summary of how that opinion is derived including reliance placed on work by 
other assurance bodies. 
 

The internal control environment, including the key financial systems, 
is well established and continues to operate well in practice.  
 
At the time of writing this report there are no outstanding significant 
issues arising from the work undertaken by Internal Audit. 
 
However, no system of control can provide absolute assurance against 
material misstatement or loss, nor can Internal Audit give that 
assurance. 

 

2.2 How Internal Control is reviewed 
 
Internal Audit continues to embrace the risk assessment approach to audit. 
During the course of the year, the risk map of the Authority has been continually 
challenged and used to form the basis of Internal Audit’s operational plan for the 
coming year. The review process draws on key indicators of risks to the 
organisation and attempts to ensure that suitable audit time and resources are 
devoted to review the more significant areas. The Corporate Risk Register is 
used as a key source of information during this process.  The audit plan contains 
a contingency provision that is utilised during the year in response to unforeseen 
work demands. This risk based approach to audit planning results in a 
comprehensive range of audits that are undertaken during the course of the year 
to support the overall opinion on the control environment.  
 
There are three elements to each internal audit review.  Firstly, the control 
environment is reviewed by identifying the objectives of the system and then 
assessing the controls in place mitigating the risk of those objectives not being 
achieved.  Completion of this work enables internal audit to give an assurance on 
the control environment.  
 

Page 42



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 4 -   

However, controls are not always complied with which in itself will increase risk, 
so the second part of an audit is to ascertain the extent to which the controls are 
being complied with in practice. This element of the review enables Internal Audit 
to give an opinion on the extent to which the control environment, designed to 
mitigate risk, is being complied with.  
 
Finally, where there are significant control environment weaknesses or where the 
controls are not being complied with and only limited assurance can be given, 
internal audit undertakes further substantive testing to ascertain the impact of 
these control weaknesses. 
 
To ensure consistency in audit reporting, the following definitions of audit 
assurance are used for all systems and governance audits completed: 
     
Control Environment Assurance 

Level Definitions 

1 SUBSTANTIAL  
ASSURANCE 

There are minimal control weaknesses that present very low risk to the 
control environment. 

2 GOOD 
ASSURANCE 

There are minor control weaknesses that present low risk to the control 
environment. 

3 ACCEPTABLE 
ASSURANCE 

There are some control weaknesses that present a medium risk to the 
control environment. 

4 LIMITED 
ASSURANCE 

There are significant control weaknesses that present a high risk to the 
control environment 

5 NO 
ASSURANCE 

There are fundamental control weaknesses that present an unacceptable 
level of risk to the control environment. 

 

Compliance Assurance 

Level Definitions 

1 SUBSTANTIAL 
ASSURANCE 

The control environment has substantially operated as intended although 
some minor errors have been detected. 

2 GOOD 
ASSURANCE 

The control environment has largely operated as intended although some 
errors have been detected. 

3 ACCEPTABLE 
ASSURANCE 

The control environment has mainly operated as intended although 
errors have been detected. 

4 LIMITED 
ASSURANCE 

The control environment has not operated as intended. Significant errors 
have been detected. 

5 NO 
ASSURANCE 

The control environment has fundamentally broken down and is open to 
significant error or abuse. 

 

Organisational impact is reported as either Major, Moderate or Minor. Any reports 
with major organisational impacts are reported to Corporate Leadership Team 
along with the appropriate directorate’s agreed action plan and then to CG&AC 
as part of the regular update report. 
 

Organisational Impact 

Level Definitions 

1 MAJOR The weaknesses identified during the review have left the council open to 
significant risk. If the risk materialises it would have a major impact upon 
the organisation as a whole. 

Page 43



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 5 -   

Organisational Impact 

Level Definitions 

2 MODERATE The weaknesses identified during the review have left the council open to 
medium risk. If the risk materialises it would have a moderate impact 
upon the organisation as a whole. 

3 MINOR The weaknesses identified during the review have left the council open to 
low risk. This could have a minor impact on the organisation as a whole. 

  

2.3 Basis of Assurance 
 
The annual opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment 
for 2011/12 is based on the findings and assurance provided by the schedule of 
reviews undertaken throughout the year.  For each area of assurance, there have 
been instances where the control environment was not strong enough or 
complied with sufficiently to prevent risks to the organisation.  In these cases, 
Internal Audit has made recommendations to further improve the systems of 
control and compliance.  Although significant to the control environment in place 
for the individual system areas that have been audited these weaknesses are not 
material enough to have a significant impact on the overall opinion on the 
adequacy of the Council’s control environment at the year end.  Further reviews 
in each area where limited assurance has been given are scheduled to be 
completed to ensure that the recommendations have been adopted and the 
suggested controls are working well in practice. 
 
2.3.1 Key Financial Systems 
 
An annual review of each of the authority’s key financial systems is undertaken to 
provide evidence supporting the internal audit opinion on the adequacy of the 
organisation’s control environment.  
 
As previously, the key financial systems subject to audit were agreed in advance 
with the authority’s external auditors KPMG as they review this work and use this 
as a key source of assurance on the organisation.  KPMG have reviewed internal 
audit’s work on key financial systems in 2011/12 and have confirmed that it fully 
meets their requirements in terms of timeliness, quality and supporting evidence.  
KPMG reported that: 
 
“Internal Audit has covered all areas of work that we wished to rely upon to a 
good standard and we are again able to place full reliance on their work.” 
 
Audit coverage during the year has provided sufficient evidence to conclude that 
the key financial control systems are sound and that, in the main, these controls 
continue to work well in practice although there are some areas where 
improvements are necessary. The level of assurance provided for the all key 
financial systems reviews was acceptable or higher and in all cases an action 
plan has been agreed with the appropriate officers that, if implemented, will give 
substantial control environment assurance. 
 

Page 44



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 6 -   

2.3.2 Cross Cutting Assurances 
 
Internal audit has reviewed a number of key corporate functions, which give cross 
cutting assurances in their own right.  These are areas such as procurement, 
performance management, and financial management.  These reviews included 
assessing the arrangements to ensure that their policies and procedures are up 
to date, fit for purpose, effectively communicated, routinely complied with across 
the organisation and monitored. These reviews provide evidence based 
assurance on the key policies and procedures that underpin the control 
environment.  Where weaknesses were identified, action plans were agreed with 
the appropriate officers to improve the level of assurance provided.  There were 
no significant issues highlighted in these areas. 
 
2.3.3 Schools  
 
Each school should have appropriate organisational and financial controls in 
place that Governors can place rely upon in their responsibility for the financial 
management of schools.  Assurance is required for the Authority that the 
arrangements in individual schools are adequate and operating effectively.  
 
A sample of visits has been undertaken based on a risk assessment and provide 
assurance that schools are operating financial procedures, which are in line with 
current guidelines as set out in Schools’ Financial Regulations, Contract 
Procedure Rules, Audit Commission and OFSTED reports and best practice. 
 
2.3.4 Unannounced visits 
 
A sample of visits covering different types of establishment are carried out each 
year. These provide assurance over the adequacy of income and cash controls.  
 
2.3.5 Business Analysis and VFM 
 
This area of work involves defining more efficient systems. It also provides 
assurance that there are arrangements within the Authority to improve efficiency 
and productivity.  
 
During the year, business analysis reviews have been commenced within 
Children’s Services and Adult Social Care Directorates and also the Changing 
the Workplace: Customer Access Project and the Electronic Document and 
Records Management System Projects. These are long term projects and have 
resulted in Business Analysts being seconded to Directorates to undertake these 
key reviews.  
 
2.3.6 Anti Fraud and Corruption    
 
The anti fraud and corruption work undertaken includes both proactive anti-fraud 
and corruption work (fraud strategies) and reactive work (investigations.) 
 

Page 45



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 7 -   

In addition, internal audit review the Authority’s fraud and corruption 
arrangements to ensure they are in line with best practice. There is a Counter 
Fraud and Investigations team strategy and Counter Fraud and Corruption Action 
Plan for proactive and reactive fraud work that includes details of resource 
implications and prioritises work accordingly to ensure the risk of fraud in 
managed effectively with available resources. Proactive fraud exercises, data 
analytics work and participation in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) provide 
assurance that the Authority is making every effort to detect potential fraud and 
prevent its recurrence.  
 
This area of audit work also provides assurance on the ethical framework within 
the Council, which seeks to improve standards of conduct.  This, combined with 
staffing policies, should therefore reduce the likelihood of fraud. 
 

2.4 Summary of Completed Audit Reviews 
 
This section provides a summary of all reports issued since 17th May 2011.  Audit 
reviews completed from 1st April 2011 to 16th May 2011 were reported in the 
Internal Audit Annual Report for 2010/11. All reviews where the audit opinion is 
limited for either the control environment or compliance with procedures have 
already been highlighted to CG&AC in the quarterly internal audit reports.  
 

Further reviews in each area where limited assurance has been given are 
scheduled to be completed to ensure recommendations have been adopted and 
suggested controls are working well in practice. 
 

 

Report Title 
Audit Opinion  

Date 
Issued Control 

Environment 
Compliance 

Organisation
al Impact 

Directorate 

Key Financial Systems 

Leeds Revenues and Benefits Service - 
Accounting & Subsidy 

Good 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor Resources 03/06/2011 

Sundry Income Year End Reconciliation Satisfactory Resources 03/06/2011 

Integrity of Accounts 
Substantial 
Assurance 

Substantial 
Assurance 

Minor Resources 20/06/2011 

Corporate Financial Management - 
Central Controls 

Substantial 
Assurance 

N/A Minor Resources 20/06/2011 

Creditors Year End Reconciliation Satisfactory Resources 24/06/2011 

Council Tax 
Good 

Assurance 
N/A Minor Resources 07/07/2011 

Capital Programme - Central Controls 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor Resources 07/07/2011 

Leeds Revenues and Benefits Service - 
Counter Fraud 

Good 
Assurance 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Minor Resources 08/07/2011 

Business Support Centre - Creditors 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor Resources 14/07/2011 

Non-Domestic Rates Year End 
Reconciliation 

Satisfactory Resources 19/07/2011 

Page 46



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 8 -   

Report Title 
Audit Opinion  

Date 
Issued Control 

Environment 
Compliance 

Organisation
al Impact 

Directorate 

Council Tax Year End Reconciliation Satisfactory Resources 20/07/2011 

Creditors - Children's Services 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

Children's 
Services 

20/07/2011 

Treasury Management 
Substantial 
Assurance 

Substantial 
Assurance 

Minor Resources 20/07/2011 

Business Support Centre - Human 
Resources Administration 

Good 
Assurance 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Moderate Resources 20/07/2011 

Business Support Centre -  Central 
Payments 

Good 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor Resources 20/07/2011 

West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
Reconciliation 

Satisfactory Resources 04/08/2011 

Payroll Year End Reconciliation Satisfactory Resources 15/08/2011 

Income Management System to 
Financial Management System Year 

End Reconciliation 
Satisfactory Resources 15/08/2011 

Housing Benefits and Council Tax 
Benefits Year End Reconciliation 

Satisfactory Resources 18/08/2011 

Sundry Income – City Development 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Moderate 
City 

Development 
23/08/2011 

Bank Reconciliation and Cash Book 
Substantial 
Assurance 

Substantial 
Assurance 

Minor Resources 06/10/2011 

Community Care Finance - Payments to 
independent providers of residential and 
nursing care and customers in receipt of 
direct payments and personal budgets 

Good 
Assurance 

N/A Minor 
Adult Social 

Care 
12/10/2011 

Housing Rents 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 
08/03/2012 

Treasury Management 
Substantial 
Assurance 

Substantial 
Assurance 

Minor Resources 28/03/2012 

Income Management System 
Substantial 
Assurance 

N/A Minor Resources 28/03/2012 

Central Sundry Income 
Substantial 
Assurance 

N/A Minor Resources 02/04/2012 

Non-Domestic Rates 
Substantial 
Assurance 

Substantial 
Assurance 

Minor Resources 02/04/2012 

Housing Benefits – Accounting and 
Subsidy 

Substantial 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor Resources 02/04/2012 

Sundry Income – Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor 
Environment 

and 
Neighbourhoods 

17/04/2012 

Council Tax 
Substantial 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor Resources 24/04/2012 

Housing Benefits Assessment and 
Payments 

Substantial 
Assurance 

Substantial 
Assurance 

Minor Resources 25/04/2012 

Integrity of Accounts 
Substantial 
Assurance 

Substantial 
Assurance 

Minor Resources 30/04/2012 

Creditors – City Development 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

City 
Development 

08/05/2012 

Payroll – HR Administration 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor Resources 30/05/2012 

Non-Domestic Rates Year End 
Reconciliation 

Satisfactory Resources 30/05/2012 

Page 47



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 9 -   

Report Title 
Audit Opinion  

Date 
Issued Control 

Environment 
Compliance 

Organisation
al Impact 

Directorate 

Year End Reconciliation of Powersolve 
to FMS 

Satisfactory Resources 30/05/2012 

Council Tax Year Reconciliation Satisfactory Resources 30/05/2012 

Income Management System Year End 
Reconciliation 

Satisfactory Resources 26/06/2012 

Payroll Year End Reconciliation Satisfactory Resources 26/06/2012 

West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
Reconciliation 

Satisfactory Resources 26/06/2012 

Business Analysis and VFM 

Revenues and Benefits – Systems 
Thinking Review 

N/A Resources 25/05/2011 

Business Analysis Review - Children's 
Transport Efficiency 

N/A 
Children's 
Services 

29/06/2011 

Adult Social Care As-Is End to End 
Review: Learning Disabilities – 
Continuing Healthcare Team 

N/A 
Adult Social 

Care 
18/08/2011 

Adult Social Care As-Is End to End 
Review: Leaning Disabilities Service – 

Day Service Modernisation 
N/A 

Adult Social 
Care 

18/08/2011 

 
As-is report – LD Community Support 

Service 
N/A 

Adult Social 
Care 

04/11/2011 

Customer Services City Centre One 
Stop – Human Resources 

N/A Resources 10/11/2011 

 
Changing the Workplace: Customer 
Access Project – service readiness 

report for Leeds Register Office 
 

N/A  29/11/2011 

Customer Services City Centre One 
Stop – Supply and Demand 

N/A Resources 06/01/2012 

Electronic Document Records 
Management System Rollout Options 

N/A Resources 04/04/2012 

ASC As-Is Early Discharge Assessment 
Team 

N/A 
Adult Social 

Care 
29/03/2012 

Changing the Workplace: Customer 
Access Project- Electoral Services 

Review 
N/A  24/04/2012 

Internal Control and Compliance 

Asset Verification - Children's Services N/A 
Good 

Assurance 
N/A 

Children's 
Services 

31/05/2011 

Asset Verification - City Development N/A 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

N/A 
City 

Development 
13/06/2011 

Asset Verification - Adult Social Care N/A 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

N/A 
Adult Social 

Care 
13/06/2011 

Asset Verification - Environment & 
Neighbourhoods 

N/A 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

N/A 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
17/06/2011 

Page 48



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 10 -   

Report Title 
Audit Opinion  

Date 
Issued Control 

Environment 
Compliance 

Organisation
al Impact 

Directorate 

Asset Verification - Central and 
Corporate Functions 

N/A 
Good 

Assurance 
N/A Resources 07/07/2011 

Early Leavers Initiative 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor Resources 19/07/2011 

Right to Buy Scheme 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 
15/08/2011 

Nursery Education Grants 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

Limited 
Assurance 

Minor 
Children's 
Services 

11/10/2011 

Information Security Review of response to data security breaches 
Planning, Policy 

and 
Improvement 

12/09/2011 

HR File Review N/A 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor Resources 24/11/2011 

Synergy 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Minor Resources 15/12/2011 

Health and Safety Controls 
Good 

Assurance 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

Minor Resources 03/01/2012 

Schools Trading High Level Review 
Limited 

Assurance 
N/A Moderate 

Children’s 
Services 

09/01/2012 

Delegated Decisions – Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 

N/A 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 16/01/2012 

Delegated Decisions – City 
Development N/A 

Limited 
Assurance Moderate 

City 
Development 24/01/2012 

Entertainment Licensing 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance Minor Resources 24/01/2012 

Delegated Decisions – Children’s 
Services N/A 

Limited 
Assurance Moderate 

Children’s 
Services 01/02/2012 

Delegated Decisions - Resources 
N/A 

Limited 
Assurance Moderate Resources 13/02/2012 

Bus Lane Enforcement Fines 
Good 

Assurance 
Substantial 
Assurance Minor 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 15/02/2012 

Taxi and Private Hire Licensing Follow 
Up Review 

Limited 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance Moderate Resources 16/02/2012 

Register of Interests – City 
Development 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Acceptable 
Assurance Moderate 

City 
Development 16/02/2012 

Section 48 House Searches, 
Appointees and Deputies 

Limited 
Assurance N/A Minor 

Adult Social 
Care 29/02/2012 

Performance Indicators BUS 2A – 
Employers offering apprenticeships 

Good 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 29/03/2012 

Performance Indicators LIVE 1A – 
Number of new homes built per year 

Limited 
Assurance 

Acceptable Minor 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 29/03/2012 

Performance Indicators: VAL 4 – 
Equality issues in major decisions 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor 

Planning, Policy 
and 

Improvement 29/03/2012 

Performance Indicators: RES 8 - % time 
ICT systems are available 

Good 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance Minor Resources 29/03/2012 

Managing Attendance Policy 
Compliance 

Good 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance Minor Resources 30/03/2012 

Nursery Education Grants Follow Up 
Review 

Acceptable 
Assurance N/A Minor 

Children’s 
Services 14/05/2012 

Procurement, Monitoring and Improvement 

 
Corporate Purchasing Cards Review 

 

Limited 
Assurance 

Limited 
Assurance 

Major Resources 02/08/2011 

Page 49



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 11 -   

Report Title 
Audit Opinion  

Date 
Issued Control 

Environment 
Compliance 

Organisation
al Impact 

Directorate 

 
Catering Provider Open Book Review 

 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Minor Resources 31/10/2011 

Purchasing Cards Quarter 1 Review – 
City Development 

N/A 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

N/A 
City 

Development 
06/12/2011 

Purchasing Cards Quarter 1 Review – 
Adult Social Care 

N/A 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

N/A 
Adult Social 

Care 
06/12/2011 

Purchasing Cards Quarter 1 Review – 
Children’s Services 

N/A 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

N/A 
Children’s 
Services 

06/12/2011 

Purchasing Cards Quarter 1 Review – 
Resources 

N/A 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

N/A Resources 06/12/2011 

Purchasing Cards Quarter 1 Review – 
Environment and Neighbourhoods 

N/A 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

N/A 
Environment 

and 
Neighbourhoods 

06/12/2011 

Procurement Unit: 
- Procurement Strategy and Forward 

Planning – Interim Statement; 
- Monitoring and Assurance 

Arrangements; 
- Contract Conditions and Extensions; 

- Continuous Improvement and Training 

Limited N/A Moderate Resources 10/01/2012 

Tender Evaluation Assessments 
Good 

Assurance 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

Moderate Resources 17/01/2012 

Quarterly Review of Published 
Payments over £500 Quarter 1 – 

Resources Directorate 
Substantial 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

N/A Resources 17/01/2012 

Quarterly Review of Published 
Payments over £500 Quarter 1 – 
Children’s Services Directorate N/A 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

N/A 
Children’s 
Services 17/01/2012 

Quarterly Review of Published 
Payments over £500 Quarter 1 – Adult 

Social Care Directorate N/A 

Good 
Assurance 

N/A 
Adult Social 

Care 17/01/2012 

Quarterly Review of Published 
Payments over £500 Quarter 1 – City 

Development Directorate N/A 

Good 
Assurance 

N/A 
City 

Development 17/01/2012 

Quarterly Review of Published 
Payments over £500 Quarter 1 – 
Environment & Neighbourhoods 

Directorate N/A 

Good 
Assurance 

N/A 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 17/01/2012 

Purchasing Cards Follow Up Review 
Acceptable 
Assurance N/A N/A Resources 01/02/2012 

Purchasing Cards Quarter 2 Review – 
Adult Social Care N/A 

Acceptable 
Assurance N/A 

Adult Social 
Care 17/04/2012 

Purchasing Cards Quarter 2 Review - 
Resources N/A 

Acceptable 
Assurance N/A Resources 17/04/2012 

Purchasing Cards Quarter 2 Review – 
Children’s Services N/A 

Acceptable 
Assurance N/A 

Children’s 
Services 17/04/2012 

Purchasing Cards Quarter 2 Review – 
City Development N/A 

Acceptable 
Assurance N/A 

City 
Development 17/04/2012 

Purchasing Cards Quarter 2 Review – 
Environment & Neighbourhoods 

N/A 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

N/A 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 17/04/2012 

Purchasing Cards Quarter 3 Review – 
Adult Social Care N/A 

Acceptable 
Assurance N/A 

Adult Social 
Care 21/05/2012 

Purchasing Cards Quarter 3 Review - 
Resources N/A 

Good 
Assurance N/A Resources 21/05/2012 

Purchasing Cards Quarter 3 Review – 
Children’s Services N/A 

Acceptable 
Assurance N/A 

Children’s 
Services 21/05/2012 

Purchasing Cards Quarter 3 Review – 
City Development N/A 

Good 
Assurance N/A 

City 
Development 21/05/2012 

Purchasing Cards Quarter 3 Review – 
Environment and Neighbourhoods N/A 

Acceptable 
Assurance N/A 

Environment 
and 21/05/2012 

Page 50



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 12 -   

Report Title 
Audit Opinion  

Date 
Issued Control 

Environment 
Compliance 

Organisation
al Impact 

Directorate 

Neighbourhoods 

Schools 

Waterloo Primary School 
Limited 

Assurance 
Limited 

Assurance 
Minor 

Children's 
Services 

03/06/2011 

Middleton Primary School 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

Children's 
Services 

23/06/2011 

Wetherby High School 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

Limited 
Assurance 

Minor 
Children's 
Services 

08/07/2011 

Kirkstall St Stephens COE Primary 
School 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Minor 
Children's 
Services 

21/07/2011 

Boston Spa School 6
th
 Form Funding 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Minor 
Children's 
Services 

21/07/2011 

City of Leeds High School 
Limited 

Assurance 
Limited 

Assurance 
Minor 

Children's 
Services 

21/07/2011 

Cobden Primary School 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor 
Children's 
Services 

26/07/2011 

Benton Park High School 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

Limited 
Assurance 

Minor 
Children's 
Services 

09/08/2011 

Farsley Farfield Primary School 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Minor 
Children's 
Services 

13/10/2011 

Bramham Primary School 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

Children's 
Services 

20/10/2011 

 
Ralph Thoresby School 6th Form 

Funding 
 

Good 
Assurance 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Minor 
Children’s 
Services 

21/10/2011 

 
Benton Park School 6th Form Funding 

 

Good 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor 
Children’s 
Services 

21/10/2011 

 
St James C of E Primary School 

Wetherby 
 

Good 
Assurance 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Minor 
Children’s 
Services 

21/11/2011 

 
Oakwood Primary School Voluntary 

Fund Audit 
 

Audited Statement signed for 2010/11 
Children’s 
Services 

08/12/2011 

Waterloo Primary School Follow Up 
Good 

Assurance 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

Minor 
Children’s 
Services 

14/12/2011 

Whitecote Primary School Voluntary 
Fund Audit 

Audited Statement signed for 2009/10 and 
2010/11 

Children’s 
Services 

14/11/2011 

Wetherby High School Follow Up 
Review 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Minor 
Children’s 
Services 

07/02/2012 

Holy Name Primary School Voluntary 
Fund Audit 

Audited Statement signed for 2009/10 and 
2010/11 

Children’s 
Services 

28/03/2012 

Boston Spa Primary School Voluntary 
Fund Audit 

Audited Statement signed for 2010/11 
Children’s 
Services 

28/03/2012 

Unannounced Visits 

Pudsey Leisure Centre 
Substantial 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor 
City 

Development 
19/05/2011 

Armley Leisure Centre 
Substantial 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor 
City 

Development 
19/05/2011 

Fredrick Hurdle Day Centre 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

Adult Social 
Care 

26/07/2011 

Page 51



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 13 -   

Report Title 
Audit Opinion  

Date 
Issued Control 

Environment 
Compliance 

Organisation
al Impact 

Directorate 

Meadowfield Children's Centre 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

Children's 
Services 

26/07/2011 

Armley Moor Children's Centre 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

Children's 
Services 

26/07/2011 

Lotherton Hall Museum 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

City 
Development 

26/07/2011 

Richmond Hill Children's Centre 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

Children's 
Services 

26/07/2011 

Pudsey Civic Hall 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

City 
Development 

04/08/2011 

Leeds Town Hall 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

City 
Development 

08/08/2011 

Apna Day Centre 
Good 

Assurance 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

Minor 
Adult Social 

Care 
23/08/2011 

Harehills Children’s Centre 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

Children’s 
Services 

23/08/2011 

Hunslet Children's Centre 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

Children's 
Services 

02/09/2011 

City Art Gallery Shop 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

City 
Development 

07/09/2011 

Seacroft Children's Centre 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

Children's 
Services 

13/09/2011 

Suffolk Court Home for Older People 
Good 

Assurance 
Acceptable N/A 

Adult Social 
Care 

22/09/2011 

Burley Willows Home for Older People 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
N/A 

Adult Social 
Care 

27/09/2011 

Two Willows Children's Centre 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

Children's 
Services 

17/10/2011 

City Museum 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance Minor 
City 

Development 12/01/2012 

Strategic Landlord Assurance Framework Reviews (Internal Control and Compliance) 

Procurement Quarter 1 - West North 
West Homes 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Minor 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
17/05/2011 

Keystone Asset Management - Belle 
Isle Tenant Management Organisation 

Good 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
17/05/2011 

Keystone Asset Management - 
Strategic Landlord Review (Central 

Controls) 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
26/05/2011 

Lettings Enforcement - Aire Valley 
Homes Leeds Quarter 3 and 4 

N/A 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

Moderate 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
08/06/2011 

Tenancy Enforcement - East North East 
Homes Leeds 

N/A 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

Environment & 
Neighbourhoods 

08/06/2011 

Tenancy Enforcement Policies and 
Procedures - Strategic Landlord Review 

(Central Controls) 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

N/A Moderate 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
13/06/2011 

Key Policies: Safeguarding Policy - Aire 
Valley Homes Leeds 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

N/A Minor 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
13/06/2011 

Capital Programme Consultation - Aire 
Valley Homes Leeds 

Good 
Assurance 

N/A Minor 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
17/06/2011 

Corporate Governance - Belle Isle 
Tenant Management Organisation 

Good 
Assurance 

N/A Minor 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
17/06/2011 

Page 52



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 14 -   

Report Title 
Audit Opinion  

Date 
Issued Control 

Environment 
Compliance 

Organisation
al Impact 

Directorate 

Lettings Enforcement - Belle Isle Tenant 
Management Organisation Quarters 3 & 

4 
N/A 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Minor 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
17/06/2011 

Key Policies: Safeguarding Policy - 
West North West Homes 

Substantial  
Assurance 

N/A Minor 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
17/06/2011 

Procurement Quarter 3 - West North 
West Homes 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Minor 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
22/06/2011 

Responsive Repairs - East North East 
Homes 

Good 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
23/06/2011 

Gas Servicing - Belle Isle Tenant 
Management Organisation 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Moderate 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
24/06/2011 

Gas Servicing - Aire Valley Homes 
Leeds 

Good 
Assurance 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Moderate 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
30/06/2011 

Keystone Asset Management - Aire 
Valley Homes Leeds 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
08/07/2011 

Lettings Enforcement Quarters 3 & 4 - 
West North West Homes Leeds 

N/A 
Good 

Assurance 
Minor 

Environment & 
Neighbourhoods 

12/07/2011 

Responsive Repairs - West North West 
Homes Leeds 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
14/07/2011 

Keystone Asset Management - West 
North West Homes Leeds 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Minor 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
18/07/2011 

Responsive Repairs - Aire Valley 
Homes Leeds 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
27/07/2011 

Corporate Governance - West North 
West Homes 

Good 
Assurance 

N/A Minor 
Environment & 

Neighbourhoods 
01/09/2011 

Lettings Enforcement - Central Lettings 
Policy Review 

Good 
Assurance 

N/A Minor 
Environment 

and 
Neighbourhoods 

13/09/2011 

Strategic Landlord Assurance 
Framework - Annual Report 

Summary of individual reports for Strategic 
Landlord Assurance Framework 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 
21/09/2011 

Follow up of Asset Management Gas 
Servicing 2010/11 - East North East 

Homes Leeds 

Good 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor 
Environment 

and 
Neighbourhoods 

12/10/2011 

 
Date of Registration Quota Lettings 
Enforcement — Belle Isle Tenant 

Management Organisation 
 

N/A 
Limited 

Assurance 
Minor 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 
13/12/2011 

Lettings Enforcement - Housing Options 
N/A 

Limited 
Assurance Moderate 

Environment & 
Neighbourhoods 11/01/2012 

Date of Registration Quota Lettings 
Enforcement – Aire Valley Homes N/A 

Acceptable 
Assurance Minor 

Environment & 
Neighbourhoods 12/01/2012 

Date of Registration Quota Lettings 
Enforcement — East North East Homes N/A 

Acceptable 
Assurance Minor 

Environment & 
Neighbourhoods 30/01/2012 

Fire Safety - West North West Homes 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Moderate 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 16/02/2012 

Fire Safety – East North East Homes 
Limited 

Assurance 
Acceptable 
Assurance 

Moderate 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 16/02/2012 

Fire Safety – Belle Isle Tenant 
Management Organisation 

Good 
Assurance 

Good 
Assurance 

Minor 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 16/02/2012 

Fire Safety – Aire Valley Homes Leeds 
Limited 

Assurance 
Limited 

Assurance 
Major 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 16/02/2012 

Date of Registration Quota Lettings 
Enforcement – West North West Homes 

N/A 

Limited 
Assurance 

Moderate 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 16/02/2012 

Page 53



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 15 -   

Report Title 
Audit Opinion  

Date 
Issued Control 

Environment 
Compliance 

Organisation
al Impact 

Directorate 

Strategic Landlord Tenancy 
Enforcement (Tenancy Fraud) 

Good 
Assurance 

N/A Minor 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 15/03/2012 

Scheme of Delegation – East North 
East Homes 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

Limited 
Assurance 

Moderate 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 28/03/2012 

Belle Isle Tenant Management 
Organisation - Procurement 

Good 
Assurance 

N/A Minor 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 30/03/2012 

Belle Isle Tenant Management 
Organisation - Business Continuity 

Acceptable 
Assurance 

N/A Minor 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 08/05/2012 

Procurement – East North East Homes 
Good 

Assurance 
Limited 

Assurance 
Minor 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 08/05/2012 

Corporate Governance Follow Up 
Review – Belle Isle Tenant 
Management Organisation 

Good 
Assurance 

N/A Minor 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 09/05/2012 

Corporate Governance – Aire Valley 
Homes 

Good 
Assurance 

N/A Minor 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 25/06/2012 

Procurement – Aire Valley Homes 
Good 

Assurance 
Good 

Assurance Minor 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 25/06/2012 

Neighbourhood Management – Aire 
Valley Homes 

Good 
Assurance 

N/A Minor 

Environment 
and 

Neighbourhoods 25/06/2012 

Head of Audit Assurances 

 
Building 

Hope Charity 
– 

independent 
examination 

of the 
Accounts 
2009/10 

 

 
The review was an independent examination of the 2009/10 accounts as 
required by the Charities Act 1993.   It does not provide an opinion on the 
accounts. 
 
The independent examination found no issues to indicate that the following 
had not been met: 
 
•keeping accounting records in accordance with section 41 of the 1993 Act; 
and 
 
•preparing accounts which accord with the accounting records and comply 
with the accounting requirements of the 1993 Act. 
 
 

Resources 26/05/2011 

 
Building 

Hope Charity 
– 

independent 
examination 

of the 
Accounts 
2010/11 

 

 
The review was an independent examination of the 2010/11 accounts as 
required by the Charities Act 1993.   It does not provide an opinion on the 
accounts. 
 
The independent examination found no issues to indicate that the following 
had not been met: 
 
•keeping accounting records in accordance with section 41 of the 1993 Act; 
and 
 
•preparing accounts which accord with the accounting records and comply 
with the accounting requirements of the 1993 Act. 
 
 

Resources 13/12/2011 

Bus 
Operators 

Grant Claim 

 
Certification of Grant Claim 1

st
 October 2010 – 31

st
 March 2011 Resources 29/06/2011 

Bus 
Operators 

Grant Claim 

 
Certification of Grant Claim 1

st
 April 2011 – 30

th
 September 2011 Resources 09/02/2012 

Lord Mayors 
Charity 

The review was an independent examination of the 2010/11 accounts as 
required by the Charities Act 1993.   It does not provide an opinion on the 
accounts. 
 

Resources 30/03/2012 

Page 54



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 16 -   

Report Title 
Audit Opinion  

Date 
Issued Control 

Environment 
Compliance 

Organisation
al Impact 

Directorate 

The independent examination found no issues to indicate that the following 
had not been met: 
 
•keeping accounting records in accordance with section 41 of the 1993 Act; 
and 
 
•preparing accounts which accord with the accounting records and comply 
with the accounting requirements of the 1993 Act. 
 

City Region 
Grant Claim: 
Urban Eco 
Settlements 

Review of Grant Claim – Satisfactory. 
Planning, Policy 

and 
Improvement 

06/06/2012 

City Region 
Grant Claim: 
New Points 

Growth 
Funding 

Review of Grant Claim – Satisfactory. 
Planning, Policy 

and 
Improvement 

06/06/2012 

Leeds City 
Region 

Accounts – 
Internal 
Audit 

Statement 

Signed Internal Audit Statement for 2011/12 Accounts. 
Planning, Policy 

and 
Improvement 

06/06/2012 

Bus 
Operators 

Grant Claim 
Certification of Grant Claim 1

st
 October 2011 – 31

st
 March 2012 Resources 13/06/2012 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Page 55



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 17 -   

Section 3 
 

AUDIT PERFORMANCE AUDIT PERFORMANCE AUDIT PERFORMANCE AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND ADDED VALUE AND ADDED VALUE AND ADDED VALUE AND ADDED VALUE 
2020202011111111/20/20/20/2011112222 
 

 

ENSURING QUALITYENSURING QUALITYENSURING QUALITYENSURING QUALITY    
    
3.1 Customer Feedback 
 
Internal Audit is committed to delivering a quality product to the highest 
professional standards that adds value to our customers and actively monitors 
performance in a number of areas and encourages feedback from customers.  
 
A customer satisfaction questionnaire (CSQ) is issued with every audit report. 
The questionnaires ask for the auditees opinion on a range of issues with an 
assessment ranging from 5 (for excellent) to 1 (for poor).  The results are based 
on the percentage of those assessments that are 3 (satisfactory) or above.  The 
results are used to determine areas for improvement and inform the continuing 
personal development training programme for Internal Audit staff. The results are 
also benchmarked with other core cities who have adopted the same 
questionnaire. The table also shows the percentage scores of 4 or above (good 
and excellent) to further identify marginal areas for improvement. 
 
Table - Results from Customer Satisfaction Questionnaires 
 

Question Actual 

2010/11 

%  

Score 3 or 
above 

Actual 

2010/11 

% 

Score 4 or 
above 

Actual 

2011/12 

% 

Score 3 or 
above 

Actual 

2011/12 

%  

Score 4 or 
above 

Notice  100 95 100 100 

Scope  98 83 100 92 

Understanding  93 81 92 68 

Efficiency  100 90 96 92 

Consultation  98 90 100 84 

Professional/Objective 98 95 100 92 

Accuracy of Draft 95 87 100 84 

Opportunity to comment 98 93 100 96 

Clarity & Conciseness 95 90 100 96 

Page 56



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 18 -   

Question Actual 

2010/11 

%  

Score 3 or 
above 

Actual 

2010/11 

% 

Score 4 or 
above 

Actual 

2011/12 

% 

Score 3 or 
above 

Actual 

2011/12 

%  

Score 4 or 
above 

Recommendations  95 78 100 84 

Final Report – Prompt 97 80 100 88 

Added Value 98 78 92 80 

 
Feedback from customer satisfaction questionnaires continues to be very 
positive.  These results are again extremely encouraging, particularly as the 
nature and complexity of work undertaken by Internal Audit continues to change.   
 
Internal audit has been part of the core cities benchmarking club for over ten 
years – consistently being a high performer across a whole range of key cost and 
quality measures.  Examples include cost per audit day and percentage of 
productive time as well as customer questionnaires and perceptions of added 
value. 
 

3.2 Quality Standard Accreditation 
 

All our work is undertaken in accordance with our quality management system, 
which has now been ISO accredited for over fourteen years. During January 
2012 an independent review was undertaken of Internal Audit’s quality system to 
ensure compliance with the new ISO 9001:2008 standard. The review team 
conducted a process-based audit, focusing on significant aspects/risks/objectives 
required by the standard and concluded that: 
 
“……. the organisation has established and maintained its management system in 
line with the requirements of the standard and demonstrated the ability of the 
system to systematically achieve agreed requirements for products and services 
within the scope and the organisations’ policy and objectives.” 
 
The next review visit is due in August 2012. 
 

3.3 Continuing Professional Development 
 
In a rapidly changing environment it is important that all Internal Auditors are kept 
abreast of the latest audit and accounting methodologies, changes in legislation 
and best practice as well as changes to the public sector arena so they have the 
necessary skills and knowledge to perform their role to a high standard.  This is 
done via Continuing Professional Development (CPD), which the Section 
continues to support and promote via in-house training courses and external CPD 
events such as CIPFA seminars. Much of this CPD is done in officers own time 
showing a personal commitment to continual improvement of the Team.  
 

Page 57



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 19 -   

The Code of Practice for Internal Audit in local Government in the UK 2006 states 
that Internal Audit staff have a personal responsibility to undertake a programme 
of CPD to maintain and develop their competence.  At Leeds, evidence of 
professional training and development activities must be retained and 
individual/group training needs identified.  
 

3.4 Whistleblowing 
 
Internal Audit continues to act as the custodians of the Council’s Whistleblowing 
Policy.  In 2011/12, Internal Audit dealt with a total of 90 (113, 2010/11) potential 
irregularity referrals. All reported irregularities were risk assessed by Internal 
Audit and where appropriate an audit investigation undertaken.  Where it was 
more appropriate, the matter was referred to directorates and follow up was 
undertaken. 
 
Whistleblowing in respect of housing and council tax benefit is dealt with 
separately and is therefore not included in the above figures. 
 
To further demonstrate the Council’s commitment to safeguarding public funds 
internal audit externally publicises an email address (concerns@leeds.gov.uk) 
where potential irregularities can be reported. This will continue to be undertaken 
via the Council’s internet.   
 

3.5 Data Analytics  
 
The Data Analytics project commenced in October 2011 concentrating initially on 
the council tax single person discount (SPD) review.  Set procedures have been 
established for this review and to date over 53,000 SPDs have or are in the 
process of being reviewed.  At the end of March 2012, a total of 896 SPDs have 
been cancelled, although 212 of these were applying for a different discount of 
the same value.  The net annual increased billings for the cancellations to date is 
estimated at £145k.   
 
In addition to this, the tenancy sub-letting review has commenced.  The initial 
data analysis has been completed and the highest risk cases identified have 
been passed to the ALMOs to commence their initial review.  Work on the other 
areas, e.g. Creditors, Voluntary Organisations, Council Tax Empty Properties, 
NNDR and Adult Social Care are to commence in 2012/13.  
 
 

3.6 Open Book Reviews  
    
Internal Audit has once again had success in open book reviews of the Council’s 
suppliers in 2011/12.  These are included in the table below. A number of days 
have been included in the Internal Audit operational plan for procurement, 
monitoring and improvement within which it is hoped that internal audit will be 
able to continue this important area of work. 
 

3.7 Contract Procedure Rules   

Page 58



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 20 -   

    
The procedures for waivers was seen to be cumbersome and not as helpful as 
they could be in assisting Directors and Chief Officers in the decision-making 
process. 
 
A few clear principles were considered: 
 

1. Chief Officers should be accountable for decisions to waive standing 
orders, and they must understand this clearly.  

2. In making decisions about waivers Chief Officers need to take account of 
relevant considerations.  

3. The decision-makers are entitled to expect that the Council’s procurement 
officers, and indeed Internal Audit, where appropriate, can assist them in 
making those decisions.  

 
A number of changes were made to improve the situation and to reflect the 
accountabilities of those involved. Waivers of contract procedure rules are now 
assessed by the Directorate themselves to consider the risks of the proposed 
course of action. This will reduce the turnaround time for decisions. However, the 
directorate can contact Procurement or Internal Audit for advice relating the 
procurement exercise if required. 
 

3.8 Savings and Efficiencies 
 
The following table provides a summary of the savings and efficiencies identified 
by Internal Audit for the 9 months from April 2011 to January 2012. 
 
Table of Savings/Efficiencies 
 

 Audit Area Value  
£ 

Explanation 

1 BPR Review – 
Children’s 
Transport 
Efficiency 

£76,000 The review highlighted that were LCC to review the 
provisions of its Children’s Transport policy in line with 
those of other authorities and/or make some changes to the 
business processes, efficiency savings could be achieved. 
Based on a sample of responses from SEN Co-ordinators 
to a questionnaire on travel arrangements, the review 
highlighted the potential to consider the needs of existing 
users in relation to transport and to look at whether 
alternative, more independent methods of travel are 
appropriate within the authority’s policy and guidelines.  
Based on the sample of responses from professionals, the 
potential to reduce demand on the service was 
approximately £76k.  

2 School Meals and 
Voluntary Funds 

£35,100 
Monies being recovered through insurance. 
 

3 Parking Permits £22,000 
Recommendation that the staff are charged for the 
uncollected salary contributions so these funds can be 
recovered.  

Page 59



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 21 -   

 Audit Area Value  
£ 

Explanation 

 

4 Bus Operators 
Grant Claim 

£5,200 Discrepancies were identified in the initial claim value 
resulting in an increase in the amount of the grant claim. 

5 Data Analytics 
Project 

£145,000 Annual equivalent net increase in Council Tax billings from 
review of Council Tax Single Person Discount (SPD) with 
approximately 896 SPDs being cancelled (although 212 
have applied for or have been granted another discount to 
the same value.) 

6 Open Book Review 
- Provider 

£269,158 
After examining actual spend, £269,158 of costs attributed 
to this contract could not be fully supported.  Legal advice 
was recommended surrounding some of the costs included. 
Resulting from this work, and in agreement with the 
Provider, the Directorate has reduced the contract by £324k 
for both 2010/11 and 2011/12 with a further £300k savings 
agreed during 2011/12 prior to the end of the contract. 

7 Open Book Review  
- Provider 

£28,343 
 
 
 

Amounts due back from contractor including additional 
commission calculated as being due on contract based on 
contract terms and conditions  
 

8 Fraudulently 
Cashed Cheques 

£506 Following advice from Internal Audit, Exchequer Services 
now refer cheques that had been encashed by a 3rd party 
to the NatWest fraud team for investigation. This approach 
seems to be successful as we have referred a few through 
recently and have been reimbursed for 1 of them. 
 

9 Review of final 
account 

£34,937 Reviewed a proposed commercial settlement for a capital 
scheme and agreed a revised figure. 

 Total £616,244  

Page 60



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 22 -   

Section 4 
 

AUDIT PAUDIT PAUDIT PAUDIT PLAN LAN LAN LAN 2020202011112222/20/20/20/2011113333 
 

 

4.1 Background 
 
The Head of Audit must provide an annual opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the entire control environment. Internal audit must therefore 
deliver a risk based plan with an appropriate and comprehensive range of work, 
sufficiently robust to confirm that all assurances provided can be relied upon by 
the CG&AC. 
 
To develop this plan, there must be a sound understanding of the risks facing the 
Council.  The Corporate Risk Register is used as a key source of information, as 
is the Internal Audit risk assessment of the Authority, which is updated during the 
year and used to form the basis of the Internal Audit plan.  In addition, 
consultation has been undertaken with Heads of Finance or Chief Officers within 
Directorates to capture emerging risk areas to inform the audit planning process. 
 
The audit plan has been reviewed and challenged by Audit Management Team, 
the Chief Officer (Audit and Risk), Resources Leadership Team, the Chief Officer 
(Financial Management) and the Director of Resources & Deputy Chief Executive 
and revised where necessary.  
 

4.2 The Annual Plan 
 

The planning process for 2012/13 has necessitated a thorough evaluation of the 
appropriate level and scope of coverage required to give stakeholders, including 
the CG&AC, an appropriate level of assurance on the control environment of the 
Council.  More importantly, an on-going re-evaluation of this will be required 
throughout the year.  On a quarterly basis, the audit plan will be re-assessed and 
resources re-prioritised towards the areas of highest risk. This will be reported to 
the CG&AC as part of the regular update reports. 
 

4.3 How assurance can be given 
 
4.3.1 Financial and Other Key Systems 
 
There are a number of key systems that are considered of sufficient risk to be 
automatically included in the audit plan each year. These systems are agreed in 
advance with KPMG and are used as the basis by which KPMG are able to place 
reliance upon Internal Audit work.  These are generally the systems that have the 
highest financial risk.  This is the traditional area of internal audit work and very 
much focuses on providing the Section 151 officer assurance that “the Council 
has made arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs”.  This 
will cover key expenditure systems such as payroll and creditors and income 
areas such as council tax and rents.  These reviews also give an opinion as to 

Page 61



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 23 -   

the effectiveness of financial management procedures and the arrangements to 
ensure the integrity of accounts. 
 
4.3.2 Compliance 
 
Compliance work is fundamental as it provides assurance across all Directorates 
and therefore underpins the Head of Internal Audit opinion on the control 
environment.  This area of work involves compliance checks across the 
organisation to provide assurance on whether key policies and procedures are 
being complied with in practice. 
 
4.3.3 Spending Money Wisely 
 
This assurance block incorporates initiatives to promote the council’s value of 
Spending Money Wisely including a series of plans to raise awareness including 
further promotion of the Spending Money Wisely reporting line and update of the 
Spending Money Wisely policy.  In addition, 500 days have been included to 
undertake a number of Spending Money Wisely/Value for Money projects across 
the authority 
 
4.3.4 Risk Based Plan 
 
Following inclusion in the Plan of all the ‘top sliced’ areas outlined, the remaining 
audit areas (Risk Based Reviews) included in the audit universe are prioritised for 
inclusion based on their risk score up to the overall level of resources in the year.  
These will be a key element of the assurance on the entire control environment of 
the authority. 
 
4.3.5 Procurement, Monitoring and Improvement 
 
Within this assurance block, 400 days have been included for contract reviews.  
The first stage will be to identify the potential contracts for review and will 
incorporate open book reviews where required to ensure that these are operating 
in accordance with the terms of the contracts.  Time has also been included for 
capital contracts to provide assurance that contract conditions and 
objectives/outcomes are being met, value for money is being achieved, contracts 
are delivered on time, within budget and meet stakeholders’ expectations 
 
4.3.6 Anti Fraud and Corruption 
 
The Anti Fraud and Corruption assurance block includes both reactive and pro-
active elements along with a number of initiatives to raise awareness of the 
council’s anti fraud and corruption culture and to report on the arrangements in 
place.  In addition to the time allocation for fraud investigation work including the 
risk assessment process for referrals, the assurance block includes an allocation 
of days for pro-active fraud strategy work. 
 
4.3.7 Business Analysis  

 

Page 62



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 24 -   

Each review in the VFM/efficiency/BPR area includes an ‘as is’ phase to 
document the current system and processes: the ‘to be’ stage (a lean, efficient 
system where resources are geared towards achieving agreed outcomes and 
management controls are timely and effective); understanding the sensitivity of 
change, such as demand, and the service’s ability to both achieve agreed 
outcomes and budget; and where appropriate producing an assurance on the 
Internal Control Environment.  However, with the move towards secondment of 
the BPR team to directorate projects, a reduced ‘audit opinion’ assurance will be 
gained from this work.  
 
4.3.8 Internal Audit Income target 
 
The Audit Plan for 2012/13 includes 840 days to provide internal audit services 
for which a charge is made.   
 
4.3.9 Data Analytics 
 
The days included for data analytics are intended to generate more savings and 
benefits than the cost of the contract and internal resources and, amongst other 
things, give good assurance towards the control environment that protects 
against tenancy fraud. 
 
4.3.10 Update, Communication and Monitoring 
 
Internal audit will review key corporate policies and procedures, which will give 
‘cross cutting’ assurances to the CG&AC.  These reviews will include assessing 
the arrangements to ensure that policies and procedures are up to date; fit for 
purpose; effectively communicated, routinely complied with across the 
organisation; and monitored.  This will provide an evidence based assurance on 
those key policies and procedures that underpin the control environment. 
 

4.4 Conclusion  
 
The 2012/13 audit plan has, as a base, used the tried and tested risk based 
approach to prioritising internal audit work.  
 
Progress against the plan will be monitored throughout the year and key issues 
reported to the Director of Resources, and the Chief Officer (Audit & Risk).  The 
Head of Audit will report key issues arising from this work to the CG&AC. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT OPERATIONAL PLAN INTERNAL AUDIT OPERATIONAL PLAN INTERNAL AUDIT OPERATIONAL PLAN INTERNAL AUDIT OPERATIONAL PLAN 

Page 63



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 25 -   

2012012012012222/1/1/1/13333    
 

Summary by Assurance Block 
 

Assurance Block Days 
% of total assurance 

days 
Financial and Other Key Systems 800 16% 

Compliance 800 16% 

Spending Money Wisely 525 11% 

Risk Based Plan 650 14% 

Procurement, Monitoring and Improvement 595 12% 

Contingency 480 10% 

Anti Fraud and Corruption 869 18% 

Head of Audit Assurances 50 1% 

Update, Communication and Monitoring 55 1% 

Professional Liaison 43 1% 

Total Assurance Days 4867 100% 
 

 
In addition to the days allocated for the assurance blocks listed above, the audit 
plan also includes days for the following: 
 

Audit Area Days 

Total Business Analysis 1626 

Total External Contracts 840 

Total Data Analytics 400 

 2866 

 
Internal Audit Operational Plan 2012/13 - Detailed Reviews by Type 

 
 

Audit 
Days    
12/13 
Plan 

Assurance Block Directorate 

Business Analysis       

Business Analysis Reviews 1626 Business Analysis  Cross- Cutting 

Total Business Analysis 1626     

Data Analytics       

Data Analytics 400 Data Matching Cross- Cutting 

Total Data Analytics 400     

External Contracts       

School Voluntary Fund Audits 10 External Contracts Contract Work 

Strategic Landlord ALMO/BITMO Assurance 
Framework 

320 External Contracts Contract Work 

West North West Homes Leeds (WNWHL) 137 External Contracts Contract Work 

East North East Homes Leeds  56 External Contracts Contract Work 

Aire Valley Homes 63 External Contracts Contract Work 

Leeds and Yorkshire Housing Association 27 External Contracts Contract Work 

Building Hope Charity 3 External Contracts Central and Corporate Functions 

Interreg Claim 6 External Contracts Contract Work 

Credit Union 35 External Contracts Contract Work 

Belle Isle Tenant Management Organisation 55 External Contracts Contract Work 

New Income to generate 128     

Total External Contracts 840     

Spending Money Wisely       

Page 64



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 26 -   

Audit 
Days    
12/13 
Plan 

Assurance Block Directorate 

Efficiencies/Value for Money Arrangements 20 Spending Money Wisely Cross- Cutting 

Spending Money Wisely Policy  5 Spending Money Wisely Cross- Cutting 

Spending Money Wisely Reviews 500 Spending Money Wisely Cross- Cutting 

Total Spending Money Wisely 525     

Contingency       

General Contingency  480 Contingency Contingency 

Total Contingency 480     

Anti Fraud and Corruption       

Fraud Investigations 600 Anti Fraud and Corruption Contingency 

Returns and Reporting Requirements 59 Anti Fraud and Corruption Cross- Cutting 

Policies 50 Anti Fraud and Corruption Cross- Cutting 

Pro-active exercises 130 Anti Fraud and Corruption Cross- Cutting 

Anti Fraud Awareness 30 Anti Fraud and Corruption Cross- Cutting 

Total Anti Fraud and Corruption 869     

Financial and Other Key Systems       

Community Care  50 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Adult Social Care 

SAP Payroll 110 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Cross- Cutting 

Housing Benefits  90 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Housing Benefits Counter Fraud 20 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Treasury Management & Bankline 25 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Key Financial Systems - General Computer Controls 20 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Integrity of Accounts 30 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Creditors 90 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Capital Programme Controls 20 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Council Tax 30 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Central and Corporate Functions 

NNDR 30 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Key Financial Systems - Year - End Reconciliations 40 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Housing Rents  25 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Environment and Neighbourhoods 

Bank Reconciliation & Cash Book 25 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Sundry Income 80 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Cross- Cutting 

Income Management System 25 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Financial Management Central Controls 20 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Knowledge and Information Governance Central 
Controls 

20 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Schools Financial Services - Central Controls 20 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Children's Services 

ICT Central Health Check 30 
Financial and Other Key 
Systems 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Total Financial and Other Key Systems 800     

Head of Audit Assurances       

West Yorkshire Integrated Transport Authority 
(WYITA) - Treasury Management Memo 

2 Head of Audit Assurances Central and Corporate Functions 

Lord Mayors Charity 10 Head of Audit Assurances Central and Corporate Functions 

Leeds City Region New Growth Point Programme 3 Head of Audit Assurances Central and Corporate Functions 

Leeds City Region Urban Eco Settlements 
Programme 

3 Head of Audit Assurances Central and Corporate Functions 

Page 65



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012The Annual Internal Audit Report 2011/2012 

    
 

 - 27 -   

Audit 
Days    
12/13 
Plan 

Assurance Block Directorate 

DCLG Growth and Housing Market Renewal 
Transition Fund 

3 Head of Audit Assurances Central and Corporate Functions 

Leeds City Region 5 Head of Audit Assurances Central and Corporate Functions 

West Yorkshire Pension Fund 5 Head of Audit Assurances Central and Corporate Functions 

Bus Operators Grant 8 Head of Audit Assurances Central and Corporate Functions 

Troubled Families 10 Head of Audit Assurances Children's Services 

Interreg 1 Head of Audit Assurances Adult Social Care 

Total Head of Audit Assurances 50     

Compliance       

Compliance 800 Compliance Cross- Cutting 

Total Compliance 800     

Update, Communication and Monitoring       

HR Policies and Procedures 5 
Update, Communication and 
Monitoring 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Health and Safety Policy 5 
Update, Communication and 
Monitoring 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Contracts Procedure Rules  5 
Update, Communication and 
Monitoring 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Financial Procedure Rules  5 
Update, Communication and 
Monitoring 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Annual Governance Statement 5 
Update, Communication and 
Monitoring 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Risk Management Policy 5 
Update, Communication and 
Monitoring 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Business Continuity Policy 5 
Update, Communication and 
Monitoring 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Emergency Planning Policy 5 
Update, Communication and 
Monitoring 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Information Governance Policy 5 
Update, Communication and 
Monitoring 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Exceptions to Contracts Procedure Rules 10 
Update, Communication and 
Monitoring 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Total Update, Communication and Monitoring 55     

Procurement, Monitoring and Improvement       

Procurement Contract Monitoring 400 
Procurement, Monitoring 
and Improvement 

Cross- Cutting 

Current Contract Audit - Capital Schemes 100 
Procurement, Monitoring 
and Improvement 

Cross- Cutting 

Performance Management Central Controls 10 
Procurement, Monitoring 
and Improvement 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Corporate Procurement Unit Central Controls 50 
Procurement, Monitoring 
and Improvement 

Central and Corporate Functions 

Strategic Landlord Central Controls 25 
Procurement, Monitoring 
and Improvement 

Environment and Neighbourhoods 

Duplicate Payments Central Controls 10 
Procurement, Monitoring 
and Improvement 

Cross- Cutting 

Total Procurement, Monitoring and Improvement 595     

Professional Liaison       

West Yorkshire Fraud Group 3 Professional Liaison Professional Liaison 

CIPFA Computer Audit Sub Group 5 Professional Liaison Professional Liaison 

CIPFA Contract Audit Sub Group 5 Professional Liaison Professional Liaison 

Core Cities 10 Professional Liaison Professional Liaison 

West Yorkshire Audit Group 5 Professional Liaison Professional Liaison 

CIPFA National Working Groups 15 Professional Liaison Professional Liaison 

Total Professional Liaison 43     

Risk Based Audit Plan       

Risk Based Reviews 650     

Total Risk Based Reviews 650     

Total Internal Audit Plan 7733     

 

Page 66



 

 

Report of  The Director of Adult Social Services 

Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 

Date: 28th September 2012 

Subject: Shared Service Partnership with Calderdale Metropolitan Borough Council 
to meet Adult Social Care Technology Requirements 

 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:  

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. The council’s executive board gave approval on 18th July 2012 to enter into a 
partnership agreement with Calderdale Metropolitan Borough Council for the purchase 
of an initial 20% share of their Adult Social Care Client Information System (CIS) to 
replace the existing ESCR and ESCR financial systems. 

2. It also authorised the necessary capital spend to undertake the following:- 

• purchase a share in the system and implementation support from Calderdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council; 

• implement the Case management, integrated financial and contract management 
modules of Calderdale’s CIS in partnership with Calderdale Metropolitan Borough 
Council to meets Leeds requirements;  

• implement and integrate Leeds City Council’s corporate Electronic Document and 
Records Management System (EDRMS) in parallel with the Case Management 
System;  

• build and develop a reporting and Business Intelligence (BI) solution utilising 
existing corporate reporting and Business Intelligence technology. 

3. Responding to specific concerns raised by Executive Board as to whether the Adult 
Social Care Client Information System used by Calderdale Council would be fit for 
Leeds’ purpose, it was requested that related matters were referred to the Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee, so that the acquisition of the system could be 
monitored 

Recommendations 

 Report author:  Steve Hume 

Tel:  2478704 

Agenda Item 10

Page 67



 

 

4. That the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee review this report and note the 
assurances provided regarding: 

• The diligence conducted to ensure the system will be fully fit for purpose  

• The mechanisms and governance being put in place to effectively support the 
acquisition and implementation of the solution 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report provides members of the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 
with details of the Partnership Arrangements with Calderdale Metropolitan 
Borough Council. 

1.2 The purpose of the report is to provide members of the committee with the 
assurance that the Calderdale Client Information System will be fit for Leeds’ 
purpose and that the acquisition of the system adheres to the procurement rules 
and regulations.  

2 Background information 

2.1 The existing ESCR and ESCR Financial system was deemed to be unfit for 
purpose by an independent review. In addition the system, implemented in 2004, 
is considered at its “end  of life” and will no longer be supported by the supplier 
from May 2013.  

2.2 In January 2011 the decision was taken to progress with the procurement of a 
replacement children’s social care system. The decision was also taken for Adult 
Social Care to defer any procurement until requirements to meet the emerging 
Health and Social Care agenda could be more clearly articulated.  

2.3 With the necessity to migrate to a new system still increasing, a number of options 
for the  replacement of the existing ESCR and ESCR financials systems have been 
investigated  in light of the changing Health and Social Care landscape. Options have 
therefore been  investigated in relation to: 

o Upgrading the existing system 
o The use of health systems 
o The procurement of a third party system (similar to or the same as 

Children’s Social Work Service.) 
o Potential ‘shared service’ arrangement with another local authority where 

we adopt their case management recording system 
 

2.4 To ensure that a rounded view of all the options has been undertaken the following 
key  criteria have been used: 

o Tactical Fit (meets the need to move to a new solution in a timely 
manner) 

o Strategic Fit (potential to support integrated ways of working with 
partners) 

o Business Fit (fit with ASC processes and delivery of its services) 
o Technical Fit (fit with internal technology infrastructure) 
o Risk Factors (associated risks) 
o Implementation Considerations (costs and timescales) 

Page 68



 

 

2.5 An upgrade to the existing ESCR and ESCR Financials systems was considered. 
However,  this would be an expensive, time consuming and resource intensive process 
and whilst  providing a stable, supported platform would not deliver the required 
improved functionality  to meet Adult Social Care’s needs. 

2.6 A long term vision exists for integrated health and social care teams to utilise joint 
or  integrated systems, but currently health systems do not have sufficiently mature 
capability  to support social care processes. Health also use a number of different 
systems across  health establishments including GP surgeries. Work is still ongoing 
with Health and their  suppliers to develop future strategies for improved use and 
integration of health and social  care systems. 

2.7 Consideration has been given to transferring to a 3rd party system but whilst these 
systems  could meet social care requirements, the market is very under developed in 
terms of these  systems hosting both health and social care data/processes.  A 3rd 
party option would also  require a lengthy procurement process which would not meet 
the business need for a  ‘tactical’ solution or provide the flexibility ASC needs to respond 
to a rapidly changing  environment and new ways of working. In addition to this 
constraint it could potentially lock  the council into an expensive, long term contract that, 
when providing joint services with  health, may not be entirely required. 

2.8 A shared service, with Calderdale Metropolitan Borough Council, is the preferred 
option to  provide Adult Social Care with a ‘tactical solution’ as it meets both short and 
medium term  requirements in a cost effective manner. Removing the need for a 
lengthy procurement  process will enable Adult Social Care to migrate to a new 
solution in a more timely manner.  This option also provides a high degree of 
flexibility with opportunities for its potential longer  term use with partners or, if the 
direction changes, reduced use as the council would not be  locked into a 3rd party 
contract. 

3 Main issues 

3.1 Partnership Arrangements 

3.1.1 Leeds City Council will enter into a formal partnership arrangement with Calderdale 
Council for the delivery and support of the Adult Social Care client system.  The 
agreement will not be as prescriptive or of the same nature contractually as similar 
commercial agreements with the private sector. There will be a binding legal 
agreement which will afford both parties mutual benefit and adequate protection for 
the period with flexible exit options and opportunities to extend arrangements if 
agreed by both parties. 

3.1.2 The partnership and commercial arrangements and their future development will be 
governed through a Joint Partnership Board, comprised of; Chief Officer, Resources 
and Strategy (LCC), Head of ICT Strategy, Architecture and Commissioning (LCC), 
Head of Business Change and Performance Management (CMBC), ICT Strategy 
and Projects Manager (CMBC), Head of ASC IM&T (LCC). The remit of this board 
is to manage and monitor the contract and associated SLAs, financial elements, 
and commercial development and management and partnership risks.  

3.1.3 The partnership has many benefits and is based on a public sector shared reward, 
risk and effort model – a true ‘shared service’ arrangement.   For a fee agreed at 
the outset, Leeds City Council will own a stake in the system and this will ‘buy’ the 

Page 69



 

 

right to have an equal say in the development of the system going forward.  
Calderdale will undertake these developments using predominantly their own staff 
and the cost for major work would typically be shared.  However, routine 
developments undertaken for legislative or enhancement reasons would not be 
directly chargeable and would be contained within the annual support and 
maintenance fee payable by Leeds to Calderdale. 

3.1.4 The identification, agreement and prioritisation of the development roadmap for the 
system will be governed by a Joint Strategic Delivery Group comprised of 
operational Heads of Service from Leeds and Calderdale, Head of ASC IM&T 
(LCC), ICT Strategy and Projects Manager (CMBC).    

3.1.5 Calderdale have always been committed to an internal systems development 
strategy and they are less dependent on third party packages for their line of 
business systems.  Leeds historically, mainly because of its size, has been more 
dependent on packaged solutions.  This strategy has served Calderdale well and 
they have developed a reputation for agile development on a technical platform that 
they understand very well and therefore their ability to meet changes in legislation 
and generally keep pace with business driven requirements is well proven.  This 
history and strategy gives Leeds City Council the confidence required to ‘buy into’ a 
system and approach that is highly likely to meet continual legislative and business 
demands for change in a service area which is still emerging and developing 
nationally.  

3.1.6 The actual software and supplier service costs i.e. Calderdale services, are 
comparable to that of a commercial 3rd party supplier. However the added value of 
the partnership is that the initial software cost is purchasing a 20% stake in the 
software as an asset. The cost of services covers developments to improve the 
system and services to assist in its implementation. On completion of the 
implementation Leeds City Council will receive an additional 14% stake in the 
system.  

3.1.7 As part of the terms and conditions, Leeds’ initial stake in the asset would be 
refundable if the system is not successfully delivered to agreed time, quality and 
cost. 

3.1.8 Whatever the stake LCC has in the asset is applicable for the life of the current 
version of the product i.e. even if LCC did cease to use part or all of the product 
they would still retain a stake in that version. 

3.1.9 The agreed cost of the initial stake in the CIS system is based on a share of the 
estimated value of the asset.  There are a number of components to this payment. 
Part of the payment is for the intellectual property itself and the right to operate the 
software.  The system has been developed over a number of years and constitutes 
1000’s of hours of development and developer effort.  Another part of the payment 
relates to the right to have a 50/50 say in the future direction and development  of 
the product.  This is a significant concession and a key element of the partnership.  
With a commercial provider of similar software there would be very little say in the 
direction and development of the product.   The final part of the payment relates to 
the exclusive right to a proportional share in any profits from future sales of the 
system.  Calderdale have successfully sold the system to LCC and another Local 
Authority and they anticipate making further sales.  They are presently engaged in 

Page 70



 

 

commercial discussions with potential partners to market, promote and sell the CIS 
to other LA’s. 

3.1.10 The ‘partnership’ approach outlined above is valid within the council’s procurement 
rules with the significant benefit of retaining investment in the public sector and 
enhanced speed of acquiring the system i.e. without the need for a protracted 
tendering exercise. Due diligence around the functional and technical aspects of the 
system have been and continue to be undertaken to ensure the system is a good fit 
for Leeds in the short and medium term. The future vision of Adult Social Care and 
the Health Reform agenda are an opportunity for Leeds City Council and 
Calderdale to work together on developing the system longer term. Alternatively the 
flexibility of the arrangement provides Leeds City Council (and Calderdale) the 
option of choosing a different route if appropriate without the ‘lock in’ to a contract 
normally associated with public, private contracts. 

3.1.11 There is significant ‘buy in’ to making the proposed model a success from both 
parties and both Chief Executives and respective senior management teams are 
very supportive of this approach. Furthermore, Calderdale have recently entered 
the market for a private sector partner to help market and sell this and other 
Calderdale developed systems. There is initial market interest and therefore the 
opportunity for income to Calderdale and Leeds (for its share of up to 49%).  

3.1.12 As stated there will be a formal partnership agreement drawn up that will provide 
fairness and equality in the partnership as well as protection to both parties if 
circumstances change within either authority. Key principles agreed in this regard 
are: 

o The partnership will be underpinned by a formal legal agreement that will 
provide both parties the necessary benefits, flexibility and protection. 

o A true shared service approach demonstrated in West Yorkshire based on 
shared reward, risk and effort. 

o Funding stays within the two parties and is not for profit and will drive 
shared product development and support. 

o Leeds City Council will have an equal say in the development of the 
solution going forwards in return for an initial purchased stake in the asset 
(system). 

o Not locked into a long term contract.  Minimum period 3 years with options 
to extend and with a 3 month exit arrangement beyond 3 years. 

o Potential for income based on up to 49% share of the system if the system 
is sold to other parties.  This arrangement is exclusive to Leeds City 
Council. 

o There will be a Partnership Board whose purpose will be to develop and 
monitor the governance and delivery of the agreement both for the 
implementation and for ongoing arrangements. The board will have 
operational, ICT and legal representation from both parties 

o The will be an strategic development group formed of operational 
managers from Leeds and Calderdale whose purpose will be to agree 
future roadmaps and priorities for system development for both parties. 

Page 71



 

 

This “user group” would potentially grow as other authorities utilised the 
system in the future.   

3.2 Implementation Governance 

3.2.1 A programme delivery board is being established which will be chaired by the 
appropriate Chief Officer within Adult Social Care. The remit of this board is to 
govern and manage the implementation, implementation resources, change 
plans, dependencies, implementation risks and issues, project budget and 
benefits realisation. 

3.2.2 The board will report directly to the Adults Directorate Leadership Team who will 
have overall responsibility as the sponsoring group for governing the partnership 
agreement and the successful implementation.  

3.2.3 The delivery board for this phase of the implementation will comprise of senior 
operational managers, senior supplier representation from ICT and Calderdale, 
and senior financial mangers.   

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 Consultation and engagement with operational staff is one of the key lessons 
learnt from  the previous implementation of the ESCR system, therefore operational staff 
as ‘end  users’ are at the forefront of these emerging developments.  Business Process 
Re  engineering (BPR) resources have also enabled us to capture all our Adult Social 
Care  processes across the assessment and care management pathway and these 
have  formed the basis of the statement of requirements for the replacement system 
which has  been used to assess the business fit of the system for use in Leeds.  

4.1.2 In defining and evaluating the Calderdale proposal there has been cross working 
with  officers across Adults and Children’s service teams. Management of issues and 
risks in  migrating Children’s and Adults from the same system to different solutions are 
being  coordinated and managed across the two programmes of work. 

4.1.3 Consideration has also been given to the future development of the Calderdale 
system and how this fits with LCC’s technology roadmap for Adult Social Care. 
This roadmap of  technology has been developed in consultation with the Leeds 
Informatics Board which is part of the Leeds Health and Social Care 
Transformation Programme. This board is taking the lead to develop the joint 
strategies to deliver joined up health and social care information through the 
Leeds Care Record. A key benefit of the partnership will be joint working between 
LCC, Calderdale and local health services to develop these strategies to join 
client and patient information more effectively.  

 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 In line with the requirement to ensure we give due regard to equality issues in 
relation to the replacement system proposal, an equality screening tool has been 

Page 72



 

 

completed. This document sets out the areas that will be ‘impacted’ by this 
proposal and the actions which need to be taken to mitigate these impacts.  

4.2.2 The technology components will improve customer experiences and progress 
services whilst enabling us to measure quality. The technology is the foundation 
to ensuring that care can be delivered in the most appropriate manner across all 
client groups maximising the achievement of individually identified outcomes. 

4.2.3 Adult Social Care provides a route to services that are accessible to all citizens of 
Leeds with social care needs. There is also a particular emphasis on engagement 
with service users and their carers to ensure that choice, flexibility and control are 
delivered through personalised services. This proposal will enhance these 
processes and facilitate a more person-centred approach.  

4.2.4 The replacement of the current case management system mainly impacts 
internally on social work staff and other administrative functions aligned to the 
assessment and case management processes. The integration of contract 
monitoring and financial processes should also ensure that the new system 
supports our safeguarding responsibilities and reduces risk of harm or exploitation 
of our most vulnerable service users.    

4.2.5 Future developments such as the introduction of e-Market Place and the Councils 
new web site will however have a direct impact on service users.  To mitigate this 
impact we are working to remove the barriers and obstacles that people often 
experience by providing a universal offer of information, guidance and support for 
all residents of Leeds. Arrangements have been put in place to ensure these 
developments include service user consultation.  

4.2.6 We are working with our Customer Service colleagues and other operational staff 
teams to develop a more efficient customer relationship. This will improve the 
customer experience by “getting it right first time”. This will reduce unnecessary 
referrals and assessments and allow time and resources to be redirected to those 
who need it most. It will also provide more opportunities for service users to 
contact us in a variety of ways and share information with us in a more flexible 
manner. 

4.2.7 The replacement system and associated developments for customer access to 
services will therefore impact on a wide spectrum of stakeholders, with 
implications for finance processes, staffing and resource allocation, job 
specifications, staff training and business support requirements and ongoing 
stakeholder engagement and communication strategies. 

4.2.8 With every proposed change to the current processes and practice, there have 
been consultation sessions with workers across all levels of the operational 
teams.  This analysis and feedback has been incorporated into the replacement 
systems project core business plan and any products emerging from the identified 
requirements have formed the basis of the future replacement system model.   

4.2.9 As we monitor the progress of these developments we will be able to ensure the 
actions identified in the EIA screening tool are reviewed and actioned accordingly. 

4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities 

Page 73



 

 

4.3.1 The Vision for Leeds 2011-2030 states the ambition for Leeds to become the best 
city for health and wellbeing by 2030. This programme will support this ambition 
by ensuring Adult Social Care has effective and efficient information systems and 
can efficiently and effectively share information with partners to holistically 
improve customer outcomes. This will reduce duplication in assessment 
processes and ensure that the right level of customer information is available to 
those professionals who need it. The customer experience will be improved and 
practitioners will be better placed to support service users to achieve the 
outcomes that are important to them, while making limited resources go further. 

4.3.2 Corporately Leeds City Council has identified a list of the ‘Top 25 Priorities’ to be 
delivered within the year 2012. The Adult Social Care Directorate has proposed 
three of these priorities based on our ‘better lives’ theme: 

o Better lives through enterprise 
o Better lives through integration  
o Better lives through housing care and support. 

4.3.3 These priorities aim to reduce inequalities in the health of the citizens of Leeds, 
address the challenges that are presented by more people living longer and 
ensure people receive high quality services. 

4.3.4 Underpinning the priorities is the principle of personalisation; seeing every service 
user as an individual and supporting them to achieve their personal priority 
outcomes. Leeds Adult Social Care aims to enable people to exercise greater 
choice and control over the support they receive. The increased variety of 
services accessible through individual budgets will require Adult Social Care to be 
responsive to demands for different types of care and support. The realisation of 
these priorities and the delivery of quality services is dependant upon the support 
of high quality and appropriate information systems. This programme will support 
the capturing of information about how self-funders and direct payment recipients 
are choosing to meet their needs. This information will provide us with a more 
accurate picture of the overall care market and enable us to respond to this 
information and deliver the services that people want, in the way that they want 
them.  

4.3.5 If better lives are to be achieved through integration, technology must support new 
models of service delivery and provide robust information transfer between social 
care and other partners. This programme will ensure we are in the best possible 
position to support integrated teams in the future. Improved information sharing 
will enable professionals to coordinate support and allow service users to access 
the most appropriate services in their local area, improving access and reducing 
delays and duplication.  

4.3.6 This programme will contribute towards the Council’s resource priorities to: 

o Create the environment for effective partnership working 

o Improve the Information Communication Technology (ICT) infrastructure to 
support the delivery of priorities 

o Maintain effective arrangements to buy goods and services that give value 
for money. 

Page 74



 

 

o Maintain effective audit and risk management arrangements 

o Staff are fully involved in delivering change and feel able to make an 
impact on how services are delivered 

4.3.7 Improved information management systems will create efficiencies and so release 
resources to meet the challenges of bringing about large scale business change 
and reorganisation across health and social care. Improved electronic care 
records alongside the use of electronic forms will significantly reduce the volume 
of paper forms and records that need to be retained.  

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 Several options have been assessed in relation to their business fit and value for 
money  The partnership option is considered the most appropriate option because 
of the cost as well as the other benefits outlined in 3.7.    

4.4.2 The costs Executive Board were asked to approve were capital funding for the 
purchase  and implementation of the Calderdale CIS system, EDRMS and enhanced 
reporting and  business intelligence capability. It is the intention to fund this 
investment from capital  grant funding provided by Department of Health accumulated 
over 2011/12, 2012/13.  The  council therefore does not require any further borrowing to 
fund this investment.  

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 A ‘shared service’ model is an innovative approach which requires careful 
diligence and specific arrangements put in place to be successful. This project 
has the relevant procurement and legal resources working on defining and 
documenting the partnership and commercial principles and arrangements. This 
will ensure that Leeds City Council has the relevant assurances and protection in 
place. 

4.5.2 The partnership arrangements described in section 3.2 have been developed in 
consultation with the Council’s Head of Property, Finance and Technology and the 
Council’s Procurement Governance and Regulations Manager.  

4.5.3 The confidential information relates to financial information about the partnership 
arrangements between Calderdale and Leeds. The information includes details of 
the 20% stake which effectively puts a value on their system, and their proposal 
for a value for the support and maintenance for Leeds. The main point in 
considering this information as confidential was not to prejudice Calderdale's 
position,  in relation to their plans for commercialisation of this and other products. 
This may have a potential knock on effect on the value of Leeds’ stake on 
entering the partnership if this information was in the public domain. 

4.5.4 The scheme was approved by the Executive Board 18th July 2012 and called in to 
Scrutiny Board (Health and Well-being and Adult Social Care). The outcome of 
the call in was the recommendation for the decision to be released for 
implementation.  

4.6 Risk Management 

Page 75



 

 

4.6.1 A risk management strategy has been formulated to manage both the unique risks 
associated with the partnership and risks associated with a system  
implementation of this nature. Business, operational and technical risks will be 
managed through a dedicated delivery board. Any risks that have potential impact 
on delivery of frontline services will be escalated and monitored by Adult Social 
Care Senior Leadership Team.   

4.6.2 A number of risks are partnership risks, some of which are jointly owned, which 
will be managed as part of the terms and conditions of the partnership agreement. 
These risks will be monitored and managed through a joint Delivery Board and 
escalation through the Partnership Board.  

4.6.3 The key risks associated with the partnership and implementation can be 
categorised under the following headings.  As stated these risks are being 
managed through the governance framework that is being put in place.  

 
1. Calderdale system is not fit for business purpose  

• A key part of the options appraisal has been an assessment of the business 
and technical fit of the proposed solutions. This assessment is based on 
criteria to meet short term requirements i.e. like for like replacement of 
existing system; medium term requirements i.e. additional needed capability 
to improve services and integrate with partners; long term requirements i.e. 
provide the platform to meet future health and social care  models.  

• Business engagement has been at the heart of the evaluation process and 
the evaluation for the shared service model has been undertaken alongside 
operational staff from Adult Social Care. Approximately 50 Adult Social Care 
operational staff have thus far been involved in the initial evaluation of 
business fit and have provided positive feedback in relation to this aspect of 
the evaluation. The project also benefits from having full time dedicated staff 
from the operational teams involved in all areas of the developments, together 
with representatives from all service areas assessing the business fit of the 
system.  

• The evaluation exercise identified a number of gaps in functionality between 
LCC’s existing system and Calderdale’s CIS system. Calderdale have 
committed to developing the system to meet LCC requirements once the 
critical areas have been agreed. It is envisaged that there will be minimal 
developments required for day 1. Differences have also been identified in the 
way LCC and Calderdale work and there are opportunities to take advantage 
of the new system’s capability and adopt improved ways of working in both 
Leeds and Calderdale  

• Informed by lessons learnt from previous implementations and discussions 
with other authorities, the implementation stage will involve many front line 
practitioners and specialists. This dedicated and virtual team will be fully 
involved in the evaluation, design, build, testing and roll out of the system as 
well as ongoing partnership working with Calderdale to ensure the solution 
fully meets requirements to support effective and efficient ways of working in 
Leeds now and in the future. 

Page 76



 

 

 
2. Capacity of system to support authority the size of Leeds 

• An assessment has been made of the technology utilised by Calderdale to 
ascertain whether it can operate on LCC’s infrastructure and whether it will 
support the number of users in Leeds. The CIS system is  Oracle based and 
therefore should not present any technical issues in its use in Leeds. Full 
performance testing will, however, be carried out at specific stages to ensure 
it is fully fit for purpose before it is deployed into a live environment. Provision 
has been made to employ specialist services to carry out independent testing 
if required.   

 
3. Capacity of Calderdale to support implementation of this scale  

 

• Calderdale are recruiting additional technical capability to support the 
implementation, cater for ongoing research and development of the system 
and provide ongoing levels of support for all users. The implementation 
service costs that were built into the business case will fund some of the 
additional implementation capacity. Additional mitigation of this risk has been 
made in the provision of funding for additional specialist resources if required. 
The annual support and maintenance charges paid to Calderdale will fund 
contribute to the ongoing support and development of the system.    

 
4. Capacity within LCC to support implementation and delivery of change 

 

• To ensure a successful implementation provision has been made in the 
business case to make certain the programme can be resourced with the right 
level of appropriately skilled business, technical and specialist staff. Provision 
has also been made to fill any gaps in capacity, skills or knowledge with 
external expertise if required.   

 

• The programme has been broken down into manageable stages with clear 
scope and priorities. The implementation will be governed and managed in 
line with corporate and industry recognised programme and project 
management methodologies.  

 
5. Capacity of service to manage scale and complexity of change in parallel with 

other operational pressures and changes 
 

• As stated previously one factor in a successful implementation of this nature is 
the full ownership and involvement of the business throughout. To minimise 
any impact on frontline services for key staff to be involved, provision has 
been made to fund dedicated roles that will provide the business expertise 
and knowledge.  

 

• A role has also been created for a Head of Business Change. A key 
responsibility for this role is to identify, manage and coordinate operational 
dependencies and their impact both on the project and day to day front line 
service.  

 

Page 77



 

 

• Governance of the implementation, including responsibility for monitoring and 
managing the risks, will be via a dedicated delivery board chaired by a Chief 
Officer within Adult Social Care. Clear priorities are being agreed and 
communicated to operational mangers.  

5 Conclusions 

5.1 The approach and work that has been carried out in initiating and drawing up the 
Partnership arrangements and the intensive evaluation of the system itself 
provides the council with the assurance that the solution will be fit for purpose to 
fully support Adult Social Care services.  

5.2 The approach to implementation and involvement of front line practitioners in the 
evaluation, design, build and testing of the system as well as ongoing partnership 
working with Calderdale provides assurance that the solution will continue to be fit 
for purpose in the short, medium and long term. 

5.3 The robust risk management approach to manage risks to the council, the service, 
benefit realisation and implementation of the project is a critical factor in the 
success of this programme and will continue to be managed in this way 
throughout.  

6 Recommendations 

6.1 That the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee review this report and note 
the assurances provided regarding 

• The diligence conducted to ensure the system will be fully fit for purpose  

• The mechanisms and governance being put in place to effectively support the 
acquisition and implementation of the solution 

7 Background documents1  

 

None used 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 78



 

 

Report of the Director of Resources 

Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 

Date: 28th September 2012  

Subject: Audited Statement of Accounts and the Value for Money Assessment            
2011/12 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. KPMG have issued their audit report to this Committee (see attached). The report 
provides:  

o an unqualified opinion on the 2011/12 Statement of Accounts;  

o confirms that audit has identified one significant adjustments to the 
accounts related to the transfer of a school to academy status; and 

o a view that the Annual Governance Statement complies with the 
CIPFA/SOLACE framework and that it is not misleading or inconsistent with 
other information they are aware of from their audit of the financial 
statements.  

o a value for money (VFM) conclusion that the Council has made proper 
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. 

2. To date the Council has identified five post balance sheet events. Cumulatively 
these events are not deemed material and as such there is no requirement to 
retrospectively adjust the 2011/12 accounts. 

3. The accounts have been certified by the Responsible Finance Officer as a true 
and fair view of the Council’s financial position as at 31st March 2011.  

 Report author:  Chris Blythe 

Tel:  x74287 

Agenda Item 11

Page 79



 

 

Recommendations 

4. Members are asked to receive the report of the Council’s external auditors on the 
2011/12 accounts and to note the amendments made to the Accounts. 

5. Members are asked to approve the final audited 2011/12 Statement of Accounts 
and the Chair to acknowledge the approval on behalf of the Committee by signing 
the appropriate section within the Statement of Responsibilities on page 1 of the 
accounts. 

6. On the basis of assurances received, the Chair is asked to sign the management 
representation letter on behalf of the Corporate Governance and Audit 
Committee.  

7. Note KPMG’s VFM conclusion that the Council has made proper arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This Committee agreed to release the unaudited 2011/12 Statement of Accounts 
for public inspection on the 4th July 2012. Under this Committee’s terms of 
reference, members are now required to approve the Council’s final audited 
Statement of Accounts and consider any material amendments recommended by 
the auditors. 

2 Background information 

2.1 Under the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011, the Council’s 
statutory finance officer, the Director of Resources, has certified that the 
Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Council. On completion of the Audit, the regulations also require that the 
accounts are approved by resolution of a Committee and published, together with 
the auditor’s opinion and report. 

3 Main issues 

3.1 Key External Audit Findings 
 
3.1.1 Audit Opinion 

KPMG have determined that the 2011/12 accounts give a true and fair view of the 
Council’s financial position and they are therefore proposing to issue an 
unqualified audit opinion. 

  
3.1.2  Audit Differences 

On conclusion of the audit, KPMG identified one significant audit difference which 
required amendment to the accounts. This related to the planned transfer of a 
school to academy status in 2011/12. The transfer was incorrectly accounted for 
in 2011/12 as the actual transfer had been delayed into the new year. The 
resulting amendment to the accounts has had no impact on the Council’s bottom 
line and procedures have been updated to ensure that this does not reoccur in 
the future. 

Page 80



 

 

In addition to the above issue there have been a small number of minor and 
presentational changes made to the accounts. The impact of all changes to the 
accounts are summarised in section 3 of KPMG’s report.   
 

3.1.3 Audit Risks 
 

KPMG’s Financial Statements Audit Plan, as reported to this Committee on the 
27th February 2012, identified three main areas of risk in compiling the financial 
statements for 2011/12. The three risks were in respect of the Council’s ability to 
meet the required savings target; the reasonableness of the Council’s 
componentisation policy and the compliance with new accounting standards. 
KPMG’s audit report recognises that all three risks have been addressed. 
 

3.1.4 Audit recommendations  
 

The audit report identifies two recommendation (see Appendix 1 of KPMG’s 
report). The first relates to a weakness in procedures for ensuring planned 
academy school transfers have not been delayed until after the 31st March. The 
second relates to quality assurance procedures to ensure correct valuations are 
included in the accounts for heritage assets. In both cases procedures have now 
been amended to ensure correct supporting documentation is obtained to verify 
the transactions. There are no outstanding recommendations from previous years 
which require further Council action. 

 
3.1.5 Use of Resources 
 

KPMG are required to report to those charged with governance, any governance 
issues identified when discharging their statutory audit responsibilities. They have 
therefore included in their report an update on the Council’s arrangements to 
secure value for money in its use of resources.  

KPMG have concluded that the Council has made proper arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

 
3.1.6 Review of the Annual Governance Statement 
 

KPMG have confirmed that, in their opinion, the statement complies with the 
CIPFA/SOLACE framework and that it is not misleading or inconsistent with other 
information they are aware of from their audit of the financial statements. 
     

3.2 Post Balance Sheet Events 
 
3.2.1 Under proper accounting practice the Council is required to consider any post 

balance sheet events which, if known at the time of the accounts being produced, 
would have significantly altered the Council’s financial statements. If such events 
have occurred then the Council is required to amend the accounts if the 
cumulative value of the events would have a material impact on the Council’s 
financial statements. Such events must be considered up until this Committee 
approves the final accounts and the auditors provide their audit certificate.  

Page 81



 

 

3.2.2 As at the 20th September there have been five such events, mainly relating to the 
settlement of contractual disputes. The cumulative impact of these events on the 
Council’s General Reserve would be £581k. This is not deemed significant by 
KPMG and the Council is therefore not required to retrospectively adjust the 
accounts. Consequently the financial impact of these events will be accounted for in 
2012/13. 

3.2.3 As outlined in para 3.2.1 above, any post balance sheet events must be considered 
up until the accounts are approved. As such a verbal update will be provided at 
Committee to confirm the final position.  

3.3 Public Inspection Queries 

3.3.1 Under the statutory timescales for public inspection of the accounts, the Council 
has had a number of enquiries requesting information in respect of PFI schemes 
and details of expenditure on city centre properties. Under statute, stakeholders 
have the right to question the auditors and request either an amendment to the 
accounts or the issuing of a public inspection report. As of the 20th September no 
questions have been raised to the auditors on these or any other issues. 

3.4 Management Representation letter 

 

3.4.1 The auditors are required by the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice to 
undertake the audit work on the accounts in compliance with International 
Standards on Auditing (ISAs). ISAs contain a mixture of mandatory procedures 
and explanatory guidance.  Within the mandatory procedures are requirements to 
obtain written representations from management on certain matters material to 
the audit opinion. The management representation letter is designed to give audit 
such assurances. In respect of the 2011/12 accounts the letter is contained in the 
attached KPMG report as appendix 5. After consultation with appropriate officers, 
the Director of Resources has signed to confirm that officers are not aware of any 
compliance issues on the representation matters raised in the letter.  

3.4.2 The Committee is asked to consider whether members are aware of any issues 
they want to bring to the auditors attention in respect of the matters addressed in 
the management representation letter. If there are no such issues the Committee 
is asked to agree that the Chair can sign the letter on behalf of the Committee.  

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 As this is a factual report based on past financial performance no public, Ward 
Member or Councillor consultation or engagement has been sought. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 As this is a factual report based on past financial performance there are no direct 
implications for equality, diversity, cohesion and integration. 

 

Page 82



 

 

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 As this is a factual report based on past financial performance there are no direct 
implications for Council policies or City priorities. 

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 KPMG’s report includes an audit opinion on whether the Council has proper 
arrangements for securing value for money. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 require the audited Statement 
of Accounts to be published before the 30th September. Under this Committees 
terms of reference, members are required to approve the Council’s final audited 
Statement of Accounts and consider any material amendments recommended by 
the auditors. 

4.5.2 As this is a factual report based on past financial information none of the 
information enclosed is deemed to be sensitive or requesting decisions going 
forward and therefore raises no issues for access to information or call in. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 External Audit identified two risk in their recommendations and officers have 
established new procedures and controls to mitigate these risks.    

5 Conclusions 

5.1 The external audit report provides the following assurances to members: 

o An unqualified opinion on the 2011/12 Statement of accounts. 

o A value for money conclusion that the Council has made proper arrangements 
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  

o Confirmation that in the auditors opinion the Council’s Annual Governance 
Statement complies with the CIPFA/SOLACE framework. 

5.2 External Audit have made two recommendation, namely improvements to the 
system for recording the transfer of schools to academy status and the quality 
assurance process for heritage assets. The Council has put in place arrangements 
to comply with these recommendations.  

5.3 As at the 20th September 2012 there have been five post balance sheet events 
identified. It has been determined that these events do not have a material impact 
and as such they have not been adjusted for in the 2011/12 accounts. 

5.4 KPMG have identified one significant adjustment required to the final accounts in 
respect of the transfer of a school to academy status. This adjustment has no 
impact on the Council’s bottom line. 

5.5 To date there are no public inspection queries which have lead to amendment of 
the accounts. 

Page 83



 

 

 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Members are asked to receive the report of the Council’s external auditors on the 
2011/12 accounts and to note the amendments made to the Accounts. 

6.2 Members are asked to approve the final audited 2011/12 Statement of Accounts 
and the Chair to acknowledge the approval on behalf of the Committee by signing 
the appropriate section within the Statement of Responsibilities on page 1 of the 
accounts.   

6.3 On the basis of assurances received, the Chair is asked to sign the management 
representation letter on behalf of the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee.  

6.4 Note KPMG’s VFM conclusion that the Council has made proper arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

7 Background documents1  

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 84



R
t

t
th

R
e
p

o
rt

to
th

o
s
e

c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it

h
 

g
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

(I
S

A
 2

6
0
) 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

L
e
e
d

s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

Page 85



C
o

n
te

n
ts

T
h

e
 c

o
n

ta
c
ts

 a
t 

K
P

M
G

 

in
 c

o
n

n
e
c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
is

 

re
p

o
rt

 a
re

:

P
a
g

e

R
e

p
o

rt
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
s

p

M
ik

e
 M

c
D

o
n

a
g

h

P
a
rt

n
e
r

K
P

M
G

 L
L
P

 (
U

K
)

T
e
l:

+
4
4

(0
)

2
0
7

6
9
4

5
5
4
6

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

2

H
e

a
d
lin

e
s

3

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

5

T
e
l:

+
 4

4
 (

0
) 

2
0
7
 6

9
4
 5

5
4
6

m
ic

h
a
e
l.
a
.m

c
d
o
n
a
g
h
@

k
p
m

g
.c

o
.u

k

S
te

v
e
 C

la
rk

D
ir
e
c
to

r

K
P

M
G

 L
L
P

 (
U

K
)

V
F

M
c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ic

e
s

1
.

K
e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s

1
8

1
8

(
)

T
e
l:

+
 4

4
 (

0
) 

1
1
3
 2

5
4
 2

9
1
0

s
te

p
h
e
n
.c

la
rk

@
k
p
m

g
.c

o
.u

k

H
e
a
th

e
r 

G
a
rr

e
tt

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

2
.

F
o

llo
w

-u
p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e

a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s

3
.

A
u
d
it
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s

4
.

D
e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n

o
f 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y

2
0

2
4

2
5

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

o
le

 u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

W
e
 t

a
k
e
 n

o
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 t

o
 a

n
y
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 a

c
ti

n
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l 

c
a
p

a
c
it

ie
s
, 

o
r 

to
 t

h
ir

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s
. 

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 a
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n

t 
e
n

ti
tl

e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it

e
d

 B
o

d
ie

s
. 

T
h

is
 

s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s

 o
f 

a
u

d
it

o
rs

 b
e
g

in
 a

n
d

 e
n

d
 a

n
d

 w
h

a
t 

is
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
e
d

 b
o

d
y
. 

W
e
 d

ra
w

 y
o

u
r 

a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s

 a
v
a

il
a

b
le

 

th
A

d
it

C
i

i
’

b
it

t
d

it
i

i
k

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

K
P

M
G

 L
L
P

 (
U

K
)

T
e
l:

+
 4

4
 (

0
) 

1
6
1
 2

4
6
 4

2
9
4

h
e
a
th

e
r.

g
a
rr

e
tt
@

k
p
m

g
.c

o
.u

k

D
e
b

o
ra

h
R

u
m

s
e
y

5
.

D
ra

ft
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 l
e
tt

e
r

2
7

o
n

th
e

A
u

d
it

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
’s

 w
e
b

s
it

e
 a

t 
w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
.

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u

d
it

o
rs

 d
o

 n
o

t 
a
c
t 

a
s
 a

 s
u

b
s
ti

tu
te

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e
d

 b
o

d
y
’s

 o
w

n
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

p
u

tt
in

g
 i

n
 p

la
c
e
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

p
u

b
li

c
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
s
 c

o
n

d
u

c
te

d
 

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 l

a
w

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

e
r 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

p
u

b
li

c
 m

o
n

e
y
 i

s
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

e
d

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

e
rl

y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r,
 a

n
d

 u
s
e
d

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

a
ll

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl

y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

ly
.

If
 y

o
u

 h
a
v
e
 a

n
y
 c

o
n

c
e
rn

s
 o

r 
a
re

 d
is

s
a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 w
it

h
 a

n
y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

K
P

M
G

’s
 w

o
rk

, 
in

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

in
s
ta

n
c
e
 y

o
u

 s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

M
ik

e
 M

c
D

o
n

a
g

h
, 
th

e
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
le

a
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

, 
w

h
o

 w
il

l 
tr

y
 t

o
 r

e
s

o
lv

e
 y

o
u

r 
c
o

m
p

la
in

t.
 I

f 
y
o

u
 a

re
 d

is
s
a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 w
it

h
 y

o
u

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e
 p

le
a
s
e
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

T
re

v
o

r 
R

e
e
s
 o

n
 0

1
6
1

2
4
6
 4

0
0
0
, 
o

r 
b

y
 e

m
a
il

 t
o

 

tr
e
v
o

r.
re

e
s
@

k
p

m
g

.c
o

.u
k

, 
w

h
o

 i
s

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

fo
r 

a
ll

 o
f 

K
P

M
G

’s
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

. 
A

ft
e

r 
th

is
, 

if
 y

o
u

 a
re

 s
ti

ll
 d

is
s

a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 w
it

h
 h

o
w

 y
o

u
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 h
a
n

d
le

d
 y

o
u

 c
a
n

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

. 
P

u
t 

y
o

u
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
in

 w
ri

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 U
n

it
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r,

 A
u

d
it

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
W

e
s
tw

a
rd

H
o

u
s
e

L
im

e
K

il
n

C
lo

s
e

S
to

k
e

G
if

fo
rd

B
ri

s
to

l
B

S
3
4

8
S

R
o

r
b

y
e
m

a
il

to
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
@

a
u

d
it

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
g

o
v

u
k

T
h

e
ir

te
le

p
h

o
n

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

is
0
8
4
4

D
e
b

o
ra

h
R

u
m

s
e
y

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r

K
P

M
G

 L
L
P

 (
U

K
)

T
e
l:

+
4
4
 (

0
) 

1
1
3
 2

3
1
 3

0
6
9

d
e
b
o
ra

h
ru

m
s
e
y
@

k
p
m

g
c
o

u
k

1
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
,
W

e
s

tw
a
rd

H
o

u
s
e
,
L

im
e

K
il

n
C

lo
s
e

,
S

to
k
e

G
if

fo
rd

,
B

ri
s
to

l,
B

S
3
4

8
S

R
o

r
b

y
e

m
a

il
to

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
@

a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
.

T
h

e
ir

te
le

p
h

o
n

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

is
0
8
4
4

7
9
8
 3

1
3
1
, 

te
x
tp

h
o

n
e
 (

m
in

ic
o

m
) 

0
2
0
 7

6
3
0
 0

4
2
1
.

d
e
b
o
ra

h
.r

u
m

s
e
y
@

k
p
m

g
.c

o
.u

k

Page 86



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

n
e

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

O
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 b

e
 s

p
lit

 i
n
to

 f
o
u
r 

p
h
a
s
e
s
:

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 V

F
M

 

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
is

k
 a

re
a
s
 

id
if
i

d
i

I
i

A
d
i

R
2
0
1
1
/1

2

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e
s
:

th
e
 k

e
y
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 i

d
e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

d
u

ri
n

g
 o

u
r 

a
u

d
it

 o
f 

L
e
e
d

s
 

W
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 o
n
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
tw

o
 s

ta
g
e
s
 i
n
 o

u
r 

In
te

ri
m

A
u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
is

s
u
e
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

. 
 

T
h
i

t
f

th
fi

l
t

t
b

t
ti

d

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 o

u
r 

In
te

ri
m

A
u
d
it

R
e
p
o
rt

2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
d
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:

S
ti

2
i

th
h

d
li

g

C
it

y
C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 (

‘t
h

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

‘s
) 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n

d
e
d

 3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
; 

a
n

d

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

S
u

b
s
ta

n
ti

v
e
 

P
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
P

la
n

n
in

g

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 f
o
c
u
s
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
l 
tw

o
 s

ta
g
e
s
: 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
. 

It
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

n
y
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fi
n

d
in

g
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

o
u
r 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 w

e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

u
r 

In
te

ri
m

 A
u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
.

O
u
r 

o
n
 s

it
e
 f

in
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 v
is

it
 t

o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 9
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2
 a

n
d
 1

4
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 

D
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
is

 p
e
ri
o
d
, 

w
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

th
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 w

o
rk

:

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
d
lin

e
 m

e
s
s
a
g
e
s
.

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3

 s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

th
e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4

 o
u
tl
in

e
s
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 o
u
r 

w
o
rk

 o
n
 t

h
e
 V

F
M

 

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
.

o
u

r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 

to
 s

e
c
u

re
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e
y
 (

V
F

M
) 

in
 i
ts

 u
s
e
 o

f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s

p
g

p
g

O
u
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 y

o
u
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 p

ri
o
r 

y
e
a
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 t

h
is

 i
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
.

A
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e
m

e
n

ts

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
.

W
e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

re
p

e
a
t 

m
a
tt

e
rs

 w
e
 

h
a
v
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
te

d
 t

o
 y

o
u

. 
In

 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r,

 w
e
 d

ra
w

 y
o

u
r 

Substantive 

Procedures

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e
 a

u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
.

C
o
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

n
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 m

a
tt
e
rs

. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

u
d
it
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

. 

R
e
v
ie

w
in

g
th

e
A

n
n
u
a
l
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t

W
e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
l 
p
h
a
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
. 

S
o
m

e
 a

s
p
e
c
ts

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 

d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

:

g

W
e
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 t
a
k
e
 t

h
is

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 t
h
a
n
k
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 

fo
r 

th
e
ir
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 h

e
lp

 a
n
d
 c

o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o

u
t 

o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

.

a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 o

u
r 

In
te

ri
m

 A
u

d
it

 

R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
, 

p
re

s
e
n

te
d

 t
o

 

y
o

u
 o

n
 4

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1
2
, 

w
h

ic
h

 

s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e
d

 o
u

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 

a
n

d
in

te
ri

m
a
u

d
it

w
o

rk

S

P

R
e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t.

 

n

D
e
c
la

ri
n
g
 o

u
r 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
.

a
n

d
in

te
ri

m
a
u

d
it

w
o

rk
.

Completion

g
p

j
y

O
b
ta

in
in

g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
. 

R
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 m

a
tt
e
rs

 o
f 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t.

F
o
rm

in
g
 o

u
r 

a
u
d
it
 o

p
in

io
n
. 

2
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 87



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
w

o

H
e
a
d

li
n

e
s

T
h

is
 t

a
b

le
 s

u
m

m
a
ri

s
e
s
 o

u
r 

h
e
a
d

li
n

e
 m

e
s
s
a
g

e
s
. 

T
h

e
 

re
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 

th
is

 r
e

p
o

rt

A
u

d
it

 p
ro

g
re

s
s

A
t 
th

e
 d

a
te

 o
f 
th

is
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
o
u
r 

a
u
d
it

o
f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

 c
o
m

p
le

te
.

W
e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 w

o
rd

in
g
 o

f 
y
o
u
r 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
rd

s
 w

it
h
 o

u
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
. 

p

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

il
s
 o

n
 

e
a
c
h

 a
re

a
.

A
u

d
it

 a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
O

u
r 

a
u
d
it
 h

a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 o

n
e
 a

u
d
it
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 a

 v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
£
1
6
.6

 m
ill

io
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

 d
is

p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 

a
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
w

h
ic

h
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y
 s

ta
tu

s
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
. 

T
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
is

 a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t:

h
a
s
 n

o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
fu

n
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
;

d
e
c
re

a
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

e
fi
c
it
 o

n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

b
y
 £

1
6
.6

 m
ill

io
n
; 

a
n
d

in
c
re

a
s
e
s

th
e

n
e
t

w
o
rt

h
o
f
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

a
s

a
t
3
1

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
2

b
y

£
1
6

6
m

ill
io

n
in

c
re

a
s
e
s

th
e
 n

e
t 

w
o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 b

y
 £

1
6
.6

 m
ill

io
n
.

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
e
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 e

n
tr

ie
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
is

 a
u
d
it
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
. 
 I

t 
is

 o
u
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

. 
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 r

a
is

e
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

b
o

th
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h
e
 m

a
tt
e
r 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 a

b
o
v
e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r

a
u
d
it
 

m
a
tt
e
rs

, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
.

C
it

i
l

ti
W

h
k

d
it
h

O
ff

i
th

h
t

th
t

d
i

if
i

i
k

T
h

A
th

it
h

i
t

l
C

ri
ti

c
a
l 
a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g

m
a
tt

e
rs

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 w

o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
is

k
 a

re
a
s
. 
T

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t

h
a
t

w
e
 r

a
is

e
d
. 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l
s
ta

n
d

in
g

(s
a

v
in

g
s

p
la

n
s
)

–
T

h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

la
rg

e
ly

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
it
s

£
9
0

m
ill

io
n

s
a
v
in

g
s

in
2

0
1
1
/1

2
a
n

d

o
v
e
ra

ll
is

£
1
.5

m
ill

io
n

u
n
d
e
r

s
p
e
n
t

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
to

th
e

o
ri
g
in

a
l

b
u
d
g

e
t

a
t

y
e

a
r-

e
n
d
,

a
ft
e
r

ta
k
in

g
a
c
c
o
u
n
t

o
f

£
3
.6

m
ill

io
n

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

n
e
t

s
a
v
in

g
s
.

6
3

6
fu

ll-
ti
m

e
e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t

s
ta

ff
h
a
v
e

le
ft

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

u
n
d
e
r

th
e

E
a
rl

y
L
e
a
v
e
rs

’
In

it
ia

ti
v
e

w
h

ic
h

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
to

th
e

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t

o
f
a
lm

o
s
t

a
ll

o
f

th
e

£
4
5

m
ill

io
n

p
la

n
n
e
d

s
ta

ff
c
o
s
t

s
a
v
in

g
s
.

C
o

m
p

o
n

e
n

t
a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
–

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
s

to
a
c
c
o
u
n
t

fo
r

H
R

A
a
s
s
e
ts

o
n

a
n
o
n
-c

o
m

p
o
n
e

n
t

b
a
s
is

.
T

h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

a
la

rg
e
r,

m
o
re

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e

s
a
m

p
le

o
f

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s

to
s
u
p
p
o
rt

th
is

p
o
lic

y
in

2
0
1
1
/1

2
a
n
d

th
e

fi
n
d
in

g
s

s
u
p
p

o
rt

th
e

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y

u
s
e
d
.

W
e

a
re

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

th
a
t

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
p
o
lic

y
is

in

lin
e

w
it
h

c
u
rr

e
n
t

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
.

W
e

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n

d
th

a
t

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

w
ill

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e

to
c
o
n
s
id

e
r

th
e

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te
n
e
s
s

o
f

th
is

p
o
lic

y
g
o
in

g
fo

rw
a
rd

s
a
n
d

in
lig

h
t

o
f
a
n
y

n
e
w

g
u
id

a
n
c
e

is
s
u
e
d

.

C
o

d
e

c
h

a
n

g
e
s

–
W

e
re

v
ie

w
e
d

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
p
ro

c
e
s
s

fo
r

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g

a
n

d
v
a
lu

in
g

h
e
ri
ta

g
e

a
s
s
e
ts

a
n
d

a
re

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

C
o

d
e

c
h

a
n

g
e
s

–
W

e
re

v
ie

w
e
d

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

s
p
ro

c
e
s
s

fo
r

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g

a
n

d
v
a
lu

in
g

h
e
ri
ta

g
e

a
s
s
e
ts

a
n
d

a
re

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

th
a
t

th
is

w
a
s

re
a
s
o
n

a
b
le

.
T

h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

£
4

6
.7

m
ill

io
n

o
f

h
e
ri
ta

g
e

a
s
s
e
ts

a
s

a
t

3
1

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
1

w
h
ic

h
is

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
to

b
e

m
a
te

ri
a
l

to
th

e
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.
T

h
e

A
u

th
o
ri
ty

h
a

s
th

e
re

fo
re

m
a

d
e

a
p
ri

o
r

p
e
ri

o
d

re
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

p
ro

d
u
c
e

d
a

th
ir
d

c
o
m

p
a
ra

ti
v
e

b
a
la

n
c
e

s
h
e
e
t

fo
r

2
0
0
9

/1
0
.

T
h
e

v
a
lu

e
o
f

h
e
ri
ta

g
e

a
s
s
e
ts

a
t

3
1

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1

2
is

£
5
0
.8

m
ill

io
n
,

la
rg

e
ly

a
s

a
re

s
u
lt

o
f

u
p

w
a
rd

s
re

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s

a
n
d

o
n

e
p
u
rc

h
a
s
e

in
y
e

a
r.

W
e

a
re

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

th
a
t

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

c
o
m

p
lie

d
w

it
h

th
e

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

o
f

th
e

2
0
1
1
/1

2
C

o
d
e

in
re

s
p
e
c
t

o
f

h
e
ri
ta

g
e

a
s
s
e
ts

.

3
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 88



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
w

o

H
e
a
d

li
n

e
s
 (

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

T
h

is
 t

a
b

le
 s

u
m

m
a
ri

s
e
s
 t

h
e
 

h
e
a
d

li
n

e
 m

e
s
s
a
g

e
s
. 

T
h

e
 

re
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 

th
is

 r
e

p
o

rt

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 

a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s

T
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 w

o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
rs

 h
a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 h

ig
h
. 

W
h
e
re

v
e
r 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

p
a
p
e
rs

 w
e
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

a
lly

 a
s
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
. 

 O
ff
ic

e
rs

 d
e
a
lt
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 w

it
h
 a

u
d
it
 q

u
e
ri
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

s
.

p

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

il
s
 o

n
 

e
a
c
h

 a
re

a
.

T
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

ll 
o
f 

th
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 o

u
r 

IS
A

 2
6
0
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

A
t

th
e

d
a
te

o
f

th
is

re
p
o
rt

o
u
r

a
u
d
it

o
f

th
e

fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

is
s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

c
o
m

p
le

te
s
u
b
je

c
t

to
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

fo
llo

w
in

g
a
re

a
s
:

P
o
s
t
b
a
la

n
c
e

s
h
e
e
t

e
v
e
n
ts

re
v
ie

w
P

o
s
t 
b
a
la

n
c
e
 s

h
e
e
t 

e
v
e
n
ts

 r
e
v
ie

w

A
u
d
it

o
f 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
it
 p

a
c
k
a
g
e
s

F
in

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

B
e
fo

re
w

e
c
a
n

is
s
u
e

o
u
r

o
p
in

io
n

w
e

a
ls

o
re

q
u
ir
e

a
s
ig

n
e
d

m
a
n
a
g
e

m
e
n
t

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

le
tt
e
r.

W
e

c
o
n
fi
rm

th
a
t

w
e

h
a
v
e

c
o

m
p
lie

d
w

it
h

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

o
n

o
b
je

c
ti
v
it
y

a
n

d
in

d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n
c
e

in
re

la
ti
o

n
to

th
is

y
e
a
r’

s
a
u
d

it
p

q
j

y
p

y

o
f
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 p

ro
p
e

r 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 e
c
o
n
o
m

y
, 

e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 i
ts

 u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

W
e
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

 i
s
s
u
in

g
 a

n
 u

n
q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 V

F
M

 c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 b

y
 3

0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
.

4
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 89



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

re
e

 –
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

A
u

d
it

 d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
s

O
u

r 
a
u

d
it

 h
a
s
 i

d
e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 o
n

e
 

a
u

d
it

 a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
to

 d
a
te

. 
 

T
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
is

 

A
u

d
it

 d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
s

In
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 I

S
A

 2
6
0
 w

e
 a

re
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 u
n
c
o
rr

e
c
te

d
 

a
u
d
it
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 t

o
 y

o
u
. 

W
e
 a

ls
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
n
y
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

h
i

h
h

b
d

d
h
i

h
b

li
h

ld
b

M
o

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 t

h
e

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

£
m

P
re

-a
u

d
it

A
u

d
it

d
if

f.

P
o

s
t-

a
u

d
it

R
e
f

A
p

p
.3

S
u
rp

lu
s
/(

d
e
fi
c
it
) 

o
n
 t

h
e
 

i
i

f
i

(2
5
5

7
)

1
6

6
(2

3
9

1
)

1
p

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
is

 t
o

:

h
a
v
e
 n

o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 

fu
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
a
s
 a

t 
3
1
 

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
2
;

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
rr

e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 b

e
lie

v
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 t

o
 y

o
u
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 y
o
u
 m

e
e
t 

y
o
u
r 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
. 

O
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 o

n
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
u
d
it
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

e
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 

in
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
. 
It
 i
s
 o

u
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
l 

v
e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

(2
5
5
.7

)
1
6
.6

(2
3
9
.1

)
1

A
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 b

a
s
is

 &
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 b

a
s
is

 u
n
d
e
r 

R
e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s

2
5
6
.0

-1
6
.6

2
3
9
.4

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
to

/(
fr

o
m

)
M

a
rc

h
2
0
1
2
;

d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 d

e
fi

c
it

 o
n

 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

b
y
 £

1
6
.6

 

m
il

li
o

n
; 

a
n

d

in
c
re

a
s
e

th
e

n
e
t

w
o

rt
h

o
f

T
h
e
 t
a
b
le

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

ill
u
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
a
u
d
it
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 o

n
 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 s

h
e
e
t 

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 

 T
h
is

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

re
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
a
n
y
 a

d
ju

s
ti
n
g
 p

o
s
t 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 s

h
e
e
t 

e
v
e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 b

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

o
s
t 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 s

h
e
e
t 

e
v
e
n
ts

 u
p
 u

n
ti
l 
3
0
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
1
2

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 t
o
/(

fr
o
m

) 

e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

(4
.4

)
-

(4
.4

)

In
c
re

a
s
e
/(

d
e
c
re

a
s
e
)

in
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
(4

.1
)

-
(4

.1
)

in
c
re

a
s
e

th
e

n
e
t

w
o

rt
h

o
f

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 b

y
 £

1
6
.6

 

m
il

li
o

n
.

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 

 

T
h
e
 n

e
t 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
2
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
u
d
it
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 i
s
 n

il.
  

T
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
ls

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
u
d
it
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
it
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

.
T

h
e
s
e

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

re
fl
e
c
te

d
in

th
e

p
re

-

B
a
la

n
c
e
 S

h
e
e
t 

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2

£
m

P
re

-a
u

d
it

A
u

d
it

d
if

f.

P
o

s
t-

a
u

d
it

R
e
f

A
p

p
.3

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

p
la

n
t 

a
n
d
 

e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

3
,3

5
1
.1

1
6
.6

3
,3

6
7
.7

1
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 a

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

re

a
u
d
it
 f

ig
u
re

s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

a
b
le

s
.

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

w
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
re

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 U

n
it
e
d
 K

in
g
d
o
m

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

(‘
th

e
 C

o
d
e
’)
. 

W
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
s
e
 

w
h
e
re

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

O
th

e
r 

lo
n
g
 t

e
rm

 a
s
s
e
ts

1
1
5
.2

(0
.2

)
1
1
5
.0

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
s
s
e
ts

1
4
5
.2

-
1
4
5
.2

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

lia
b
ili

ti
e
s

(4
0
1
.2

)
-

(4
0
1
.2

)

L
o
n
g

te
rm

lia
b
ili

ti
e
s

(2
9
2
9

4
)

-
(2

9
2
9

4
)

w
h
e
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t.

L
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s

(2
,9

2
9
.4

)
-

(2
,9

2
9
.4

)

N
e
t 

w
o

rt
h

2
8
0
.9

1
6
.4

2
9
7
.3

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d

(2
5
.4

)
-

(2
5
.4

)

O
th

e
r 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
 

(2
5
5
.5

)
(1

6
.4

)
(2

7
1
.9

)
1

T
o

ta
l
re

s
e
rv

e
s

(2
8
0
.9

)
(1

6
.4

)
(2

9
7
.3

)

5
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

T
o

ta
l
re

s
e
rv

e
s

(2
8
0
.9

)
(1

6
.4

)
(2

9
7
.3

)

Page 90



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

re
e

 –
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n

t

T
h

e
 w

o
rd

in
g

 o
f 

y
o

u
r 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n

t 

a
c
c
o

rd
s
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n

t

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a
n
c
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

th
a
t:

u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
.

it
 c

o
m

p
lie

s
 w

it
h
 D

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 G

o
o
d
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t:
 

A
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 C

IP
F

A
/S

O
L
A

C
E

 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
; 

a
n
d

it
 i
s
 n

o
t 

m
is

le
a
d
in

g
 o

r 
in

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 o

th
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

e
 a

re
 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

fr
o
m

 o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 

6
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 91



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

re
e

 –
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

C
ri

ti
c
a
l 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 m

a
tt

e
rs

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 w

o
rk

e
d

 w
it

h
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 s

p
e
c
if

ic
 r

is
k
 

In
 o

u
r 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
, 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 y

o
u
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

, 
w

e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 r

is
k
s
 a

ff
e
c
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 

I
I

i
A

d
i

R
2
0
1
1
/1

2
d

h
A

h
i

’

w
it
h
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

it
s
 c

h
o
s
e
n
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

it
 w

a
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 

p
ri
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 r

e
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

in
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

h
e
ri
ta

g
e
 a

s
s
e
ts

 a
s
 t

h
e
 v

a
lu

e
s
 

w
e
re

 m
a
te

ri
a
l.
  

W
h

l
d

i
f

h
d

p

a
re

a
s
. 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 t
h

e
 

is
s
u

e
s
. 

In
 o

u
r 

In
te

ri
m

A
u
d
it

R
e
p
o
rt

2
0
1
1
/1

2
w

e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
s
e
 k

e
y
 r

is
k
s
. 
W

e
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
a
s
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 i
ts

 p
la

n
n
e
d
 b

u
d
g
e

t,
 t

h
a
t 

it
 h

a
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
w

o
rk

 o
v
e
r 

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 u

s
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

u
r 

te
s
ti
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

o
u
r 

fi
n
a
l 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 o

u
r 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
 t

a
b
le

 b
e
lo

w
 s

e
ts

 

o
u
t 
o
u
r 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 r

is
k
.

K
e
y
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

Is
s
u

e
 r

a
is

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 p

la
n

n
in

g
F

in
d

in
g

s

A
t

th
e

e
n
d

o
f

p
e
ri
o

d
n

in
e
,

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

w
a

s

fo
re

c
a
s
ti
n
g

a
n

o
v
e
rs

p
e

n
d

o
f

£
0
.5

m
ill

io
n

a
g

a
in

s
t

th
e

b
u
d

g
e
t,

a
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n
t

fr
o
m

th
e

£
7
.2

m
ill

io
n

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
p
re

d
ic

te
d

a
t

th
e

e
n

d
o
f

th
e

s
e
c
o
n
d

q
u

a
rt

e
r.

T
h
is

is
p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

d
u

e
to

o
v
e
r

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

's
fi
n
a
l

o
u
tt
u
rn

p
o
s
it
io

n
w

a
s

a
£
1
.5

m
ill

io
n

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
o
n

b
u
d
g
e
t.

T
h
e

m
a
in

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

fr
o
m

th
e

p
e
ri

o
d

n
in

e
p
o
s
it
io

n
re

la
te

s
to

£
2
.1

m
ill

io
n

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

n
e
t

s
a
v
in

g
s

w
h

ic
h

w
e
re

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d

a
ft
e
r

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
.

In
c
lu

d
in

g
,

£
1
.6

m
ill

io
n

o
f

in
te

re
s
t

c
o
s
ts

w
e
re

c
a
p
it
a
lis

e
d

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

s
ta

n
d

in
g

 –

s
a

v
in

g
s

£
8

m
ill

io
n

o
f

u
n
b
u
d

g
e
te

d
fu

n
d
in

g
fr

o
m

th
e

N
H

S

to
s
u
p
p
o
rt

th
e

w
o

rk
in

A
d

u
lt

a
n
d

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

s
o
c
ia

l

c
a
re

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

w
h

ic
h

h
a
s

h
e
lp

e
d

to
o
ff
s
e
t

c
o
n
ti
n
u

in
g

p
re

s
s
u
re

s
in

th
e
s
e

a
re

a
s
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s

to
e

x
p

e
ri
e
n
c
e

d
e
c
lin

in
g

in
c
o
m

e
in

a
re

a
s

s
u
c
h

a
s

c
a
r

p
a
rk

in
g
,

p
la

n
n
in

g

fe
e
s

a
n
d

s
e
c
ti
o
n

2
7

8
a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

h
o

w
e

v
e
r

th
is

in
re

s
p
e
c
t

o
f

a
s
s
e
ts

u
n
d
e
r

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

a
ls

o
re

c
e
iv

e
d

a
n

a
d
d
it
io

n
a

l
£
5
.3

m
ill

io
n

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

th
e

N
e

w
H

o
m

e
s

B
o
n
u
s

s
c
h
e
m

e
.

T
h
e
s
e

s
a
v
in

g
s

w
e

re
p
a
rt

ly

o
ff
s
e
t

b
y

a
fu

rt
h
e
r

s
h
o
rt

fa
ll

in
S

e
c
ti
o
n

2
7

8
in

c
o
m

e
o
f

a
lm

o
s
t

£
1
.1

m
ill

io
n
,

th
e

n
e
e

d
to

fu
n
d

£
1
.3

m
ill

io
n

o
f

P
F

I

lia
b

ili
ti
e
s

fr
o
m

th
e

re
v
e
n

u
e

b
u
d
g
e
t

d
u
e

to
a

s
h
o
rt

fa
ll

in

b
u
d
g

e
te

d
c
a

p
it
a

l
re

c
e
ip

ts
a
n

d
th

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n

o
f

a
£
1

2

s
a

v
in

g
s

p
la

n
s

fe
e
s

a
n
d

s
e
c
ti
o
n

2
7

8
a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

,
h
o

w
e

v
e
r

th
is

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

o
ff
s
e
t

to
s
o
m

e
e
x
te

n
t

b
y

s
a
v
in

g
s

o
f

£
3
.3

m
ill

io
n

o
n

b
u
d
g
e
te

d
fi
n
a
n
c
e

c
o
s
ts

.

T
h
e

2
0
1
1
/1

2
b
u
d
g
e
t

in
c
lu

d
e
d

a
s
a
v
in

g
s

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
to

ta
lli

n
g

£
9
0

m
ill

io
n
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

re
p
o
rt

e
d

th
a
t

m
o
re

th
a
n

£
8
0

m
ill

io
n

o
f

th
e

b
d

t
d

i
t

t
t

b
h
i

d
t

b
u
d
g

e
te

d
c
a

p
it
a

l
re

c
e
ip

ts
a
n

d
th

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n

o
f

a
£
1
.2

m
ill

io
n

e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

re
s
e
rv

e
in

re
s
p
e
c
t

o
f

M
M

I
lia

b
ili

ti
e
s
.

A
la

rg
e

p
a
rt

o
f

th
e

£
9
0

m
ill

io
n

p
la

n
n
e
d

s
a

v
in

g
s

w
a

s

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

a
n
d

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

a
ls

o
id

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
a
d
d
it
io

n
a

l

s
a
v
in

g
s

a
n

d
s
e
c
u
re

d
u
n

b
u
d
g

e
te

d
(a

n
d

re
c
u
rr

in
g
)

in
c
o
m

e
.

T
h
is

m
e
a
n
t

th
a
t

d
e
s
p
it
e

s
lip

p
a

g
e
s

a
g
a

in
s
t

t
f

th
i

i
l

i
l

th
A

th
it

b
u
d
g

e
te

d
s
a
v
in

g
s

a
re

o
n

ta
rg

e
t

to
b
e

a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
a
t

p
e
ri
o

d
n
in

e
.

A
ll

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
w

e
re

c
o

n
ti
n
u

in
g

to

d
e
v
e
lo

p
a

n
d

im
p
le

m
e

n
t

a
c
ti
o
n

p
la

n
s

a
n

d
th

e

p
o
s
it
io

n
w

a
s

b
e
in

g
c
lo

s
e
ly

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
.

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d

o
v
e
rl
e
a

f

s
o
m

e
a
s
p
e
c
ts

o
f

th
e

o
ri
g
in

a
l

s
a
v
in

g
s

p
la

n
,

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri

ty

w
a
s

a
b
le

to
o
u
t-

p
e
rf

o
rm

it
s

o
ri
g
in

a
l
b
u
d
g
e
t.
.

7
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 92



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

re
e

 –
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

C
ri

ti
c
a
l 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 (
c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

K
e
y
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

Is
s
u

e
 r

a
is

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 p

la
n

n
in

g
F

in
d

in
g

s

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
th

a
t

a
n
o
th

e
r

£
4
7

m
ill

io
n

in
s
a
v
in

g
s

w
ill

n
e

e
d

to
b

e
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

d
u
ri
n
g

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

b
u
d
g

e
te

d
to

re
d
u
c
e

s
ta

ff
c
o

s
ts

b
y

£
4
5

m
ill

io
n

c
o
m

p
a

re
d

to
2
0
1
0
/1

1
a
n
d

th
is

w
a
s

la
rg

e
ly

2
0
1
2
/1

3
to

a
d
d
re

s
s

th
e

fu
rt

h
e
r

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s

to
lo

c
a
l

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

fu
n

d
in

g
.

A
g

a
in

s
t

a
b
a
c
k
d
ro

p
o
f

c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
d

d
e

m
a
n
d

p
re

s
s
u
re

s
in

A
d
u
lt

S
o
c
ia

l

C
a
re

a
n
d

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

it
w

ill
b
e
c
o
m

e

m
o
re

a
n
d

m
o
re

d
if
fi
c
u
lt

to
d
e
liv

e
r

th
e
s
e

s
a
v
in

g
s

in
a

w
a

y
th

a
t

s
e
c
u
re

s
lo

n
g
e
r

te
rm

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
a
n
d

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
,

w
it
h

ju
s
t

a
£
5
3
0
,0

0
0

n
e
t

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d

o
n

p
a

y

c
o
s
ts

a
t

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
.

T
h
e

E
a
rl

y
L

e
a
v
e
rs

’
In

it
ia

ti
v
e

(E
L
I)

c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
d

to
b

e
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l
in

h
e
lp

in
g

to
c
o
n
tr

o
l

s
ta

ff

c
o
s
ts

,
w

it
h

6
3

6
fu

ll-
ti
m

e
e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
ts

le
a
v
in

g
u
n
d
e
r

th
e

s
c
h
e
m

e
in

th
e

y
e

a
r.

O
th

e
r

s
a
v
in

g
s

w
e
re

a
c
h
ie

v
e

d

th
ro

u
g
h

th
e

c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
d

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

o
f

a
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t

fr
e
e
z
e

th
e

tr
a
n
s
fe

r
o
f

a
n

e
le

m
e

n
t

o
f

th
e

h
o
m

e
c
a
re

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
d

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
p
la

n
s

to
fu

rt
h
e
r

re
d
u
c
e

it
s

s
ta

ff
c
o
s
ts

b
y

im
p

le
m

e
n
ti
n
g

a
n
o
th

e
r

ro
u
n
d

o
f

it
s

E
a
rl

y
L
e

a
v
e
rs

’
In

it
ia

ti
v
e

(E
L

I)
in

2
0
1
1
/1

2
.

S
ta

ff
w

e
re

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
to

le
a
v
e

b
e
fo

re

3
1

s
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e

r
2
0
1
1

w
h

ic
h

w
o

u
ld

e
n
a
b

le
th

e

A
th

it
t

th
th

f
t

i
th

fr
e
e
z
e
,

th
e

tr
a
n
s
fe

r
o
f

a
n

e
le

m
e

n
t

o
f

th
e

h
o
m

e
c
a
re

s
e
rv

ic
e

to
a

n
e
x
te

rn
a
l

p
ro

v
id

e
r

a
n
d

g
ra

n
t-

re
la

te
d

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s

in
s
ta

ff
in

g
.

T
h
e

o
v
e
ra

ll
n
e
t

o
v
e
rs

p
e

n
d

o
f

£
5
3
0
,0

0
0

o
n

s
ta

ff
in

g
w

a
s

la
rg

e
ly

d
u
e

to
a

£
2
.1

m
ill

io
n

o
v
e
rs

p
e

n
d

in
th

e

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

N
e
ig

h
b
o

u
rh

o
o
d
s

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

w
h
ic

h

h
b

tt
ib

t
d

t
d

l
i

th
it
h
d

l
f

th
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

to
s
a

v
e

th
re

e
m

o
n
th

s
o
f

c
o
s
ts

in
th

e

c
u
rr

e
n
t

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l
y
e
a
r.

O
v
e
r

1
,0

0
0

s
ta

ff
m

e
m

b
e
rs

p
u
t

th
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s

fo
rw

a
rd

fo
r

th
is

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

a
lt
h
o
u

g
h

it
w

a
s

u
n
lik

e
ly

th
a
t

a
ll

s
u
c
h

re
q

u
e
s
ts

w
ill

b
e

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
te

d
d
u
e

to
th

e
n
e
e
d

to
b
a
la

n
c
e

s
e
rv

ic
e

d
e
liv

e
ry

w
it
h

c
o
s
t

s
a
v
in

g
s
.

It
w

a
s

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
th

a
t

a
fu

rt
h
e
r

ro
u
n
d

w
ill

b
e

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

a
tt

ri
b
u
te

d
to

d
e
la

y
s

in
th

e
w

it
h
d
ra

w
a
l

o
f

th
e

re
fu

s
e

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

b
a
c
k
-u

p
s
e
rv

ic
e

a
n

d
th

e
c
o

s
t

o
f

s
ta

ff
in

m
a
n
a
g

in
g

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
c
h
a
n
g
e
.

T
h
e
s
e

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s

w
e
re

o
ff
s
e
t

b
y

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

s
a
v
in

g
s

in
p
a

y
c
o
s
ts

in
A

d
u
lt

S
o
c
ia

l

C
a
re

(o
v
e
r

£
6

0
0
,0

0
0
)

a
n
d

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

(o
v
e
r

£
1
.6

m
ill

io
n
).

T
h
e

re
m

a
in

in
g

o
v
e
rs

p
e

n
d

w
a

s
la

rg
e

ly

a
tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

to
L
e
g
a
l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
th

a
t

a
fu

rt
h
e
r

ro
u
n
d

w
ill

b
e

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
in

2
0
1
2
/1

3
.

a
tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

to
L
e
g
a
l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

W
e

h
a
v
e

in
c
lu

d
e
d

a
n

u
p

d
a

te
o
n

th
e

fu
tu

re
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l

p
la

n
s

o
n

p
a
g
e

1
4

o
f
th

is
re

p
o
rt

.

8
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 93



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

re
e

 –
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

C
ri

ti
c
a
l 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 (
c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

K
e
y
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

Is
s
u

e
 r

a
is

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 p

la
n

n
in

g
F

in
d

in
g

s

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

n
e
e
d

e
d

to
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e

to
m

o
n
it
o
r

th
e

re
a
s
o
n

a
b
le

n
e
s
s

a
n
d

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

n
e
s
s

o
f

it
s

In
2
0
1
0
/1

1
,

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
u
n
d
e
rt

o
o
k

a
n

e
x
e
rc

is
e

to

id
e
n
ti
fy

a
n

y
p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

c
o
m

p
o

n
e
n
ts

a
c
ro

s
s

c
o
m

p
o
n

e
n
ti
s
a
ti
o
n

p
o
lic

y
in

lin
e

w
it
h

a
n

y

g
u
id

a
n
c
e

re
le

a
s
e
d

b
y

th
e

A
u

d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
o
r

C
IP

F
A

.
T

h
is

is
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t

g
iv

e
n

th
e

m
o
v
e

to
H

R
A

s
e
lf
-f

in
a
n
c
in

g
fr

o
m

2
0
1
2
/1

3
a
s

d
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o

n
b

e
c
o
m

e
s

a
c
h
a
rg

e
to

th
e

H
R

A
th

a
t

w
ill

n
o
t

b
e

re
v
e
rs

e
d
.

W
h
e
re

th
e

d
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n

c
h
a
rg

e
w

it
h

o
u
t

c
o
m

p
o
n

e
n
ti
s
a
ti
o

n
d

if
fe

rs

b
o
th

g
e
n

e
ra

l
fu

n
d

a
n

d
H

R
A

b
u
ild

in
g
s
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

c
o
n
c
lu

d
e
d

th
a
t

o
n
ly

a
s
m

a
ll

n
u

m
b
e
r

o
f

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
e
d

it
e
m

s

o
f

p
la

n
t

in
s
o

m
e

o
f

it
s

g
e
n

e
ra

l
fu

n
d

b
u

ild
in

g
s

m
e
t

it
s

m
a
te

ri
a
lit

y
c
ri
te

ri
a

fo
r

s
e
p
a
ra

te
re

c
o
g
n
it
io

n
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

a
ls

o
c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u
t

a
n

e
x
e
rc

is
e

to
e
s
ti
m

a
te

th
e

im
p
a
c
t

o
n

d
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o

n
a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

H
R

A
o
f

C
o

m
p

o
n

e
n

t 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g

c
h
a
rg

e
w

it
h

o
u
t

c
o
m

p
o
n

e
n
ti
s
a
ti
o

n
d

if
fe

rs

m
a
te

ri
a
lly

fr
o
m

th
a
t

w
h
ic

h
w

o
u
ld

b
e

c
h
a
rg

e
d

if

c
o
m

p
o
n

e
n
t

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n

g
h
a

d
b
e
e
n

im
p
le

m
e

n
te

d
,

th
is

w
ill

h
a

v
e

a
d
ir

e
c
t

im
p
a
c
t

o
n

th
e

s
u
rp

lu
s
/d

e
fi
c
it

re
p
o
rt

e
d
.

In
2
0
1
0
/1

1
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

e
le

c
te

d
n
o
t

to
a
p
p
ly

re
c
o
g
n

is
in

g
th

e
la

rg
e
s
t

c
o
m

p
o
n
e

n
ts

it
h
a
d

id
e
n
ti
fi
e

d
,

e
v
e
n

th
o
u

g
h

th
e
s
e

w
e
re

n
o
t

in
d
iv

id
u
a

lly
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t.

T
h
e

im
p
a
c
t
o
n

d
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n

w
a
s

fo
u
n
d

n
o
t

to
b
e

m
a
te

ri
a
l.

In
2
0
1
1
/1

2
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

c
o

n
ti
n
u
e
s

to
a
p

p
ly

th
e

s
a
m

e

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

to
c
o

m
p
o
n
e

n
t

a
c
c
o

u
n
ti
n
g

o
f

H
R

A
a
s
s
e
ts

a
s

in

th
e

p
ri
o
r

y
e

a
r,

w
h
e
re

b
y

o
n
ly

th
e

la
n
d

a
n
d

b
u
ild

in
g

c
o
m

p
o
n

e
n
t

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n

g
to

it
s

H
R

A
a
s
s
e
ts

a
s

it

w
o

u
ld

n
o
t

h
a
v
e

h
a
d

a
m

a
te

ri
a
l

im
p
a
c
t

o
n

th
e

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.
W

e
n
e
e
d
e
d

to
g
a
in

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

th
a
t

th
is

p
o
lic

y
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s

to
b
e

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

in
2
0
1
1
/1

2
a
n
d

in
lig

h
t

o
f

a
n

y
n
e

w

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
.

p
y

,
y

y
g

e
le

m
e
n
ts

a
re

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
d

s
e
p
a
ra

te
ly

.

In
o
rd

e
r

to
d
e

m
o
n
s
tr

a
te

th
a
t

th
is

p
o

lic
y

re
m

a
in

e
d

v
a
lid

,

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

re
v
ie

w
e

d
a

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e

s
a
m

p
le

o
f

H
R

A

a
s
s
e
ts

to
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
if

th
e

re
w

e
re

a
n

y
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

c
o
m

p
o
n

e
n
ts

,
th

e
ir

u
s
e
fu

l
e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
liv

e
s

a
n

d

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

c
o
s
ts

T
h
e

re
s
u
lt
s

o
f

th
is

e
x
e
rc

is
e

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

c
o
s
ts

.
T

h
e

re
s
u
lt
s

o
f

th
is

e
x
e
rc

is
e

c
o
rr

o
b
o
ra

te
d

th
e

fi
n
d
in

g
s

fr
o
m

th
e

2
0
1
0
/1

1
e
x
e
rc

is
e

w
h

ic
h

c
o
n
c
lu

d
e
d

th
a
t,

b
y

e
le

c
ti
n
g

n
o
t

to
im

p
le

m
e
n
t

c
o
m

p
o
n

e
n
t

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n

g
fo

r
H

R
A

a
s
s
e
ts

,
th

e
re

s
u
lt
in

g

d
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n

c
h
a
rg

e
is

n
o
t

m
a
te

ri
a
lly

d
if
fe

re
n
t.

W
e

re
v
ie

w
e

d
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

ra
ti
o
n
a

le
fo

r
s
e
le

c
ti
n

g
th

e

s
a
m

p
le

it
s

fi
n
d
in

g
s

a
n

d
c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s

W
e

a
re

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

s
a
m

p
le

,
it
s

fi
n
d
in

g
s

a
n

d
c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
.

W
e

a
re

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

th
a
t

th
e

s
a
m

p
le

o
f

H
R

A
a
s
s
e
ts

te
s
te

d
is

re
lia

b
le

a
n

d

re
p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

o
f

th
e

H
R

A
a
s
s
e
t

b
a
s
e

a
s

a
w

h
o
le

a
n

d

th
a
t
th

e
c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s

d
ra

w
n

a
re

re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

w
ill

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e

to
c
o
n

s
id

e
r

th
e

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

n
e
s
s

o
f

th
is

p
o
lic

y
g
o

in
g

fo
rw

a
rd

s
a
n
d

in

lig
h
t

o
f
a
n
y

n
e
w

g
u
id

a
n
c
e

is
s
u
e
d

9
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

lig
h
t

o
f
a
n
y

n
e
w

g
u
id

a
n
c
e

is
s
u
e
d
.

Page 94



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

re
e

 –
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

C
ri

ti
c
a
l 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 (
c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

K
e
y
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

Is
s
u

e
F

in
d

in
g

s

T
h
e

2
0
1
1
/1

2
C

o
d
e

in
c
lu

d
e
s

a
n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
a

n
e

w

W
e

re
v
ie

w
e

d
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
p
ro

c
e
s
s

fo
r

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g

it
s

h
e
ri
ta

g
e

a
s
s
e

ts
to

g
a
in

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

th
a
t

th
is

w
a
s

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
t

to
c
a
rr

y
‘h

e
ri

ta
g
e

a
s
s
e
ts

’
a
t

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
.

H
e
ri

ta
g
e

a
s
s
e
ts

in
c
lu

d
e

h
is

to
ri
c
a
l

b
u
ild

in
g
s
,

m
u
s
e
u
m

a
n
d

g
a
lle

ry
c
o
lle

c
ti
o

n
s

a
n
d

w
o
rk

s
o
f

a
rt

.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

n
e
e
d
s

to
re

v
ie

w
a
n

d
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly

a
d
d
re

s
s

th
e
s
e

c
h
a
n
g
e
s

in
it
s

2
0
1
1
/1

2
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l

re
a
s
o
n

a
b
le

.
W

e
fo

u
n
d

th
e

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

to
b
e

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
a
n
d

in
lin

e
w

it
h

o
th

e
r

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

O
n
c
e

th
e

h
e
ri

ta
g
e

a
s
s
e
ts

h
a
d

b
e
e
n

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d
,

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
h

o
w

to
p

la
c
e

a
v
a

lu
e

o
n

th
e
m

a
n

d

w
h

e
th

e
r

th
e
re

w
a
s

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n

a
v
a
ila

b
le

to
re

c
o
g
n
is

e
a
n

y
v
a
lu

e
o
n

th
e

b
a
la

n
c
e

s
h
e
e
t

in

C
o

d
e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e
s

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.
re

s
p
e
c
t
o
f

th
o
s
e

a
s
s
e
ts

(i
n

lin
e

w
it
h

th
e

2
0
1
1
/1

2
C

o
d
e

).

F
o
r

a
rt

w
o
rk

s
a
n
d

m
u
s
e

u
m

e
x
h
ib

it
s
,

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

v
a
lu

e
d

th
o

s
e

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l

a
s
s
e
ts

w
it
h

in
s
u
ra

n
c
e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s

a
b

o
v
e

£
1

m
ill

io
n

a
t

th
e

in
s
u
ra

n
c
e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o

n
.

L
o

w
e
r

v
a
lu

e
it
e
m

s
w

h
ic

h
a
re

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
th

e
o
v
e
ra

ll

in
s
u
ra

n
c
e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n

h
a
v
e

n
o
t

b
e
e
n

re
c
o

g
n
is

e
d

o
n

th
e

g

b
a
la

n
c
e

s
h
e
e

t
a
s

th
e

c
o
s
t

to
v
a
lu

e
e
a
c
h

it
e
m

in
d
iv

id
u

a
lly

w
a

s
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
to

b
e

p
ro

h
ib

it
iv

e
.

It
e
m

s

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d

d
u
ri

n
g

th
e

la
s
t

fi
v
e

y
e

a
rs

h
a
v
e

b
e

e
n

in
c
lu

d
e

d

a
t
th

e
ir

o
ri
g
in

a
l
c
o
s
t.

H
is

to
ri
c

b
u

ild
in

g
s

h
a
v
e

a
ls

o
b

e
e
n

v
a
lu

e
d

a
t

h
is

to
ri
c

c
o
s
t

w
h
e
re

s
u
c
h

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

is
a
v
a
ila

b
le

w
h
e
re

s
u
c
h

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

is
a
v
a
ila

b
le

.

A
s

a
re

s
u
lt

o
f

th
is

p
ro

c
e
s
s
,

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

£
4
6
.7

m
ill

io
n

o
f

h
e
ri
ta

g
e

a
s
s
e
ts

a
s

a
t

3
1

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
1
.

T
h
is

is

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
to

b
e

m
a
te

ri
a

l
to

th
e

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

,

c
o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
tl
y

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

m
a
d
e

a
p
ri
o
r

p
e
ri
o

d

re
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

a
n

d
p
ro

d
u
c
e

d
a

th
ir
d
,

c
o
m

p
a
ra

ti
v
e
,

b
a
la

n
c
e

s
h
e
e
t

fo
r

2
0
0

9
/1

0
T

h
e

v
a
lu

e
o
f

h
e
ri
ta

g
e

a
s
s
e

ts
a
t

3
1

s
h
e
e
t

fo
r

2
0
0

9
/1

0
.

T
h
e

v
a
lu

e
o
f

h
e
ri
ta

g
e

a
s
s
e

ts
a
t

3
1

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
2

is
£
5
0
.8

m
ill

io
n
,

la
rg

e
ly

a
s

a
re

s
u
lt

o
f

u
p

w
a
rd

s
re

v
a

lu
a
ti
o
n
s

in
y
e

a
r

o
f

£
1
.9

m
ill

io
n

a
n

d
th

e

g
ra

n
t-

fu
n
d

e
d

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e

o
f

a
m

u
s
e
u
m

a
rt

e
fa

c
t

to
th

e

v
a
lu

e
o
f

£
2
.1

m
ill

io
n
.

W
e

a
re

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

th
a
t

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

c
o
m

p
lie

d
w

it
h

th
e

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

o
f

th
e

2
0
1
1
/1

2
C

o
d

e
in

re
s
p
e
c
t

o
f 1
0

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

th
e

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

o
f

th
e

2
0
1
1
/1

2
C

o
d

e
in

re
s
p
e
c
t

o
f

h
e
ri
ta

g
e

a
s
s
e
ts

.

Page 95



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

re
e

 –
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s

T
h

e
 q

u
a
li

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 w

o
rk

in
g

s
 

p
a
p

e
rs

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 h

ig
h

. 
 

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 p

ro
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it

 p
ro

c
e

s
s

IS
A

 2
6
0
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
s
 u

s
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 t
o
 y

o
u
 o

u
r 

v
ie

w
s
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

q
u
a
lit

a
ti
v
e
 a

s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 

d
fi

i
l

i
W

l
d

h
A

h
i

’
f

E
le

m
e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ta
ry

 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 t

o
 

a
u

d
it

q
u

e
ri

e
s

In
 g

e
n
e
ra

l,
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 r
e
s
o
lv

e
d
 o

u
r 

a
u
d
it
 q

u
e
ri
e
s
 i
n
 a

 

re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

ti
m

e
p

p
g

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 

w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 

e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
a
ll
y
, 

a
s
 r

e
q

u
e
s
te

d
, 

w
h

e
re

v
e
r 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
.

a
n
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
. 

W
e
 a

ls
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

p
re

p
a
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
n
d
 i
ts

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

a
n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

a
u
d
it
. 

W
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 c

ri
te

ri
a
: 

E
le

m
e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ta
ry

 

a
u

d
it

q
u

e
ri

e
s

re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 t
im

e
. 

G
ro

u
p

 a
u

d
it

T
o
 g

a
in

 a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 g

ro
u
p
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

, 
w

e
 w

ill
 p

la
c
e
 r

e
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 w

o
rk

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

b
y
 B

D
O

o
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
A

ir
e

V
a
lle

y
 

H
o
m

e
s
 L

e
e
d
s
 L

im
it
e
d
, 

E
a
s
t/
N

o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 

L
e
e
d
s
 L

im
it
e
d
 a

n
d
 W

e
s
t 
N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 L

e
e
d
s
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 d
e
a
lt

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl

y
 w

it
h

 

a
u

d
it

 q
u

e
ri

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i

s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

p
la

n
n

e
d

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

p
ra

c
ti

c
e
s
 a

n
d

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

T
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 a

 r
o
b
u
s
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 w

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
a
t 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 

a
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

.

C
o

m
p

le
te

n
e
s
s
 

W
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 s

e
t 

o
f 
d
ra

ft
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 o
n
 3

 

L
im

it
e
d
. 

 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 m
a
tt
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 p
e
rt

a
in

in
g
 

to
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 a

u
d
it
.

p
la

n
n

e
d

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 a
ll
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 i
n

 o
u

r 
IS

A

2
6
0
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 r

e
la

ti
n

g

P
ri

o
r 

y
e
a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

In
o
u
r

In
te

ri
m

A
u
d
it

R
e
p
o
rt

2
0
1
1
/1

2
w

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
te

d
o
n

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s

o
f 

d
ra

ft
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2
, 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 o

n
 s

it
e
 a

n
d
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

 

Q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 

O
u
r 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 A
u
d
it
 P

ro
to

c
o
l,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 

J
u
n
e
, 
s
e
t 

o
u
t 

o
u
r 

w
o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
r 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

p
g

to
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

In
 o

u
r 

In
te

ri
m

A
u
d
it

R
e
p
o
rt

2
0
1
1
/1

2
w

e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

s
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 o

u
r 

IS
A

 2
6
0
 R

e
p
o
rt

 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
.

T
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 n

o
w

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

ll 
o
f 

th
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 o

u
r 

IS
A

 2
6
0
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

ils
.

w
o

rk
in

g
 

p
a
p

e
rs

 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
. 

T
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
rs

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

a
s
 

e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

a
n
d
 m

e
t 

th
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d
 i
n
 o

u
r 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 A
u
d
it
 P

ro
to

c
o
l.
 

p
p

p

1
1

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 96



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

re
e

 –
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

W
e
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 

c
o

m
p

li
e
d

 w
it

h
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

o
n

 o
b

je
c

ti
v
it

y
 a

n
d

 

D
e
c
la

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti

v
it

y

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 f

in
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

e
 a

re
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 y

o
u
 w

it
h
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

in
g
 o

u
r 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
. 

O
th

e
r 

m
a
tt

e
rs

IS
A

 2
6
0
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
s
 u

s
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 t
o
 y

o
u
 b

y
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 ‘
a
u
d
it
 m

a
tt
e
rs

 

o
f 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

th
a
t 

a
ri
s
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

’
h
i

h
i

l
d

j
y

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
 i
n

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

th
is

 y
e
a
r’

s
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

In
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
in

g
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
, 

w
e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 w
e
re

 n
o
 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

 a
n
d
 L

e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 i
ts

 d
ir
e
c
to

rs
 

a
n
d
 s

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 a
ff
ili

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

m
a
y
 

re
a
s
o
n
a
b
ly

 b
e
 t

h
o
u
g
h
t 

to
 b

e
a
r 

o
n
 t

h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 o

f 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

le
a
d
 a

n
d
 a

u
d
it
 s

ta
ff
. 
W

e
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 

w
e
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

’ 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
:

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 e

n
c
o
u
n
te

re
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 a

u
d

it
;

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

m
a
tt
e
rs

 a
ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 t

h
a
t 
w

e
re

 d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
, 

o
r 

s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 c

o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t;

o
th

e
r

m
a
tt
e
rs

,
if

a
ri
s
in

g
fr

o
m

th
e

a
u
d
it

th
a
t,

in
th

e
a
u
d
it
o
r'
s

B
e
fo

re
 w

e
 c

a
n

 i
s
s
u

e
 o

u
r 

o
p

in
io

n
 w

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 a

 s
ig

n
e
d

 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

le
tt

e
r.

g
g

h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h
 E

th
ic

a
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 d

e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 4
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 I

S
A

 2
6
0
. 

o
th

e
r 

m
a
tt

e
rs

, 
if
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 t

h
a
t,

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
o
r
s
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
ju

d
g
m

e
n
t,
 a

re
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

to
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
rs

ig
h
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
; 

a
n
d

m
a
tt
e
rs

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 b

y
 o

th
e
r 

a
u
d
it
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 t

o
 t
h
o
s
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 w

it
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 (

e
.g

. 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
e
fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l;
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 f

ra
u
d
, 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

w
it
h

la
w

s
a
n
d

re
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t

e
v
e
n
ts

e
tc

)
O

n
c
e
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 f

in
a
li

s
e
d

 o
u

r 

o
p

in
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

w
e
 w

il
l 
p

re
p

a
re

 o
u

r 
A

n
n

u
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 L
e
tt

e
r

a
n

d
 c

lo
s
e
 o

u
r 

a
u

d
it

.

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s

Y
o
u
 a

re
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 u

s
 w

it
h
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 m
a
tt
e
rs

 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 y

o
u
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
re

 l
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 u

n
a
ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 f

ra
u
d
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

 

te
m

p
la

te
 t

o
 t
h
e
 P

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
t,
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

w
it
h
 l
a
w

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
, 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

e
v
e
n
ts

 e
tc

.)
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 o

th
e
rs

 m
a
tt
e
rs

 w
h
ic

h
 w

e
 w

is
h
 t

o
 d

ra
w

 t
o
 y

o
u
r 

a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t
h
o
s
e
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 o
r 

o
u
r 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 a

 d
ra

ft
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 r

e
p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n

d
ix

 5
. 
W

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 

a
 s

ig
n
e
d
 c

o
p
y
 o

f 
y
o
u
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 b

e
fo

re
 w

e
 i
s
s
u
e
 

o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 o

p
in

io
n
. 

1
2

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 97



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 f
o

u
r 

–
V

F
M

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n

B
a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

A
u
d
it
o
rs

 a
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 t

h
e
ir
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 V
F

M
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

t w
o
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

T
h
e
s
e

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

h
h

h
A

h
i

h
i

l
f

C
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s

m
a
d
e
 p

ro
p
e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 

to
 s

e
c
u
re

 e
c
o
n
o
m

y
, 

e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 i
ts

 u
s
e
 o

f 

O
u

r 
V

F
M

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 h
o

w
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

s
e
c
u

re
s
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
il
ie

n
c
e
 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 p

ro
p
e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r:

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

s
ili

e
n
c
e
: 

lo
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
, 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
; 

a
n
d

c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 h

o
w

 i
t 
s
e
c
u
re

s
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
, 

e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
: 

lo
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
h
o
w

 t
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
in

g
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

ff
i

i
d

d
ti

it

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
.

a
n

d
 c

h
a
ll

e
n

g
e
s
 h

o
w

 i
t 

s
e
c
u

re
s
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 

a
n

d
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
.

V
F

M
 c

ri
te

ri
o

n
M

e
t

S
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
re

s
il

ie
n

c
e

S
i

ff
i

i
d

ff
ti

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
v
it
y
.

W
e
 f
o
llo

w
 a

 r
is

k
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
u
d
it
 e

ff
o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 

g
re

a
te

s
t 
a
u
d
it
 r

is
k
. 

W
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 p
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e
s
e
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

. 

T
h
e
 k

e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 V

F
M

 a
u
d
it
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

re
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

d
ia

g
ra

m
b
e
lo

w

W
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

u
r 

ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
r 

In
te

ri
m

 A
u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 p

a
g
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

n
 o

u
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 r
is

k
-b

a
s
e
d
 

w
o
rk

. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 h
a
s
 m

a
d

e
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 

e
c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 

S
e
c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s

s

d
ia

g
ra

m
 b

e
lo

w
. 

e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 i

n
 i
ts

 u
s
e
 o

f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
.

V
F

M
 a

u
d
it
 r

is
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

re
s
id

u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 

ri
s
k

C
o
n
c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

N
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

w
o
rk

 b
y
 

A
u
d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
&

o
th

e
r

VFM c

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

o
th

e
r

a
u
d
it

w
o
rk

Id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 V
F

M
 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 (
if
 

a
n
y
)

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 

to
 s

e
c
u
re

 

V
F

M

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 &

 o
th

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 l
o
c
a
l 
ri
s
k
 b

a
s
e
d
 

w
o
rk

conclusion

1
3

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

o
th

e
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

Page 98



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 f
o

u
r 

–
V

F
M

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
s

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e
d

 o
u

r 

s
p

e
c
if

ic
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

th
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
ri

s
k
s
 w

e
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 

In
 o

u
r 

In
te

ri
m

 A
u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
w

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 

ri
s
k
s
 f
o
r 

o
u
r 

V
F

M
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
, 

a
n
d
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 

o
u
r 

p
re

lim
in

a
ry

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
s
e
 w

it
h
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

w
o
rk

 b
y
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
th

e
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
,

o
th

e
r

in
s
p
e
c
to

ra
te

s
a
n
d

re
v
ie

w
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
.

T
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

is
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 

b
e
lo

w
.

in
 o

u
r 

In
te

ri
m

 A
u

d
it

 R
e
p

o
rt

 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
.

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
, 

o
th

e
r 

in
s
p
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
.

W
e
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
w

e
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 o

f 

th
e
s
e
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
. 

[i
f 
a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

] 
W

e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 a

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
h
ic

h
 

t
d

fi
d
i

f
th

i
T

h
i

d
i

d
t

th

K
e
y
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
P

re
li
m

in
a
ry

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t
K

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
w

o
rk

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

u
r 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
. 

T
h
is

 w
a
s
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 [

d
a
te

].
 

R
is

k

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

n
e
e
d

e
d

to
d
e
liv

e
r

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

s
a
v
in

g
s

d
u
ri

n
g

2
0
1
1
/1

2
to

a
c
h
ie

v
e

it
s

b
a
la

n
c
e
d

b
u
d
g

e
t.

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

fu
n
d
in

g
in

2
0
1
1
/1

2
h
a
s

b
e
e
n

re
d

u
c
e
d

b
y

£
5

0
m

ill
io

n
a
n
d

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

f
t

th
t

th
ill

b
l
t

d
ti

A
s

n
o
te

d
in

th
e

p
re

v
io

u
s

s
e
c
ti
o
n
,

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

la
rg

e
ly

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

it
s

p
la

n
n
e

d
£
9
0

m
ill

io
n

s
a
v
in

g
s

in
2

0
1
1
/1

2
a

n
d

w
a
s

u
n
d
e
r

s
p
e
n
t

o
n

it
s

re
v
e
n
u
e

b
u
d
g
e
t

b
y

£
1
.5

m
ill

io
n
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

m
o
n
it
o
rs

it
s

re
v
e
n
u
e

b
u
d
g

e
t

o
n

a
m

o
n
th

ly

b
a
s
is

a
n

d
th

e
la

te
s
t

M
e
d
iu

m
T

e
rm

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l
P

la
n

(M
T

F
P

)
w

ill
to

ta
k
e

in
to

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
th

e
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

n
d

in
g

 –
fo

re
c
a
s
ts

th
a
t

th
e
re

w
ill

b
e

a
re

a
l
te

rm
s

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

in
g
ra

n
ts

a
v
a
ila

b
le

o
f

£
1
7
9

m
ill

io
n

b
y

2
0
1
4
/1

5
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
th

a
t

a
n
o
th

e
r

£
4
7

m
ill

io
n

in
s
a
v
in

g
s

w
ill

n
e

e
d

to
b

e
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

d
u
ri
n
g

2
0
1
2
/1

3
to

a
d
d
re

s
s

th
e

fu
rt

h
e
r

re
d
u
c
ti
o

n
s

to

fu
n
d
in

g
.

A
g
a
in

s
t

a
b
a
c
k
d

ro
p

o
f

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e

d

(M
T

F
P

)
w

ill
to

ta
k
e

in
to

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
th

e
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l

fu
rt

h
e
r

fu
n
d
in

g
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
.

T
h
e

la
te

s
t

M
T

F
P

is

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
to

b
e

fi
n
a
lis

e
d

in
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
1
2
.

T
h
e

E
L
I

h
a
s

re
s
u
lt
e
d

in
o
v
e

r
6
0
0

fu
ll-

ti
m

e
e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t

s
ta

ff
d
e
p
a
rt

in
g

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

d
u
ri
n
g

2
0
1
1
/1

2
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
t y

h
a
s

a
tr

a
c
k

re
c
o
rd

o
f

d
e
liv

e
ri

n
g

a

s
a
v
in

g
s
 p

la
n

s

d
e
m

a
n

d
p
re

s
s
u
re

s
in

A
d

u
lt

S
o
c
ia

l
C

a
re

a
n
d

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

it
w

ill
b

e
c
o
m

e
m

o
re

a
n
d

m
o
re

d
if
fi
c
u
lt

to
d
e
liv

e
r

th
e
s
e

s
a
v
in

g
s

in
a

w
a

y

th
a
t

s
e
c
u
re

s
lo

n
g
e
r

te
rm

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
a
n
d

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

p
la

n
s

to
d

e
liv

e
r

a
n

o
th

e
r

ro
u
n
d

y
g

b
a
la

n
c
e
d

b
u
d

g
e
t

a
n
d

h
a
s

a
g

a
in

s
e
t

a
b
a

la
n

c
e
d

b
u

d
g
e
t

fo
r

2
0
1
2
/1

3
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

is
a
ls

o
e
n
s
u
ri
n

g
th

a
t

it
is

a
w

a
re

o
f

a
n
d

p
la

n
n
in

g
fo

r
c
o
m

in
g

c
h
a
n

g
e

s
,

s
u
c
h

a
s

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

ra
te

a
n
d

w
e
lf
a
re

b
e
n
e
fi
t

re
fo

rm
s
.

T
h
e
s
e

a
re

lik
e
ly

to
h
a
v
e

a
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
im

p
a
c
t.

In
a
d
d
it
io

n
,

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

is
n
o

w
lo

o
k
in

g
a
t

h
o

w
it

c
a
n

o
f

it
s

E
a
rl

y
L
e

a
v
e
rs

’
In

it
ia

ti
v
e

in
2

0
1
2
/1

3
w

h
ic

h

w
ill

e
n
a
b

le
it

to
d
e
liv

e
r

s
o

m
e

o
f

th
e

re
q
u
ir
e
d

s
a
v
in

g
s
.

H
o

w
e
v
e
r,

w
it
h

c
o
n
ti
n
u

in
g

c
u
ts

to
s
ta

ff
n
u
m

b
e
rs

,

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

n
e
e
d
s

to
e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

it
c
a
re

fu
lly

b
a
la

n
c
e
s

s
e
rv

ic
e

d
e
liv

e
r y

w
it
h

c
o
s
t

s
a
v
in

g
s
.

In
a
d
d
it
io

n
,

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

is
n
o

w
lo

o
k
in

g
a
t

h
o

w
it

c
a
n

c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
to

im
p
ro

v
e

it
s

e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y

s
o

th
a

t
it

d
e
liv

e
rs

fu
rt

h
e
r

s
a
v
in

g
s
.

T
h
is

is
to

a
id

p
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n
s

fo
r

th
e

fo
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
s
p
e
n
d
in

g
re

v
ie

w
.

1
4

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

y
g

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d

o
v
e
rl
e
a
f

Page 99



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 f
o

u
r 

–
V

F
M

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
s
 (

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

K
e
y
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
P

re
li
m

in
a
ry

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t
K

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
w

o
rk

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

n
e
e
d
s

to
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
a

n
d

m
a
n

a
g
e

it
s

s
a
v
in

g
s

p
la

n
s

s
o

a
s

to
s
e
c
u
re

lo
n
g

e
r

te
rm

fi
i

l
d

ti
l

t
i

b
ili

t
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
a
n
d

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
.

In
te

ri
m

u
p
d
a
te

A
s

n
o
te

d
in

th
e

p
re

v
io

u
s

s
e

c
ti
o
n
,

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

it
s

p
la

n
n
e
d

£
9
0

m
ill

io
n

s
a
v
in

g
s

in

2
0
1
1
/1

2
a
n
d

w
a

s
u
n
d

e
r

s
p
e
n
t

o
n

it
s

re
v
e
n
u
e

b
u
d
g
e
t

b
y

£
1

5
m

ill
io

n
b
u
d
g
e
t

b
y

£
1
.5

m
ill

io
n
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

n
e
e
d
s

to
c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
to

c
lo

s
e
ly

m
o
n
it
o
r

it
s

M
e
d
iu

m
T

e
rm

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l
P

la
n

a
n
d

m
a
n
a
g

e
it
s

fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l
p
re

s
s
u
re

s
a
s

th
e

2
0
1

1
/1

2

u
n
d
e
r

s
p
e
n

d
is

la
rg

e
ly

d
u
e

to
u
n

b
u
d

g
e
te

d

in
c
o
m

e
o
f

£
6

m
ill

io
n

fr
o
m

th
e

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e

n
t

o
f

H
e
a
lt
h

a
n
d

u
n

b
u
d
g

e
te

d
s
a
v
in

g
s

o
n

d
e
b
t

c
o
s
ts

H
e
a
lt
h

a
n
d

u
n

b
u
d
g

e
te

d
s
a
v
in

g
s

o
n

d
e
b
t

c
o
s
ts

w
h

ic
h

c
o
lle

c
ti
v
e
ly

h
a
d

a
+

£
1
1
.1

m
ill

io
n

im
p
a
c
t

o
v
e
ra

ll.

T
h
e

n
e
x
t

s
te

p
s

o
f

o
u
r

w
o
rk

w
ill

in
v
o
lv

e
c
ri
ti
c
a
lly

a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
th

e
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

th
e

A
u

th
o
ri
ty

h
a
s

in
p

la
c
e

to
e
n
s
u
re

a
s
o

u
n
d

fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l
s
ta

n
d
in

g
,

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

th
a
t

it
s

M
e
d
iu

m
T

e
rm

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l
P

la
n

h
a
s

d
u
ly

th
a
t

it
s

M
e
d
iu

m
T

e
rm

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l
P

la
n

h
a
s

d
u
ly

ta
k
e
n

in
to

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

th
e

p
o
te

n
ti
a

l
fu

rt
h
e
r

fu
n
d
in

g
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
.

It
s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y

ro
b
u
s
t

to
e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

c
a

n
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e

to
p
ro

v
id

e
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

.
W

e
w

ill
a
ls

o
re

v
ie

w
w

h
a
t

im
p
a

c
t,

if

th
E

L
I

h
h

d
i

lit
a
n
y
,

th
e

E
L
I

h
a
s

h
a
d

o
n

s
e
rv

ic
e

q
u
a
lit

y
.

1
5

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 100



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 f
o

u
r 

–
V

F
M

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
s
 (

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

K
e
y
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
P

re
li
m

in
a
ry

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t
K

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
w

o
rk

R
is

k

L
e
e
d
s

C
it
y

C
o

u
n
c
il

is
a
c
q

u
ir
in

g
th

e
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 h

e
ld

 a
n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 j
o
in

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
. 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

is
a
w

a
re

o
f

th
e

p
la

n
s

ri
s
k
s

a
n
d

a
c
ti
o
n
s

it
w

ill
n
e
e
d

to
fo

r
p
u
b
lic

h
e
a

lt
h

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

fr
o

m
L
e
e
d
s

P
ri
m

a
ry

C
a
re

T
ru

s
t.

T
h
is

tr
a
n
s
fe

r
b
ri
n
g
s

a
b
o
u
t

s
e

v
e
ra

l
ri
s
k
s

th
a
t

w
ill

n
e
e
d

to
b
e

m
a
n
a
g

e
d

c
a
re

fu
lly

b
y

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
:

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
ri
s
k
s

fr
o
m

th
e

d
e
liv

e
ry

o
f

a
n
e

w
le

s
s

is
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

th
e
 p

la
n
s
, 

ri
s
k
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
t 
w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 

p
u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 i
n
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

p
u
b

lic
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 t
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
.

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 t
h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 n

e
w

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

p
u
b
lic

 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r.

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h

•
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
ri
s
k
s

fr
o
m

th
e

d
e
liv

e
ry

o
f

a
n
e

w
,

le
s
s

fa
m

ili
a
r

s
e
rv

ic
e
;

•
h
o

w
th

e
s
e
rv

ic
e

fi
ts

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

a
lly

a
n

d

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
lly

w
it
h
in

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

;

•
e
n
s
u
ri

n
g

th
a
t

c
lin

ic
a
l

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

a
re

m
e
t.

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

s
ix

 m
o
n
th

s
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

p
la

n
s
 a

re
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
. 

 

q

T
h
is

is
re

le
v
a

n
t

to
b
o
th

th
e

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
re

s
ili

e
n
c
e

a
n
d

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
,

e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y

a
n
d

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e

n
e
s
s

c
ri
te

ri
a

o
f
th

e
V

F
M

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
.

In
te

ri
m

u
p
d
a
te

W
e

h
a
v
e

h
e

ld
in

it
ia

l
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s

w
it
h

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

K
P

M
G

’s
h
e
a
lt
h

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
ts

a
ro

u
n
d

w
h

a
t

th
e

k
e

y
ri

s
k
s

o
f

th
e

tr
a
n
s
fe

r
a
re

a
n
d

h
o

w
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

p
la

n
s

to
d
e
a
l

w
it
h

th
is

.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

is
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

in
th

e
p
ro

c
e
s
s

o
f

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
th

e
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s

to
s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
th

e
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s

to
s
u
p
p
o
rt

th
e

d
e
liv

e
ry

o
f

p
u
b
lic

h
e

a
lt
h

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

a
n
d

h
a
s

a

jo
in

t
a
p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t

w
it
h

th
e

P
ri

m
a
ry

C
a
re

T
ru

s
t

fo
r

th
e

D
ir
e
c
to

r
o
f

th
e

s
e
rv

ic
e

w
h

o
is

o
v
e
rs

e
e
in

g
th

e

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
.

C
ti

d
l

f

1
6

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d

o
v
e
rl
e
a
f

Page 101



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 f
o

u
r 

–
V

F
M

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
s
 (

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

K
e
y
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
P

re
li
m

in
a
ry

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t
K

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
w

o
rk

W
e

h
a
v
e

a
g
re

e
d

to
fa

c
ili

ta
te

a
w

o
rk

s
h
o
p

to
a
id

th
e

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s

a
ro

u
n
d

th
e

k
e

y
ri
s
k
s

o
f

th
e

tr
a
n
s
fe

r
a
n
d

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

a
c
ti
o

n
s

T
h
e

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p

tr
a
n
s
fe

r
a
n
d

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

a
c
ti
o

n
s
.

T
h
e

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p

is
lik

e
ly

to
in

v
o

lv
e

th
e

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

o
f

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

a
n
d

o
th

e
r

k
e

y
s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

b
y

th
e

jo
in

t
D

ir
e
c
to

r
o
f

P
u
b
lic

H
e
a
lt
h
.

1
7

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 102



A
p

p
e

n
d

ic
e

s

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
: 

K
e
y
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 g

iv
e
n

 e
a
c
h

 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 a
 r

is
k
 

ra
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
h

a
t 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 r

a
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 o

n
e
:
is

s
u
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 
fu

n
d
a
m

e
n
ta

l 
a
n
d
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 
to

 y
o
u
r 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 t

w
o

:
is

s
u
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

n
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 t
h

re
e

:
is

s
u
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
o
u
ld

, 
if
 

c
o
rr

e
c
te

d
, 
im

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 

g
g

a
c
ti

o
n

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 

n
e
e
d

 t
o

 t
a
k
e
. 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 

m
o

n
it

o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i

n
 

y
s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l.
 W

e
 b

e
lie

v
e
 

th
a
t 
th

e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 m

ig
h
t 

m
e
a
n
 t

h
a
t 
y
o
u
 

d
o
 n

o
t 

m
e
e
t 

a
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 o

r 
re

d
u
c
e
 (

m
it
ig

a
te

) 
a
 r

is
k
.

p
b
u
t 
d
o
 n

o
t 

n
e
e
d
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 a

c
ti
o
n
. 

Y
o
u
 m

a
y
 s

ti
ll 

m
e
e
t 

a
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 

in
 f
u
ll 

o
r 

in
 p

a
rt

 o
r 

re
d
u
c
e
 (

m
it
ig

a
te

) 
a
 

ri
s
k
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

ly
 b

u
t 

th
e
 w

e
a
k
n

e
s
s
 

re
m

a
in

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

,
p

in
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
b
u
t 

a
re

 n
o
t 

v
it
a
l 
to

 t
h
e
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
s
y
s
te

m
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
 

is
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 f

e
e
l 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

y
o
u
 i
f 

y
o
u
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 

th
e
m

.

a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 s

p
e
c
if

ic
 r

is
k
s
 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ti
n

g
 o

u
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
.

W
e

 w
il

l 
fo

rm
a

ll
y
 f

o
ll

o
w

 u
p

 

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s
u

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e
 /

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

/ 
d

u
e
 d

a
te

1
In

c
o

rr
e
c
t 

c
u

t 
o

ff
 f

o
r 

fi
x
e
d

 a
s
s
e
t 

d
is

p
o

s
a
ls

 

O
u
r 

te
s
ti
n
g
 o

f 
fi
x
e
d
 a

s
s
e
t 

d
is

p
o
s
a
ls

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
a

t 
a
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

h
a
d

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
e
d

to
A

c
a
d
e
m

y
s
ta

tu
s

a
ft
e
r

y
e
a
r

e
n
d

b
u
t

h
a
d

A
g
re

e
d
. 

Y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

is
o
b
ta

in
e
d

p
ri
o
r

to
th

e
th

e
s
e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 n

e
x
t 

y
e
a
r.

 

h
a
d
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y
 s

ta
tu

s
 a

ft
e
r 

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
 b

u
t 

h
a
d
 

b
e
e
n
 a

c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
s
 a

 d
is

p
o
s
a
l 
d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 

 T
h
e
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

r 
h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 b

e
fo

re
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 

b
u
t 
w

a
s
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 c

le
ri
c
a
l 
e
rr

o
rs

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

w
h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
ly

 b
e
c
a
m

e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

th
is

 w
h
e
n

 

w
e

re
q
u
e
s
te

d
a
u
d
it

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

o
f

th
e

tr
a
n
s
fe

r

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
s
 o

b
ta

in
e
d
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 b
e
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 

h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

A
c
ti
o
n
: 
P

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
t 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

D
a
te

: 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3

w
e
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 a

u
d
it
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
n
y
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rs
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 A

c
a
d
e
m

ie
s
 a

re
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

le
g
a
l 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 d

is
p
o
s
a

l 
is

 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
e
ri
o
d
. 

  

1
8

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 103



A
p

p
e

n
d

ic
e

s

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
: 

K
e
y
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s
u

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e
 /

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

/ 
d

u
e
 d

a
te

2
Q

u
a
li
ty

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

h
e
ri

ta
g

e
 a

s
s
e
t 

v
a
lu

e
s

T
h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e
 a

s
s
e
ts

 s
e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

te
s
ti
n
g
 

in
 t
h
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 d
id

 n
o
t 

a
g
re

e
 t

o
 t
h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
. 

 

T
h
is

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 d
a
ta

 i
n
p
u
t 

e
rr

o
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e

 

d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 o

f 
£
2
0
0
,0

0
0
 w

a
s
 c

le
a
rl
y
 t

ri
v
ia

l,
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
re

 

w
e
re

 n
o
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 v

e
ri
fy

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 

a
s
s
e
t
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s

p
ro

v
id

e
d

b
y

th
e

re
le

v
a
n
t

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t

to

A
g
re

e
d
. 

Y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
s
 o

b
ta

in
e
d
 t

o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 n

e
w

 o
r 

a
m

e
n
d
e
d
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

H
e
ri
ta

g
e
 A

s
s
e
ts

. 

A
c
ti
o
n
: 
P

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
t 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
s
s
e
t 
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

to
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
e
re

 c
o
rr

e
c
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e

 

d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 c

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
te

ri
a
l.
  

A
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 q
u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
h
e
ri

ta
g
e
 a

s
s
e
t 

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 

a
g
re

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 

th
e

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

g

D
a
te

: 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3

th
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

It
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
th

e
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e
 a

s
s
e
t 

in
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

1
9

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 104



A
p

p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
: 

F
o

ll
o

w
 u

p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e
a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

T
h
is

 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

th
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 o

u
r 

IS
A

 2
6
0
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 a

n
d
 r

e
-

it
e
ra

te
s
 a

n
y
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 s

ti
ll 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
. 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 a
ll
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 i
n

 o
u

r 
IS

A

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

: 

In
c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
re

p
o

rt
 

2

2
6
0
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
. 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 i
n

 y
e
a
r 

o
r 

s
u

p
e
rs

e
d

e
d

 
2

R
e
m

a
in

 o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 (
re

-i
te

ra
te

d
 b

e
lo

w
)

0

N
o

R
is

k
Is

s
u

e
a
n

d
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

O
ff

ic
e
r

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
a
n

d
d

u
e

d
a
te

S
ta

tu
s

a
s

a
t

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0
1
2

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s
u

e
a
n

d
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

O
ff

ic
e
r

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
a
n

d
d

u
e

d
a
te

S
ta

tu
s

a
s

a
t

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0
1
2

1
M

e
d

iu
m

 T
e
rm

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

la
n

 

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

s
ili

e
n
c
e
 

s
u
rv

e
y
 d

id
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
y
 a

re
a
s
 

M
o
n
th

ly
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 v

ia
 t

h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

. 

T
h
e
 M

e
d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
P

la
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s

W
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

n
d
in

g
 a

s
 a

 c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 m

a
tt
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

 k
e
y
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
 i
n
 t

h
e
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

P
la

n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
, 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 y

o
u
 i
n
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

2
0
1
2

O
u
r

d
e
ta

ile
d

a
u
d
it

y
y

y

fo
r 

m
a
jo

r 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

 w
h
e
n
 w

e
 w

e
re

 

a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 V

F
M

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 

a
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 s

c
a
le

 o
f 
th

e
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 a

h
e
a
d
 i
s
 n

o
t 

to
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
re

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 k

e
y
 t

o
 t
h
is

 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
r:

 C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

D
u

e
 d

a
te

: 
F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
2

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

2
0
1
2
. 

 O
u
r 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 a

u
d
it
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 t

h
is

 k
e
y
 r

is
k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
. 

 

W
e
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

m
o
n
it
o
rs

 t
h
e
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
n
 a

 

m
o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

 v
ia

 t
h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

, 

h
i

i
d

th
t

t
f

y

w
ill

 b
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 

in
 A

d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 w
h
ic

h
, 

a
s
 

a
t 
m

o
n
th

 4
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
, 

a
re

 

s
h
o
w

in
g
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 o

f 
£
1
0
.6

m
. 

T
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y

c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
lly

m
o
n
it
o
r

th
e
ir

h
a
v
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

. 
 

th
e
y
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
a
lly

 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
ir
 

M
e
d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
P

la
n
 a

n
d
 

ta
k
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 e
a
rl
y
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t

h
e
ir
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
re

s
s
u
re

s
. 

2
0

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 105



A
p

p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
: 

F
o

ll
o

w
 u

p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e
a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s
u

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

O
ff

ic
e
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

S
ta

tu
s
 a

s
 a

t 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

2
C

o
m

p
o

n
e
n

t 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
th

e
in

tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f
th

e

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

ll 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 

a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

u
n
d
e
r 

it
s
 

W
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 c

o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 a

s
 

a
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n

g
 m

a
tt
e
r 

in
 t

h
e
 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 
th

e
 

C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

o
n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
, 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
ir
 a

s
s
e
t 

b
a
s
e

(b
o
th

g
e
n
e
ra

l
fu

n
d

a
s
s
e
ts

y

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 p

o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
ts

. 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
r:

 P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
n

t 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 

I
l

t
ti

d
t

l
d

g

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
, 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 

to
 y

o
u
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

2
0
1
2
. 

 O
u
r 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 

a
u
d
it
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 t

h
is

 k
e
y
 r

is
k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

s
e
t 
o
u
t 

o
n
 p

a
g
e
 n

in
e
 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 t

h
re

e
 t

o
 

th
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

. 
 

W
e

a
re

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

w
it
h

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
b
a
s
e
 (

b
o
th

 g
e
n
e
ra

l 
fu

n
d
 a

s
s
e
ts

 

a
n
d
 H

R
A

 a
s
s
e
ts

).
 T

h
is

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
ly

 

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

m
a
te

ri
a
lit

y
 t

h
re

s
h
o
ld

s
. 

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 C

o
d
e
 r

e
fr

a
in

s
 f

ro
m

 

o
u
tl
in

in
g

p
re

s
c
ri
p
ti
v
e

m
e
a
s
u
re

s

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

d
a
te

: 
c
lo

s
e
d

o
w

n
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
.

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 

H
R

A
 a

s
s
e
t 

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 d

e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
a
n
d
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
ts

 o
w

n
 

W
e
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

s
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 n

o
t 

to
 a

p
p
ly

 

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 t

o
 i
ts

 H
R

A
 

a
s
s
e
ts

 (
o
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 b

y
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

in
g
 l
a
n
d
 

a
n
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
ly

).
  

W
e

h
a
v
e

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d

th
a
t

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

o
u
tl
in

in
g
 p

re
s
c
ri
p
ti
v
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 

fo
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 i
t 

d
o
e
s
 s

ta
te

 a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

g
u
id

in
g
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 
a
 

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 

is
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 i
f 

it
 h

a
s
 

a
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

c
o
s
t

a
n
d

if
th

e
re

is
a

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 o

n
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

fi
n
a
lis

e
d
.

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
r:

 P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
n

t 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 p

o
lic

y
 g

o
in

g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

a
n
y
 n

e
w

 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 

a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
o
s
t 

a
n
d
 i
f 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 d

e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n
 c

h
a
rg

e
 a

n
d
 

th
a
t 
w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 a
p
p
ly

 i
f 

it
 w

e
re

 

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
. 

T
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 u
n
d
e
rt

o
o
k
 a

n
 

e
x
e
rc

is
e

w
it
h

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

a
d
v
ic

e

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 d
a
te

: 
A

s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
n

 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 a

re
 a

m
e
n

d
e
d

.

e
x
e
rc

is
e
, 

w
it
h
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
d
v
ic

e
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 t

e
a
m

, 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

b
o
th

 g
e
n
e
ra

l 
fu

n
d
 a

n
d
 H

R
A

 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
. 

2
1

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 o

v
e
rl
e
a
f.

Page 106



A
p

p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
: 

F
o

ll
o

w
 u

p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e
a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s
u

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

O
ff

ic
e
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

S
ta

tu
s
 a

s
 a

t 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

2
A

s
 s

u
c
h
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 

th
a
t 
o
n
l y

 a
 s

m
a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
e
d
 i
te

m
s
 o

f 
p
la

n
t 

in
 s

o
m

e
 

o
f 
it
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
fu

n
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 m

e
t 

it
s
 m

a
te

ri
a
lit

y
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f

o
r 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
 

re
c
o
g
n
it
io

n
. 

A
t 
o
u
r 

re
q
u
e
s
t 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
ls

o
 

c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u
t

a
n

e
x
e
rc

is
e

to
c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
n
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 t

o
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 

d
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 H

R
A

 o
f 

re
c
o
g
n
is

in
g
 t

h
e
 l
a
rg

e
s
t 

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
ts

 i
t 

h
a
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 

e
v
e
n
 t

h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
s
e
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ll y

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t.
 T

h
e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

y
g

p

o
n
 d

e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 f

o
u
n
d
 n

o
t 

to
 

b
e
 m

a
te

ri
a
l.
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 t

h
e
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

p
o
lic

y
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

C
o
d
e

o
f

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

a
n
d

IA
S

1
6
.

th
e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 I

A
S

 1
6
. 

In
 d

o
in

g
 s

o
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 a

 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
h
o
u
ld

 k
e
e
p
 u

n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
: 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 o

v
e
rl
e
a
f.

2
2

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 107



A
p

p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
: 

F
o

ll
o

w
 u

p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e
a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s
u

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

O
ff

ic
e
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

S
ta

tu
s
 a

s
 a

t 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

2
•W

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

c
a
p
it
a
l 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
n
 a

 y
e
a
r 

is
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
y

g

a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 a

n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t,
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 a

 r
o
o
f,
 t

h
e
n
 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
o
u

ld
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 o
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

s
p
e
n
t 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 c

la
s
s
 o

f 

a
s
s
e
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
ly

 

a
c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
s
 a

n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t;
 a

n
d
 

•T
h
e
 i
m

p
e
n
d
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 t
h
e
 

H
R

A
T

h
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

p
a
p
e
r

H
R

A
. 
T

h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

 p
a
p
e
r 

is
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 C

IP
F

A
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 

2
0
1
1
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

a
b
o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

u
b
s
id

y
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 M

R
A

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

th
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
n
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 

d
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n

c
h
a
rg

e
s

in
th

e
H

R
A

d
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n

 c
h
a
rg

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 H

R
A

 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
s
u

it
a
b
le

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
 

a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 f
u
n
d
 m

a
jo

r 
re

p
a
ir
s
 

to
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
. 

F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
if
 

th
e
 t
o
ta

l 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o
s
t 
fo

r 
a
n
 

a
s
s
e
t 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 3

0
 y

e
a
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

p
la

n
 i
s
 £

3
3
,0

0
0
 t

h
e
n
 f

o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
, 

a
n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

d
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n
 c

h
a
rg

e
 o

f 
£
1
,1

0
0
 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
. 

2
3

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 108



A
p

p
e

n
d

ic
e

s

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3
: 

A
u

d
it

 d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
s

W
e
 a

re
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 b

y
 I

S
A

 2
6
0
 t

o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
ll 

u
n
c
o
rr

e
c
te

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

, 
o
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
o
s
e
 t

h
a
t 
w

e
 b

e
lie

v
e
 a

re
 c

le
a
rl
y
 t

ri
v
ia

l,
 t

o
 t

h
o
s
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 w

it
h
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 (

w
h
ic

h
 i
n
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 c

a
s
e
 i
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
).

 W
e
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
ll 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 

m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
rr

e
c
te

d
 b

u
t 

th
a
t 

w
e
 b

e
lie

v
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 t

o
 y

o
u
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
y
o
u

 i
n
 f

u
lf
ill

in
g
 y

o
u
r 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
.

T
h

is
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 s
e
ts

 o
u

t 
th

e
 

s
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t 
a
u

d
it

 d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
s
. 

 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 o

n
l y

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 o
n

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
. 

C
o

rr
e
c
te

d
 a

u
d

it
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e
s

T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

a
b
le

 s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
u
d
it
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 o

u
r 

a
u
d
it
 o

f 
L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
e
d
 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 

It
 i
s
 o

u
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

 r
e
v
is

e
d
 s

e
t 

o
f 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
is

.

y

s
u

c
h

 a
u

d
it

 d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 d

u
ri

n
g

 

th
e
 c

o
u

rs
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
. 
  
It

 i
s
 

o
u

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 

w
il
l 
b

e
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
.

I
t

T
h

e
  
a
u

d
it

 d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 r

e
la

te
s
 

to
 t

h
e
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r 
o

f 
a
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
to

 

A
c
a
d

e
m

y
 s

ta
tu

s
. 

 T
h

e
 

d
e
e
m

e
d

 d
is

p
o

s
a
l 
w

a
s
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

te
d

fo
r

in
2
0
1
1
/1

2
b

u
t

Im
p

a
c
t

B
a
s
is

 o
f 

a
u

d
it

 d
if

fe
re

n
c
e

N
o

.

In
c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t

M
o

v
e
m

e
n

t 
in

 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
A

s
s
e
ts

L
ia

b
il
it

ie
s

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

1
C

r
L
o
s
s

o
n

C
r

S
ta

tu
to

ry
D

r
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
p
la

n
t

C
r

C
a
p
it
a
l

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

a
c
c
o
u
n
te

d
fo

r
d
is

p
o
s
a
l

a
c
c
o

u
n

te
d

fo
r

in
2
0
1
1
/1

2
b

u
t

d
u

e
 t

o
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

v
e
 e

rr
o

rs
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 l

e
g

a
l 
p

a
p

e
rw

o
rk

, 
th

e
 

tr
a
n

s
fe

r 
w

a
s
 d

e
la

y
e
d

 u
n

ti
l 

a
ft

e
r 

y
e
a
r-

e
n

d
 a

n
d

 a
s
 s

u
c
h

, 

1
C

r
L
o
s
s

o
n

d
is

p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 
fi
x
e
d
 

a
s
s
e
ts

£
1
6
.6

 m
ill

io
n

C
r

S
ta

tu
to

ry

a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 b

a
s
is

£
1
6
.6

 m
ill

io
n

D
r

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
,

p
la

n
t

a
n
d
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

£
1
6
.6

 m
ill

io
n

C
r

C
a
p
it
a
l

A
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t

A
c
c
o
u
n
t

£
1
1
.5

 m
ill

io
n
 

C
r 

R
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

T
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f

o
r 

d
is

p
o
s
a
l 

in
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 o

f 
a
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 t

o
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y
 s

ta
tu

s
. 

 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
a
c
tu

a
lly

 t
o
o
k
 

p
la

c
e
 a

ft
e
r 

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
.

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

c
c

o
u

n
te

d
 f

o
r 

in
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
.

£
5
.1

 m
ill

io
n

C
r 

£
1
6
.6

 m
il
li
o

n
D

r 
£
1
6
.6

 m
il
li
o

n
D

r 
£
1
6
.6

 m
il
li
o

n
D

r/
C

r 
£
0

C
r 

£
1
6
.6

 m
il
li
o

n
T

o
ta

l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts

2
4

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 109



A
p

p
e

n
d

ic
e

s

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 4
: 

D
e
c
la

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti

v
it

y

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts

A
u
d
it
o
rs

 a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 m

u
s
t 
c
o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e

C
o
d
e
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 (

th
e
 C

o
d
e
) 

w
h
ic

h
 s

ta
te

s
 t

h
a
t:
 

T
h
e
 t
o
ta

l 
a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 
fe

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
o
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
o
r’
s
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 

fi
rm

s
 h

a
v
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 t

o
 t
h
e
 c

lie
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 a
ff
ili

a
te

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

e
ri

o
d
, 

a
n
a
ly

s
e
d
 i
n
to

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

c
a
te

g
o
ri
e
s
,

fo
r

e
x
a
m

p
le

,
s
ta

tu
to

ry
a
u
d
it

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
,

fu
rt

h
e
r

a
u
d
it

T
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti

c
e
 

re
q

u
ir

e
s
 u

s
 t

o
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 o

u
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
ju

d
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

“A
u
d
it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 s

ta
ff
 s

h
o
u
ld

 e
x
e
rc

is
e
 t

h
e
ir
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
ju

d
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 a

c
t 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 o

f 
b
o
th

 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 b

o
d
y
. 

A
u
d
it
o
rs

, 
o
r 

a
n
y
 f

ir
m

 w
it
h
 w

h
ic

h
 a

n
 a

u
d
it
o
r 

is
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
, 

s
h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

w
o
rk

 f
o
r 

a
n
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 b

o
d
y
 t

h
a
t 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

re
la

te
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
o
rs

’ 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

if
 i
t 
w

o
u
ld

 i
m

p
a
ir
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
o
rs

’ 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 o

r 
m

ig
h
t

g
iv

e
 r

is
e
 t

o
 a

 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 p
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
ir
 

c
a
te

g
o
ri
e
s
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

u
d
it
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

a
u
d
it
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
ta

x
 a

d
v
is

o
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

n
o
n
-a

u
d
it
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

F
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

, 
th

e
 a

m
o
u
n
ts

 o
f 
a
n
y
 f

u
tu

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
te

d
 o

r 
w

h
e
re

 a
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 

a
re

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
ly

 d
is

c
lo

s
e
d
. 

W
e
 d

o
 t

h
is

 i
n
 o

u
r 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 L

e
tt
e
r.

A
p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

u
d
it
o
rs

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 i
n
 w

ri
ti
n
g
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 

h
a
v
e

c
o
m

p
lie

d
w

it
h

E
th

ic
a
l
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
a
n
d

th
a
t

in
th

e
a
u
d
it
o
r’

s

p
j

g

a
c
t 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

tl
y
 o

f 
b

o
th

 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

.

p
g

g
p

p

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
m

p
a
ir
e
d
.”

In
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l,
 r

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 a
n
d
 l
e
g
a
l 
re

q
u
ir
e

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
d
e
, 

th
e
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
g
u
id

a
n
c
e

fo
r

lo
c
a
l
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

a
u
d
it
o
rs

(A
u
d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n

h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h
 E

th
ic

a
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t,

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
o
r
s
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
ju

d
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
o
r 

is
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
o
r’
s
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
m

p
ro

m
is

e
d
, 

o
r 

o
th

e
rw

is
e
 d

e
c
la

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
o
r 

h
a
s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
o
r’
s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 i
n
d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
ro

m
is

e
d
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
la

in
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly

 f
o
llo

w
 f

ro
m

 

h
is

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 m

a
tt
e
rs

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

a
n
d

A
u
d
it

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
S

ta
n
d
in

g
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
u
d
it
o
rs

 (
A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

G
u
id

a
n
c
e
) 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
A

P
B

 E
th

ic
a
l 
S

ta
n
d

a
rd

 1
 I

n
te

g
ri
ty

,

O
b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 I

n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e

(E
th

ic
a
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
).

 

T
h
e
 C

o
d
e
 s

ta
te

s
 t

h
a
t,
 i
n
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 

th
e
ir
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

, 
a
u
d
it
o
rs

 s
h
o
u
ld

 c
o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 a

u
d
it
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 

fo
rc

e
, 
a
n
d
 a

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
im

e
 t

o
 t

im
e
. 
A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

G
id

i
i

t
d

d
it

t
f

ll
th

i
i

f
IS

A

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
.

E
th

ic
a
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 u

s
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 t
o
 t

h
o
s
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 w

it
h
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 w

ri
ti
n

g
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

a
n
n
u
a
lly

 a
ll 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

fa
c
ts

 a
n
d
 m

a
tt
e
rs

, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
n
o
n
-a

u
d

it
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

s
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

h
a
t,
 i
n
 o

u
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
ju

d
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 m

a
y
 

re
a
s
o
n
a
b
ly

 b
e
 t

h
o
u
g
h
t 

to
 b

e
a
r 

o
n
 o

u
r 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 

o
f
th

e
A

u
d
it

P
a
rt

n
e
r

a
n
d

th
e

a
u
d
it

te
a
m

G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
s
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

u
d
it
o
rs

 t
o
 f
o
llo

w
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 o

f 
IS

A
 

(U
K

 &
I)

 2
6
0
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
 M

a
tt
e
rs

 w
it
h
 T

h
o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d
 w

it
h
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
’ 
th

a
t 
a
re

 a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

 t
o
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
lis

te
d
 c

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s
. 

T
h
is

 

m
e
a
n
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

u
d
it
o
r 

m
u
s
t 

d
is

c
lo

s
e
 i
n
 w

ri
ti
n
g
:

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
a
ll 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
o
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
 c

lie
n
t,
 i
ts

 

d
ir
e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 s

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 a
ff
ili

a
te

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

ll 

o
f 
th

e
 A

u
d
it
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 t

e
a
m

.

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 i
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti

v
it

y

K
P

M
G

's
 r

e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 i
s
 b

u
ilt

, 
in

 g
re

a
t 

p
a
rt

, 
u
p
o
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
t 

o
f 

o
u
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 f

ir
m

 a
n
d
 i
ts

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

lie
n
t,
 i
ts

 

d
ir
e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 s

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 a
ff
ili

a
te

s
, 

th
a
t 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
o
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
rs

 m
a
y
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a
b
ly

 b
e
 t

h
o
u
g
h
t 

to
 b

e
a
r 

o
n
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
o
r’
s
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
.

T
h
e
 r

e
la

te
d
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 o

p
in

io
n
s
. 

T
h
a
t 
in

te
g
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 u

n
d
e
rp

in
s
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 

th
a
t 
K

P
M

G
 p

e
rf

o
rm

s
 a

n
d
 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

to
 t
h
e
 r

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

e
 o

p
e
ra

te
. 

A
ll 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 o

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 

th
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 

e
v
a
lu

a
te

 c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
y
 i
m

p
a
ir
 t

h
a
t 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
.

2
5

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 110



A
p

p
e

n
d

ic
e

s

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 4
: 

D
e
c
la

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti

v
it

y
 (

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

A
c
ti
n
g
 a

s
 a

n
 a

u
d
it
o
r 

p
la

c
e
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f

ir
m

, 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 s

ta
ff
 i
n

o
rd

e
r 

to
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
e
 f

ir
m

's
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
. 

K
P

M
G

's
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n

c
e
 m

a
tt
e
rs

 a
re

 

d
e
ta

ile
d

in
th

e
E

th
ic

s
a
n
d

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e

M
a
n
u
a
l
(‘

th
e

M
a
n
u
a
l’)

.
T

h
e

W
e
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 

c
o

m
p

li
e
d

 w
it

h
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

o
n

 o
b

je
c

ti
v
it

y
 a

n
d

 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 E

th
ic

s
 a

n
d
 I

n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 M

a
n
u
a
l 
(
th

e
 M

a
n
u
a
l)

. 
T

h
e
 

M
a
n
u
a
l 
s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 o

v
e
rr

id
in

g
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 

a
n
d
 r

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff
 m

u
s
t 
a

d
h
e
re

 t
o
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 

o
f 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
 d

e
a
lin

g
s
 w

it
h
 c

lie
n
ts

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
rs

. 

K
P

M
G

 i
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff
 a

re
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
. 

T
o
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
is

, 
a
 h

a
rd

 c
o
p
y
 o

f 
th

e
 M

a
n
u
a
l 
is

 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

to
e
v
e
ry

o
n
e

a
n
n
u
a
lly

T
h
e

M
a
n
u
a
l
is

d
iv

id
e
d

in
to

tw
o

p
a
rt

s

j
y

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
 i
n

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

th
is

 y
e
a
r’

s
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

o
 e

v
e
ry

o
n
e
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

. 
T

h
e
 M

a
n
u
a
l 
is

 d
iv

id
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
w

o
 p

a
rt

s
. 

P
a
rt

 1
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 

K
P

M
G

's
 e

th
ic

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff
 m

u
s
t 

o
b
s
e
rv

e
 b

o
th

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 

d
e
a
lin

g
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
e
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
. 

P
a
rt

 

2
 o

f 
th

e
 M

a
n
u
a
l 
s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 r

is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff
 a

re
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 f

o
llo

w
 w

h
e
n
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 s

u
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

A
ll 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff
 m

u
s
t 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t

h
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

th
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 c

o
m

p
ly

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 M

a
n
u
a
l 

a
n
d
 f

o
llo

w
 t

h
e
m

 a
t 
a
ll 

ti
m

e
s
. 

T
o
 a

c
k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
a
n
d
 

a
d
h
e
re

n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 M

a
n
u
a
l,
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff
 

a
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
b
m

it
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
E

th
ic

s
 a

n
d
 I

n
d
e
p
e
n

d
e
n
c
e
 

C
o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 

F
a
ilu

re
 t

o
 f

o
llo

w
 t

h
e
s
e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 c

a
n
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 d

is
c
ip

lin
a
ry

 

a
c
ti
o
n

a
c
ti
o
n
.

A
u

d
it

o
r 

d
e
c
la

ra
ti

o
n

 

In
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y

C
o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
in

g
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
, 

w
e
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 

w
e
re

 n
o
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

 a
n
d
 L

e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 i
ts

 

d
ir
e
c
to

rs
a
n
d

s
e
n
io

r
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

it
s

a
ff
ili

a
te

s
th

a
t

w
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
r

d
ir
e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 s

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 a
ff
ili

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

m
a
y
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a
b
ly

 b
e
 t

h
o
u
g
h
t 

to
 b

e
a
r 

o
n
 t

h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

le
a
d
 a

n
d
 a

u
d
it
 s

ta
ff
. 
W

e
 a

ls
o
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h
 E

th
ic

a
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n

c
e
 a

n
d
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

2
6

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 111



A
p

p
e

n
d

ic
e

s

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 5
: 

D
ra

ft
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 l
e
tt

e
r

D
e
a
r 

S
ir
s

T
h
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 l
e
tt
e
r 

is
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h
 y

o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 o

f 

th
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 G

ro
u
p
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

fo
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

d
d

3
1

M
h

2
0
1
2

f
h

f
i

i
i

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
p
e
rl
y
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 U

n
it
e
d
 K

in
g
d
o
m

.

T
h

fi
i

l
h

b
d

i

W
e
 a

s
k
 y

o
u

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 u

s
 

w
it

h
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
 o

n
 

s
p

e
c
if

ic
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 

e
n
d
e
d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
, 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
e
x
p
re

s
s
in

g
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n
 a

s
 t

o
 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
s
e
:

i.
g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d
 f

a
ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 G
ro

u
p
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 a

n
d
 o

f 
it
s
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
n
 e

n
d
e
d
; 

a
n
d

ii
h

b
l

d
i

d
it
h

th

T
h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 o

n
 a

 g
o
in

g
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 

b
a
s
is

.

2
.

M
e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 

m
e
th

o
d
s
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

t 
fa

ir
 v

a
lu

e
, 

a
re

 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

. 

3
A

ll
t

b
t

t
th

d
t

f
th

fi
i

l
t

t
t

d

p

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e
 t

ra
n

s
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

re
 l

e
g

a
l 

a
n

d
 u

n
a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 f

ra
u

d
. 

T
h

e
 w

o
rd

in
g

 f
o

r 
th

e
s
e
 

ii.
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
p
e
rl
y
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
 

th
e
 U

n
it
e
d
 K

in
g
d
o
m

.

T
h
e
s
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
ri
s
e
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 G

ro
u
p
 

M
o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t,
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 G

ro
u
p
 

C
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 I

n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t,
 t

h
e

 A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 

3
.

A
ll 

e
v
e
n
ts

 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 d

a
te

 o
f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

fo
r 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 U

n
it
e
d
 K

in
g
d
o
m

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 

o
r 

d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 o

r 
d
is

c
lo

s
e
d
. 

 

4
.

In
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 r

e
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

fo
r 

h
e
ri
ta

g
e
 a

s
s
e
ts

 m
a
d
e
 t

o
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

a
 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 p

ri
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

, 
th

e
 

re
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
 i

s
 

p
re

s
c
ri

b
e
d

 b
y
 a

u
d

it
in

g
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
. 

W
e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 a

 s
ig

n
e
d

 c
o

p
y
 o

f 

G
ro

u
p
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 S

h
e
e
t,
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 G

ro
u
p
 C

a
s
h
 F

lo
w

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t[
, 

th
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t 

In
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t,
 

th
e
 M

o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 F

u
n
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
la

te
d
 n

o
te

s

T
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
o
n
fi
rm

s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 i
t 

m
a
k
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
is

 l
e
tt
e
r 

a
re

in
a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e

w
it
h

th
e

d
e
fi
n
it
io

n
s

s
e
t

o
u
t

in
th

e
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

to
th

is

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
o
n
fi
rm

s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

is
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

5
. 

T
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 y

o
u
 w

it
h
:

y
o

u
r 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

re
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
 b

e
fo

re
 w

e
 

is
s
u

e
 o

u
r 

a
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n
. 

a
re

 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 t
o
 t

h
is

 

le
tt
e
r.

T
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
o
n
fi
rm

s
 t

h
a
t,
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 

o
f 
it
s
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g

e
 a

n
d
 b

e
lie

f,
 

h
a
v
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 s

u
c
h
 i
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 a

s
 i
t 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a

ry
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 

o
f 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 i
n
fo

rm
in

g
 i
ts

e
lf
:

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

ll 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 i
t 
is

 a
w

a
re

, 
th

a
t 

is
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

to
 t
h
e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 

re
c
o
rd

s
, 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

m
a
tt
e
rs

;

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 
y
o
u
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
; 

a
n
d

i
d

i
h
i

h
A

h
i

d
G

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

1
.

T
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 f

u
lf
ill

e
d
 i
ts

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
, 

a
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 

re
g
u
la

ti
o
n
 8

 o
f 

th
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
n
d
 A

u
d
it
 (

E
n
g
la

n
d
) 

R
e

g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 

2
0
1
1
, 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t:

g
iv

e
a

tr
u
e

a
n
d

fa
ir

v
ie

w
o
f

th
e

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
p
o
s
it
io

n
o
f
L
e
e
d
s

C
it
y

u
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 G

ro
u
p
 

fr
o
m

 w
h
o
m

 y
o
u
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 i
t 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 o

b
ta

in
 a

u
d

it
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
. 

6
. 

A
ll 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

c
c
o
u

n
ti
n
g
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 a

n
d
 

a
re

 r
e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

2
7

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d
 f

a
ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 G
ro

u
p
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 a

n
d
 o

f 
it
s
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

a
n
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
n
 e

n
d
e
d
;

Page 112



A
p

p
e

n
d

ic
e

s

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 5
: 

D
ra

ft
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 l
e
tt

e
r

7
.

T
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e
s
 i
ts

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

s
u
c
h
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
a
s
 i
t 
d
e
te

rm
in

e
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 f
re

e
 f

ro
m

 m
a
te

ri
a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t,
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

d
u
e
 

to
fr

a
u
d

o
r

e
rr

o
r.

In
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r,
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

a
c
k
n
o
w

le
d

g
e
s

it
s

s
c
h
e
m

e
 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 i
ts

 k
n
o
w

le
d
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
.

1
2
.

T
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
n
fi
rm

s
 t

h
a
t:

W
e
 a

s
k
 y

o
u

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 u

s
 

w
it

h
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
 o

n
 

s
p

e
c
if

ic
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 

to
 f
ra

u
d
 o

r 
e
rr

o
r.

 I
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r,
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
k
n
o
w

le
d

g
e
s
 i
ts

 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 

in
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
to

 p
re

v
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

e
te

c
t 

fr
a
u
d
 a

n
d
 e

rr
o
r.

 

8
.

T
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 d

is
c
lo

s
e
d
 t

o
 y

o
u
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
it
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 r

is
k
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
y
 b

e
 m

a
te

ri
a
lly

 m
is

s
ta

te
d
 

a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
fr

a
u
d
. 

a
)

a
ll 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

re
ti
re

m
e
n
t 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
y
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t:

a
re

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
, 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
o
r 

im
p
lic

it
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
r'
s
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
;

a
ri
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 U

K
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 R

e
p
u
b
lic

 o
f 
Ir

e
la

n
d
 o

r 
o
v
e
rs

e
a
s
;

a
re

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 o

r 
u
n
fu

n
d
e
d
; 

a
n
d

p

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e
 t

ra
n

s
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

re
 l

e
g

a
l 

a
n

d
 u

n
a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 f

ra
u

d
. 

T
h

e
 w

o
rd

in
g

 f
o

r 
th

e
s
e
 

9
.

T
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 d

is
c
lo

s
e
d
 t

o
 y

o
u
 a

ll 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
:

a
)

F
ra

u
d
 o

r 
s
u
s
p
e
c
te

d
 f

ra
u
d
 t

h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
ff
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 i
ts

 G
ro

u
p
 a

n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
s
:

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t;

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s

w
h
o

h
a
v
e

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

ro
le

s
in

in
te

rn
a
l
c
o
n
tr

o
l;

o
r

a
re

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 o

r 
u
n
a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
, 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
p
e
rl

y
 a

c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f

o
r;

 a
n

d

b
)

a
ll 

s
e
tt
le

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

u
rt

a
ilm

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
p
e
rl
y
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f

o
r.

T
h
i

l
tt

t
b
l

d
d

d
t

th
ti

f
th

C
t

re
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
 i

s
 

p
re

s
c
ri

b
e
d

 b
y
 a

u
d

it
in

g
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
. 

W
e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 a

 s
ig

n
e
d

 c
o

p
y
 o

f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

ro
le

s
 i
n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l;
 o

r

o
th

e
rs

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 f

ra
u
d
 c

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

 m
a
te

ri
a
l 
e
ff
e
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

; 
a
n
d

b
)

a
lle

g
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
fr

a
u
d
, 

o
r 

s
u
s
p
e
c
te

d
 f

ra
u
d
, 

a
ff
e
c
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

a
n
d
 G

ro
u
p
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 c
o

m
m

u
n
ic

a
te

d
 b

y
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
, 

fo
rm

e
r

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s

a
n
a
ly

s
ts

re
g
u
la

to
rs

o
r

o
th

e
rs

T
h
is

 l
e
tt

e
r 

w
a
s
 t

a
b
le

d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 2

8
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

.

Y
o
u
rs

 f
a
it
h
fu

lly
,

[C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
]

, 
[C

h
ie

f 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
O

ff
ic

e
r]

 

y
o

u
r 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

re
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
 b

e
fo

re
 w

e
 

is
s
u

e
 o

u
r 

a
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n
. 

fo
rm

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
, 

a
n
a
ly

s
ts

, 
re

g
u
la

to
rs

 o
r 

o
th

e
rs

.

1
0
.

T
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 d

is
c
lo

s
e
d
 t

o
 y

o
u
 a

ll 
k
n
o
w

n
 i
n
s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

f 
n
o
n
-

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 o

r 
s
u
s
p
e
c
te

d
 n

o
n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 l
a
w

s
 a

n
d
 

re
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 w

h
o
s
e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

h
e
n

 p
re

p
a
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r,

 t
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 d

is
c
lo

s
e
d
 t

o
 

y
o
u
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 a

c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
n
d
/o

r 
d
is

c
lo

s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

fi
i

l
t

t
t

i
d

it
h

th
C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
C

d
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

o
d
e
 

o
f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 U

n
it
e
d
 K

in
g
d
o
m

 

a
ll 

k
n
o
w

n
 a

c
tu

a
l 
o
r 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 l
it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

la
im

s
 w

h
o
s
e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

h
e
n
 p

re
p
a
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 

1
1
.

O
n
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 

h
a
v
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
, 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

2
8

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

th
e
 a

c
tu

a
ri
a
l 
a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 u

n
d
e
rl
y
in

g
 t

h
e
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
e
n
s
io

n
 

Page 113



©
2
0
1
2

K
P

M
G

L
L
P

a
U

K
lim

it
e
d

lia
b
ili

ty
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

is
a

s
u
b
s
id

ia
ry

o
f

K
P

M
G

©
 2

0
1
2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e
d

 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
is

 a
 s

u
b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 

K
P

M
G

 

E
u
ro

p
e
 L

L
P

 a
n
d
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

fi
rm

 o
f 

th
e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

m
e
m

b
e
r 

fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h
 K

P
M

G
 I
n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

o
o
p
e
ra

ti
v
e
, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h
ts

 

re
s
e
rv

e
d
.

T
h
e
 K

P
M

G
 n

a
m

e
, 

lo
g
o
 a

n
d
 ‘
c
u
tt
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
m

p
le

x
it
y
’ 
a
re

 r
e
g
is

te
re

d
 

tr
a
d
e
m

a
rk

s
 o

r 
tr

a
d
e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

o
o
p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 (

K
P

M
G

 

I
t

ti
l)

In
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l)
.

Page 114



 

 

Report of Director of Resources 

Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 

Date: 28th September 2012 

Subject: Annual Governance Statement 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. The Council has a duty to undertake an annual review of the effectiveness of its system of 
internal control.  Following that review a committee, in our case the Corporate Governance and 
Audit Committee, must approve an annual governance statement. 

 
2. The review of effectiveness of the Council’s Governance arrangements, has been informed by 

matters considered by; 

• Executive Board  

• Corporate Governance and Audit Committee (particularly assurance reports from officers 
reporting to the committee) 

• Reports and opinions from; 

• Internal Audit 

• External Audit 

• Inspectorates  

• Local Government Ombudsman 

• Appropriate enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience. 
 

3. The attached Annual Governance Statement has been prepared in accordance with proper 
practices specified by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011.  

Recommendations 

4. Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to approve the attached Annual 
Governance Statement; and recommend that the Leader of Council, Chair of Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee, Chief Executive and Director of Resources sign the 
document on behalf of the Council. 

 

 Report author:  A.Hodson 

Tel:  0113 224 3208 

Agenda Item 12

Page 115



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) to 
the committee for approval.   

2 Background information 

2.1 The Annual Governance Statement is a public statement on the adequacy of the 
Council’s governance arrangements, and, as directed by the Accounts and Audit 
(England) Regulations 2011, must accompany the statement of accounts.  

2.2 The Regulations, specifically Regulation 4(3), requires authorities to conduct a review 
at least once a year of the effectiveness of its systems of internal control in 
accordance with ‘proper practices’1.  These proper practices have not been reviewed 
since 2007 and aspects, for example references to ‘direction of travel statements, are 
outdated.  However they remain broadly fit for purpose as a basis for preparing the 
AGS which appears at Appendix 1. 

3 Main issues 

3.1 Members may recall that last year, in light of the current financial climate, and the 
drive to reduce unnecessary bureaucracy, the Head of Governance Services further 
refined and streamlined the drafting process for the AGS.   

3.2 This year, as last,  the review of effectiveness has been undertaken on an ongoing 
basis including internal and external audit of our internal control processes, and 
matters that have been the subject of reports to Corporate Governance and Audit 
Committee, the Executive Board and other member forums.  In addition Directors 
have reviewed the attached statement and have confirmed that, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, all matters of significance have been disclosed.  

3.3 Members will note that Section 5 of the AGS, the section dealing with significant 
governance issues, continues to directly link to areas for improvement identified in 
the Council Business Plan 2011 - 15.   This reflects the extent to which governance 
issues have been embedded into corporate planning and performance management 
processes and provides a streamlined and sustainable structure to monitor identified 
areas for improvement.  

3.4 KPMG have confirmed, in their report to those charged with governance (also on the 
agenda for committee today), that, having reviewed the Annual Governance 
Statement, they are of the opinion that the statement complies with Delivering Good 
Governance: A Framework, published by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007; and is not 
misleading or inconsistent with other information that they are aware of. 

3.5 Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to approve the attached 
Annual Governance Statement; and recommend that the Leader of Council, Chair of 
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee, Chief Executive and Director of 
Resources sign the document on behalf of the Council. 

 

                                            
1
 CIPFA/SOLACE - Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2007 

Page 116



 

 

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 The Corporate Leadership Team has been consulted on content of the Annual 
Governance Statement, particularly to ensure that there are no omissions or 
misrepresentations.  

4.1.2 The Annual Governance Statement links to the objectives of the Council Business 
Plan relating to consultation– specifically that all major decisions affecting the lives 
of communities can evidence that appropriate consultation has taken place. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 The Annual Governance Statement links to the objectives of the Council Business 
Plan relating to Equality – specifically that all major decisions needing to evidence 
that appropriate consideration has been given to equality issues. 

4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 The Annual Governance Statement reports that whilst progress has been made in 
agreeing policies and implementing procedures to govern the management of data 
and information, a number of incidents of data loss have occurred during the year.   

4.3.2 Following approval of the statement a review of the Council’s Code of Corporate 
Governance will be undertaken. 

4.4 Resources and Value for Money  

4.4.1 The Annual Governance Statement makes links to the objectives of the Council 
Business Plan relating to the budget and financial planning and management  – 
specifically that all directorates work within their approved budget and that 
arrangements ensure the Council maintains revenue reserves.  

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 The Annual Governance Statement is a public statement on the adequacy of the 
Council’s governance arrangements, and as directed by the Accounts and Audit 
(England) Regulations 2011, must accompany the statement of accounts. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011, specifically Regulation 4(3), 
requires authorities to conduct a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of 
its systems of internal control in accordance with proper practices.  The system of 
internal control, including arrangements for the management of risk, assists the 
Council in effectively exercising its functions. 

4.6.2 In addition the committee and the Executive Board have received regular reports 
which demonstrate that there is an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and 
managing risks. 

 

Page 117



 

 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 The Annual Governance Statement concludes that key systems are generally 
operating soundly and, where weaknesses have been identified arrangements, 
arrangements are in place to resolve them. 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to approve the attached 
Annual Governance Statement; and recommend that the Leader of Council, the 
Chair of Corporate Governance and Audit Committee, the Chief Executive and the 
Director of Resources sign the document on behalf of the Council. 

7 Background documents  

7.1 None 

Page 118



 APPENDIX 1 

 

 

Annual Governance 

Statement  

2012 

Page 119



1. SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY 

Corporate governance is a phrase used to describe how organisations direct and 

control what they do.  For local authorities this also includes how a council relates to 

the communities that it serves.     

Our ambition is to be at the forefront of those local authorities that are able to 
demonstrate that they have the necessary corporate governance to excel in the 
public sector. We aspire to be the best local authority in UK, in the best City.   
 
The changing needs of our citizens and communities, significant reductions in 
resources and central government reforms, present a challenge to all councils. 
In addressing these challenges we must ensure that governance arrangements 
support the effective delivery of services and management of risk.  
 
By applying the principles in our Code of Corporate Governance (summarised 
below) and applying the Nolan Principles of Standards in Public Life, we commit to 
devising and delivering services to the citizens of Leeds in a way that demonstrates 
accountability, transparency, effectiveness, integrity, and inclusivity. 
 
Our Code of Corporate Governance outlines our governance principles;  

1. Focussing on the Council’s purpose and community needs; 
2. Having clear responsibilities and arrangements for accountability; 
3. Good conduct and behaviour; 
4. Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective 

scrutiny and risk management; 
5. Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be 

effective; 
6. Engaging with local people and other stakeholders. 

 
This statement describes how we have complied with our Code of Corporate 
Governance and how we have met the requirements of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011.  The statement should be read alongside our planning, 
performance management and accountability arrangements described in; 
 

• The Vision for Leeds 2011-2030 

• Our City Priority Plans 2011-2015 

• Our Council Business Plan 2011-2015  
 
2. THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

Our governance arrangements are designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. 
The arrangements cannot eliminate all risks but can provide reasonable assurance 
of our effectiveness.  

The governance framework has been in place for the year to the date of approval of 
this Annual Governance Statement.  

Page 120



3. THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

Our governance framework in Leeds comprises the systems and processes, and 
culture and values that allow us to achieve our strategic objectives and establish the 
extent to which services are delivered in an appropriate and cost effective way.  

 These are summarised below; 

• Our vision; that is our shared priorities and intended outcomes for citizens and 
service users documented in the Vision for Leeds, Council Business Plan and 
other documents contained in our Budget and Policy Framework;  

• The committees, boards and panels we have established to ensure 
democratic engagement and accountability is central to our key and other 
important decisions; 

• Our arrangements for the oversight and scrutiny of decisions and policy 
development by councillors;  

• Delegation and sub delegation arrangements which document the roles and 
responsibilities of executive and non-executive councillors and our statutory 
(and other senior) officer functions;  

• Our risk, performance and accountability arrangements that measure the 
quality of services; ensuring they are delivered in accordance with our 
objectives and that they represent the best use of resources;  

• Our People Plan, Member Development Strategy, Values and codes of 
conduct which underpin how Members and employees work;  

• Our arrangements for consultation and engagement with the community, 
particularly focussed to help ensure inclusivity; 

• Our arrangements to safeguard our most vulnerable citizens including fully 
embracing the role of independent chairs of safeguarding boards for children 
and adults; 

• A high performing and independent Internal Audit service that is well regarded 
by our External Auditors;  

• Independent oversight and challenge provided by our External Auditors, 
Government Inspectorates and the Local Government Ombudsman; 

• Our pocedure rules and internal management processes for; 
o Financial management 
o Procurement 
o Information governance and data security 
o Health and safety 
o Decision making  
o Whistleblowing and complaints handling 
o Anti fraud & corruption  

4. REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS 

We have a responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of our governance arrangements.  We consider this best practice and a 
fundamental component of high performing organisations,  

Our review of effectiveness considers decisions taken and matters considered by 
Full Council and committees appointed by Full Council, the Executive Board, 
Corporate Leadership Team (and Directors knowledge of the operation of 
governance arrangements within their directorates), the work of the Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee, internal auditors, service managers, work 
undertaken by external auditors and inspectorates and the opinion of the Local 
Government Ombudsman.  

Page 121



A self-assessment of our effectiveness 
 
Our planning and performance and risk management framework has enabled us to 
Focus effectively on the Council’s Purpose and Community Needs.  Our new 
approach, incorporating both risk and performance management, has been 
successfully introduced in-year and provides the Executive and Scrutiny with the 
information to check and challenge attainment of our priorities.  

A number of improvements have been implemented most notably the joint analysis 
and reporting of risk and performance information and better linkages to the 
appraisal processes.  These arrangements have also been documented into a formal 
Performance Management Framework and the updated Risk Management Policy 
and over the coming year will see performance and risk management processes 
linking closely with the People Plan, e.g. through appraisals. 

Executive Board has reviewed the corporate risk register of the significant business 
risks facing the council and this Board and the Corporate Governance and Audit 
Committee have received positive assurances about the operation of the 
arrangements for identifying and managing risk. 

Effective financial planning and management – the 2011/12 budget represented 
a major challenge for the Council and required the Council to find savings of £90m. 
Whilst not all planned savings were fully achieved, other savings were identified and 
additional income secured, with the final outturn being an under-spend against the  
budget of £1.5m. The Section 151 Officer has ensured that effective budget 
monitoring and reporting arrangements, involving the Executive Board and Scrutiny 
have been put in place.  Given the scale of the financial challenges, the Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee reviewed the arrangements in March 2012, noting 
that there were appropriate systems and procedures in place to ensure sound 
financial planning and management.  
 
Effective arrangements for accountability - Our governance arrangements 
continue to evolve.  In this respect Members have reviewed the structure and format 
of the full Council meeting.  This has included the introduction of State of the City 
meetings, that have enabled all Members to have oversight and involvement in the 
significant challenges facing the City and understand first hand the role played by 
partners in the city.   Council has also been reconfigured to enable backbench 
Members, from all political groups, to bring forward ‘Community Concerns’ for 
consideration in the full Council meeting. 

The delegation scheme for Council and Executive responsibilities has been regularly 
reviewed and updated to reflect various legislative and organisational changes.  Sub 
delegation arrangements are in place and provide a clear description of decision-
making responsibilities below director level.   

The strategic landlord has presented, to our Corporate Governance and Audit 
Committee, details of the performance management framework to oversee the 
functions that have been  delegated to the Arms Length Management Organisations 
and the Belle Isle Tenant Management Organisation.  Currently the assurances 
available are based upon a programme of audit work undertaken by internal audit.   

The strategic landlord is moving towards a position where they themselves can 
provide an assurance based on their own tailored performance management 
framework with internal audit providing independent verification.  

 

Page 122



Delegations have also been made to Birmingham City Council to enable that 
authority to effectively co-ordinate efforts to prevent illegal money lending 
nationwide.  Positive assurances have been received by the Executive Board from 
Birmingham about how that delegation has operated during the year. 

The leadership and governance arrangements for the city region and the Leeds 
initiative continue to evolve. Democratic accountability and reporting arrangements 
are an emerging theme.  At the Annual Council Meeting it was agreed that all 
minutes from Joint Committees (including the Leeds City Region) and the Leeds 
Initiative Strategy Groups be presented to Council for consideration and thereby 
improve the links between ward members and these regional structures. 
 
The Director of Children’s Services reported to Executive Board on a review of an 

overspend which had occurred on a Primary School capital scheme; the review 

reported on issues that the project had encountered and provided assurances on the 

improvements which had been made to prevent a re-occurrence of the issues which 

led to the overspend on, and delay of the project.  

The Executive Board emphasised the need to ensure that the necessary lessons 

were learned from the situation detailed within the submitted report. In addition, it 

was highlighted that a more cohesive approach between directorates was required 

and in respect of future Design and Cost Reports relating to similar developments, it 

was noted that such reports would not be submitted to Executive Board until design 

freeze and costs were understood, so that Members were in possession of all 

relevant facts when determining such matters. 

Effective Conduct Arrangements - Our Conduct arrangements for Members have 
been substantially reviewed and amended due to changes in statutory requirements.  
The changes to the Members’ Code of Conduct have been heavily influenced by the 
Nolan Principles of Standards in Public life and changes to our complaint handling 
arrangements now place greater emphasis on a speedy informal resolution of 
concerns, rather than on lengthy, more protracted arrangements dictated by the 
previous statutory regime.  

Registers of Interest for Elected Members and Employees have been maintained 
and arrangements are in place for the declaration of appropriate interests when 
decisions are taken. We have also appointed an Independent Person in accordance 
with our statutory responsibilities.  

The Standards Committee has operated in accordance with legislative requirements, 
and ceased its formal statutory functions (in line with legislation) on the 1st July. 
Since July a new Standards and Conduct Committee has been appointed by full 
council to provided oversight and leadership for the new arrangements. 

The Code of Conduct for employees is due to be revised in 2012, providing an 
opportunity to align the Member and employee arrangements more closely and 
again reinforce our commitment to the Nolan Principles.  

Effective decision making arrangements -  Our decision-making arrangements 
are one of our significant governance controls, linking to all the governance 
principles that are set out in our Code of Corporate Governance.  

 

Page 123



We have reviewed the effectiveness of our decision-making framework more 
generally – the result of which has been full Council agreeing changes to the 
Executive Decision Making arrangements. The changes have included an 
amendment to the definition of Key Decisions – providing a greater focus on 
significant decisions within single electoral wards; simplifying other decision 
categories; and removing the Call In requirements for Area Committee Decisions 
and thereby, amongst other things, speeding up the process by which Community 
Groups could be in receipt of grants. 

Positive assurances have been given by the Chief Planning Services Officer (in 
respect of planning functions), the Director of Resources relating to compliance with 
the council’s executive decision making framework, access to information processes, 
and financial management procedures, and from the Scrutiny Officer in relation to 
the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny arrangements.  

Effectively developing skills and capacity -  The Chief Human Resources Officer 
– working closely with the Scrutiny Board (Central and Corporate Functions), has 
established a People Plan for the Organisation.  This has been an important step in 
ensuring that our workforce has the skills, capability and capacity to meet the 
challenges facing the City.   The arrangements for monitoring progress against 
targets in the People Plan were reported to Corporate Governance and Audit 
committee in June 2012.  Action plans are in place to address the themes emerging 
from the engagement surveys. 
 
Of particular significance has been progress on Appraisals - with 92% of staff 
receiving an appraisal in 2011/12, and Engagement – where a cross council survey 
has measured the level of staff engagement.  
 
As community leaders, it is vital that our Councillors are supported to be as effective 
as possibly.  A variety of learning programmes have been in place which have been 
continually monitored and evaluated by Councillors to ensure that where needed 
new initiatives have been implemented quickly and effectively. 
 
Effective Engagement - Our Council Business Plan identified improvement as 
being required in both consultation and quality considerations in the decisions that 
we take.  Our end of year report (reported to Executive Board) found 97% of 
decisions evidenced that consultation and engagement had taken place with 
local people and other stakeholders whilst the equivalent outturn for equality was 
that 85% of decisions evidenced that equality considerations had been taken 
account of.   

All our directorates have, or are in the process of, introducing sign off processes to 
ensure continued improvements in this area.  

Of significance for this statement, the annual internal audit report concluded that the 
internal control environment, including the key financial systems, is well established 
and continues to generally operate well in practice.  

Page 124



An Independent opinion of effectiveness 
 
In July 2012, KPMG’s Interim Audit Report assessed our organisational control 

environment as effective overall with no issues or areas for improvement.   In 

addition KPMG specifically reported that; 

• the controls over all of the key financial system are generally sound; 

• full reliance can be placed on Internal Audit’s work1 on the key financial 

systems and that Internal Audit are compliant with the Code of Practice for 

Internal Audit in Local Government. 

In our external auditor’s annual report to those charged with governance, KPMG 
reported that this Annual Governance Statement complies with the CIPFA/SOLACE 
framework and that it is not misleading or inconsistent with other information they are 
aware of from their audit of the financial statements 

The Annual Letter from the Local Government Ombudsman highlighted four cases of 
Maladministration2.  One further case was drawn to the Council’s attention by the 
Ombudsman where there were shortcomings in service provision.   

Although these cases are presented against a generally positive picture of 
Ombudsman investigation decisions during the course of the year (where in over 
70% of cases the Council was found to be not at fault),  the Council deeply regrets 
the shortcomings in service provision which the Ombudsman has reported.  
Apologies have been given to those affected and the remedies proposed by the 
Ombudsman have either been implemented, are soon to be implemented or are to 
form part of a longer term action plan 

The Executive Board has received a number of reports from Ofsted, the most recent 
being an improved annual assessment of Children’s Services in December 2011. 
The findings and recommendations from Ofsted have been carefully considered and 
arrangements put in place to address and monitor the implementation of the 
recommendations arising.  

5. SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

The independent opinion of our External Auditors, provides considerable assurance 
in respect of the Council’s arrangements.  The External Auditor’s recent Interim Audit 
assessed our organisational control environment as effective overall, with no 
significant issues or areas for improvement. 

The outlook for local government over the next few years is a very challenging one.  
We have outcome focussed plans which set out our ambitions, that Leeds will 
become the best city in the United Kingdom by 2030.  However in the short to 
medium term these ambitions are set against a context of declining resources and 
an uncertain economic outlook.  It is therefore important that we take a longer term 
view and we are therefore undertaking a ‘Budget + exercise’ predicated on what our 
organisation may look like in 2016/17. 

We though remain determined to do all we can to ensure all available resources are 
directed to supporting front line services, that further consideration be given to 
                                                           

1
 The Council's Head of Internal Audit function reports to the Corporate Governance & Audit 
Committee, quarterly on significant matters arising in respect of the control environment. 
2
 three of which were reported to Members in the AGS last year 

Page 125



enabling ‘Areas’ to better influence decisions that impact on them and seeking 
innovative ways of further securing Value for Money.    

To support this a number of significant developments are under way which have 
implications for our governance arrangements and how we go about delivering our 
ambitions.   

We have led the Commission on the Future of Local Government.  The Commission 
brought together a variety leading thinkers and doers from the public, private and 
voluntary sectors to examine how local government can adapt, survive and thrive in 
leading, and empowering, local people to both shape local services and have a real 
stake in their communities.  Our challenge is to work in a spirit of civic enterprise, 
underpinned by strong values of trust and transparency.  

An immediate response to the work of the Commission is our review of the 
arrangements for area working, particularly how Member involvement and leadership 
at an area level can be improved and enhanced.    

Running alongside this Executive Board are also overseeing the introduction of 
arrangements to support our new responsibilities around neighbourhood planning. 
The objective being to ensure both these better support the delivery of services, 
whilst also maintaining internal control standards that have public confidence.   

Executive Board has also agreed a Customer Access Strategy (2012-15) to help 
further enhance service user access to services. 

A business continuity review of all services has ensured that there is an accurate list 
of critical services within the organisation.   Our plans to link business continuity, 
industrial action and disaster recovery arrangements were reported to the Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee in March 2012 and is a priority for implementation 
over the next 12 months to further ensure the organisation remains resilient.   
 
The achievement of our objectives around health and wellbeing rely heavily on our 
working relationships with the NHS, private providers and the third sector.  Working 
differently across these boundaries is central to the achievement of our goals.   
 
The Leader of Council has already established a new Executive Member Portfolio for 
Health and Wellbeing and our plans for a Health and Wellbeing board are well 
advanced as are our plans to integrate new Public Health functions from April 2013.  
 
This changing face of service delivery, with greater emphasis on partnership working 
with local and regional bodies and in a variety of settings raises issues concerning 
governance and financial accountability and control.   This will also be a significant 
feature in work planned for 2012/13 to progress the creation of a West Yorkshire 
Combined Authority as envisaged in our recently agreed City Deal. 

These are big challenges and the Director of Resources has undertaken to review 
our Partnership Advisory Note to ensure that is fit for purpose.  The document will be 
reissued to Directors before the end of the calendar year. 

We also recognise we need to do more to achieve the aspirations set out in our 
Council Business Plan.  In particular we believe further improvement is needed to 
meet our objective that every year 100% of staff have an appraisal and each 
member of staff will have a personal development plan; thereby supporting staff in 
having a clear understanding of their role as well as clear objectives and 
performance targets. 

Page 126



We will also strive to ensure that we meet our aspirations for; 
 

• all major decisions affecting the lives of communities evidence that 
appropriate consultation has taken place. 

• all major decisions evidence that appropriate consideration of equality issues 
has taken place. 

 
Action plans have been drawn up to address recommendations arising from external 
and internal audit reports, findings from Ofsted and issues identified and reported by 
the Local Government Ombudsman.  
 
ASSURANCE SUMMARY 
 
Good governance is about running things properly.  It is the means by which the 

Council shows it is taking decisions for the good of the people of the area, in a fair, 

equitable and open way.  It also requires standards of behaviour that support good 

decision making - collective and individual integrity, openness and honesty.  It is the 

foundation for the delivery of good quality services that meet all local people's needs.  

It is fundamental to showing public money is well spent.  Without good governance 

councils will struggle to improve services. 

From the review, assessment and on-going monitoring work undertaken and 

supported by the ongoing work undertaken by Internal Audit, we have reached the 

opinion that, overall, key systems are operating soundly and that there are no 

fundamental control weaknesses.   

We can confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, and there having been 

appropriate enquiries made, that this statement provides an accurate and fair view. 

Signed Signed 

Date Date 

Councillor Keith Wakefield 
Leader of the Council 

Tom Riordan 
Chief Executive 

Signed Signed 

Date Date 

Councillor Tom Murray 
Chair, Corporate Governance 
and Audit Committee 

Alan Gay 
Director of Resources  

 

Page 127



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of Director of Resources 

Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 

Date: 28 September 2012 

Subject: Work Programme 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. Members are requested to consider whether they wish to add any items to the work 

programme. 

2. The draft work programme is attached at Appendix 1. 

Recommendations 

3. Members are asked to note the draft work programme and advise officers of any 

additional items they wish to add. 

1     Purpose of this report 

1.1 The Purpose of this report is to notify Members of the Committee of the draft work 
programme. The draft  work programme is attached at Appendix 1  

2 Background information 

2.1 The work programme provides information about the future items for the Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee agenda, when items will be presented and which 
officer will be responsible for the item.  

3 Main issues 

3.1 Members are requested to consider whether they wish to add any items to the work 
programme 

 Report author:  P Garnett 

Tel:  (0113) 395 1632 

Agenda Item 13

Page 129



 

 

3.2 The draft work programme is attached at Appendix 1  

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 This report consults Members on the content of the work programme of the 
Committee. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 No significant issues. 

4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 This report helps support the implementation of the Code of Corporate Governance. 

4.4 Resources and Value for Money  

4.4.1 It is in the best interests of the Council to have sound control arrangements in place 
to ensure effective use of resources, these should be regularly reviewed and 
monitored as such the work programme directly contributes to this.  

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 This report is not an executive function and is not subject to call in. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 By the Committee being assured that effective controls are in place throughout the 
Council the work programme promotes the management of risk at the Council. 

4.6.2 The work programme adopts a risk based approach to the significant governance 
arrangements of the Council. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 The work programme of the Committee should be reviewed regularly and be updated 
appropriately in line with the risks currently facing the Council. 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Members are asked to note the work programme and advise officers of any 
additional items they wish to add. 

 

Page 130



Appendix 1 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE                         

WORK PROGRAMME   
  

ITEM DESCRIPTION RESPONSIBLE OFFICER 
 

9th November 2012  
* Member Development to take place before the meeting 

MEMBER 
DEVELOPMENT 

Before the meeting at 1pm the following will be presented to 
members: 
 

• Interpretation of he HRA within the Accounts; and 

• The role of the Corporate Governance and audit Committee in 
reviewing Treasury Management at the Council 

 

KPMG – Annual Audit 
Letter  

To receive a report providing a summary of the results of the  audit for 
2011/12 

Chief Officer (Financial 
Management)  
Doug Meeson 
 

Local Public Audit  To receive a report updating the Committee on the latest 
developments from the department for Communities and Local 
Government with regards to Local Public Audit  

Chief Officer (Audit and Risk)  
Tim Pouncey 

Treasury Management To receive a report providing the Committee with assurance on the 
treasury management function 

Chief Officer (Financial 
Development) 
Maureen Taylor 

Six Monthly Internal Audit 
Report  

To receive a report providing the Committee with an update on the 
work of the Internal audit Service 

Chief Officer (Audit and Risk)  
Tim Pouncey 

21st January 2013 

Transformation of 
Procurement  

To receive report updating the Committee on the transformation of 
procurement  

Chief Officer Public Private 
Partnership Unit and 
Procurement 
Dave Outram 
 

KPMG – Audit Plan To receive a report seeking Approval of the Audit Plan  Chief Officer (Financial 
Management)  
Doug Meeson 
 

P
age 131



 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

WORK PROGRAMME  
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION RESPONSIBLE OFFICER 
 

Internal Audit quarterly 
report  

To receive the Internal Audit quarterly report Chief Officer (Audit and Risk)  
Tim Pouncey 

27th March 2013  

Leeds City Region – Local 
Enterprise Partnership 
Governance 

To receive a report updating the Committee on the Governance 
arrangements surrounding the Leeds City Region 

Chief Officer (Localities and 
Partnerships)  

Annual Financial 
Management  Report  

To receive the annual report reviewing the  Financial Planning and 
Management Arrangements at the Council 

Chief Officer (Financial 
Management)  
Doug Meeson 

KPMG Certification of 
Grants and Returns 

To receive a report certifying grants and returns Chief Officer (Financial 
Management)  
Doug Meeson 

Capital Programme 
Approvals 

To receive a report updating the Committee with regards to the 
implementation of the new capital programme approvals framework 
(report added to the work programme on 23rd January 2012) 
 
 

Chief Officer (Financial 
Development) 
Maureen Taylor 

22nd April 2013  

Annual Report of the 
Committee 

To receive the draft Annual Report  Chief Officer (Audit and Risk) 
Tim Pouncey 

Internal Audit quarterly 
report  

To receive the Internal Audit quarterly report Chief Officer (Audit and Risk)  
Tim Pouncey 

Un-scheduled items for 2012/13 

Assurances of the 
process by Which 
Planning Decisions Are 
Taken 

To receive the Annual report providing Assurance of the process by 
Which Planning Decisions Are Taken 

Phil Crabtree  
(Chief Planning Officer) 

 

P
age 132


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 Local Government Ombudsman's Annual Letter
	Appendix 2 LGO letter 2012
	Appendix 3 LGO results 2011-12

	8 Decision Making Framework; Annual Assurance Report
	9 Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12
	FINAL  Internal Audit Annual Report for 2011-12

	10 Shared Service Partnership with Calderdale Metropolitan Borough Council to meet Adult Social Care Technology Requirements
	11 Report to Those Charged With Governance from KPMG
	FINAL Leeds CC ISA 260 2011-12 - to Committee

	12 Annual Governance Statement
	120914 AGS App 1

	13 Work Programme
	Live Work Programe


